Michigan State Normal College Bulletin

Volume XXXII

May, 1942

Number 2

CATALOG NUMBER



1941-1942

Published quarterly by the Normal College and entered as second class matter at the Postoffice at Ypsilanti, Michigan.

> FRANKLIN DEKLEINE COMPANY PRINTERS - LITHOGRAPHERS - BOOKBINDERS LANSING - 1942



EIGHTY-EIGHTH ANNUAL CATALOG

OF THE

Michigan State Normal College

FOR 1941-1942

INCLUDING

ANNOUNCEMENTS FOR 1942-1943

YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 1942

Table of Contents

Page

	-	-0-
State Board and Executive Council		5
College Calendar	0.000	6
Administrative Officers		9
Faculty		9
General Administrative Offices	1. a. a. a. a.	24
Alumni Association		26
Standing Committees		27
Michigan State Normal College, Location, History, etc		29
Student Life		30
Living Accommodations		31
Admission Standards and Policies		37
Standards and Policies		40
Purpose and Control of Michigan State Teachers Colleges	1	44
Degree Requirements		47
Requirements for Graduation		48
Directions to Holders of Limited Certificates		50
Curricula	52,	256
Departments of Instruction		70
English		71
Speech		78
Foreign Language and Literature		84
Natural Sciences		95
Chemistry		109
Geography		114
Physics and Astronomy		117
Mathematics		122
History and Social Sciences		127
Education		142
Rural Education		
Special Education		
Laboratory Schools		
Fine Arts		174
Music		179
Conservatory of Music		185
Industrial Arts		188
Home Economics		
Commerce		199
School Library Service		202
Health Education		
Physical Education		
Graduate Division		
College Extension Service		997

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

P	age
rounds and Buildings	234
ocieties and Clubs	239
oan. Scholarship and Endowment Funds	247
tatistical Information	255
ppendix	256
furricula for Professional and Vocational Work	256
roup Majors	258
ndex	259

Michigan State Normal College

YPSILANTI

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

HON. FRANK CODY	President
HON, MARY FARNSWORTH	Vice-President
HON. EUGENE B. ELLIOTT	Secretary
HON. WYNAND WICHERS	

Regular meeting of the Board, last Friday of each month.

STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

HON. EUGENE B. ELLIOTT

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL OF STATE TEACHERS COLLEGES

HENRY A. TAPE President Northern Michigan College of Education

JOHN M. MUNSON Michigan State Normal College

CHARLES L. ANSPACH Central Michigan College of Education

PAUL V. SANGREN Western Michigan College of Education

Regular meetings: last Friday of October, November, December. January, February, April and May.

College Calendar

1942-43

SUMMER SESSION 1942

June 22, Monday	Registration for Summer Session
June 23, Tuesday	Recitations begin
July 31, Friday Fina	1 Examinations Six Weeks Session
July 31, Friday	Six Weeks Session closes
August 21, Friday Final	Examinations Nine Weeks Session
August 21, Friday	Nine Weeks Session closes

FIRST SEMESTER

Sept. 28, 29, 30, Mon., Tues., WedFreshman Days and Registration
September 29, TuesdayRegistration of students previously entered and transfers from other institutions
September 30, Wednesday, forenoon Registration of Freshmen
September 30, Wednesday, afternoon Registration concluded
October 1, Thursday Recitations begin
November 26, 27, Thursday, Friday Thanksgiving recess
December 18, Friday Holiday vacation begins
January 4, Monday Classes resume
February 5, FridayClass work ends
February 8-12, Mon. to Fri
February 12, Friday First Semester closes

SECOND SEMESTER

February 15, 16, Mon., Tues Registration for Second Semester
February 17, Wednesday
June 4, FridayClass work ends
June 6, SundayBaccalaureate
June 7-11, Mon. to Fri
June 11, Friday Second Semester closes
June 12, Saturday Alumni Day
June 12, SaturdayCommencement

College Calendar

1943-1944

SUMMER SESSION 1943

June 21, Monday	. Registration for Summer Session
June 22, Tuesday	Recitations begin
July 30, Friday Final	Examinations Six Weeks Session
July 30, Friday	Six Weeks Session closes
August 20, Friday Final	Examinations Nine Weeks Session
August 20, Friday	Nine Weeks Session closes

FIRST SEMESTER

Sept. 27, 28, 29, Mon., Tues., Wed. Freshman days and Registration
September 28, TuesdayRegistration of students previously entered and transfers from other institutions
September 29, Wednesday, forenoon Registration of Freshmen
September 29, Wednesday, afternoon Registration concluded
September 30, Thursday Recitations begin
November 25, 26, Thursday, Friday
December 17, Friday
January 3, MondayClasses resume
February 4, Friday Class work ends
February 7-11, Monday to Friday Final Examinations
February 11, Friday First Semester closes

SECOND SEMESTER

Feb. 14, 15, Monday, Tuesday Registration for Second Semester
February 16, Wednesday Recitations begin
June 2, Friday Class work ends
June 4, Sunday Baccalaureate
June 5-9, Monday to Friday
June 9, Friday
June 10, Saturday Alumni Day
June 10, Saturday

Faculty

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

JOHN M. MUNSON, Ph.B., M.Ed., LL.D. PRESIDENT

- CLEMENS P. STEIMLE REGISTRAR A.B., Michigan State Normal College
- JAMES M. BROWN B.S., Colgate; Harvard; Michigan
- SUSAN BURCH HILL DEAN OF WOMEN B.S., Minnesota ; A.M., Columbia ; Columbia

PROFESSORS AND HEADS OF DEPARTMENTS

- LESLIE ANDERSON BUTLER EDUCATION Director Laboratory Schools and Placement; Ph.B., Chicago; A.M., Columbia; M.Ed., Michigan State Normal College; LL.D., Alma
- SIMON E. FAGERSTROM A.B., Augustana; A.M., Chicago; Ph.D., Michigan
- NOBLE LEE GARRISON EDUCATION Director of Elementary Education; A.B., A.M., Missouri: Ph.D., Columbia

ORLO M. GILL ART B.S., Michigan State Normal College; Wicker School of Fine Arts, Detroit; Chicago Art Institute; Michigan

*Deceased November 22, 1941.

THEODORE LINDQUIST
CLARENCE M. LOESELL
FRANCIS E. LORD
JOSEPH H. MCCULLOCH
FREDERICK B. MCKAY
HAYDN M. MORGAN MUSIC Director of Conservatory of Music; B.S.M., A.M., New York University
JOHN HENRY OWENS
GERALD D. SANDERS
HARRY L. SMITH
GLENADINE C. SNOW DIRECTOR OF HEALTH SERVICE B.S., Kalamazoo College; M.D., Michigan
JOHN C. SPRINGMAN A.B., Michigan State Normal College; LL.B., La Salle; A.M., Wayne; Wisconsin
TROY L. STEARNS
*HABVEY LEONARD TURNER EDUCATION Director of Rural Education; A.M., Ph.D., Peabody
HORACE Z. WILBER EDUCATION, PHILOSOPHY Director of Extension Education; Director of Summer Ses- sion; A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.B., A.M., Mich- igan; Michigan

GEORGE A. WILLOUGHBY INDUSTRIAL ARTS B.S., E.E., Michigan State College; A.M., Michigan; Michigan

*Absent on leave.

PROFESSORS

BLANCHE F. EMERY
CHARLES FREDERICK HARROLD
JENNINGS R. HICKMAN ZOOLOGY A.B., Salem; A.M., Ph.D., Michigan; Obio; Indiana; Cornell; Columbia
PAUL E. HUBBELL
EGBERT RAYMOND ISBELL
JACOB W. KELDER
JOSEPH P. KELLY A.B., Grinnell; Cornell; A.M., Ph.D., Iowa
LLOYD W. OLDS
ELTON J. RYNEARSON PHYSICAL EDUCATION B.S., Michigan State Normal College; School of Medicine, Michigan
PAUL B. SAMSON PHYSICAL EDUCATION B.P.E., M.P.E., International Y. M. C. A. College, Springfield, Massachusetts; Columbia
MEHRAN K. THOMSON A.B., A.M., Wesleyan University; B.D., Yale; Ph.D., Hart- ford Foundation; Columbia; Yale; California; Wesleyan Uni- versity; Harvard
FRANK WHITEHOUSE
ASSOCIATE PROFESSORS

M. ESTHER BALLEW ENGLISH A.B., Illinois Wesleyan; A.M., Illinois; Radcliffe; Harvard; Columbia; Chicago

RUTH L. BOUGHNER PHYSICAL EDUCATION B.S., Michigan State Normal College; M.S., Michigan; Michi- gan
ELISABETH CAREY
IRENE O. CLARK
MARTHA ELIZABETH CURTIS
LLOYD E. DEVOL
FLORENCE ECKERT
FLOY LOUISA EDSON SPEECH Graduate, Minneapolis School of Dramatic Art; B.S., North- western; A.M., Columbia; Michigan
CARL M. ERIKSON MATHEMATICS A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Ph.D., Michigan
ANNA WINIFRED FIELD
MARY E. HATTON INDUSTRIAL ARTS B.S., A.M., Columbia
WINSTON L. HOLE
CLARA KELLY HOME ECONOMICS B.S., Illinois Women's College; A.M., Chicago; Columbia
CARL LINDEGREN MUSIC Pupil of Gustaf Holmquist, Albert Boroff, Theodore Harrison, Dr. Arthur Mees, and Herbert Witherspoon
MARIAN W. MAGOON
WALLACE HERBERT MAGOON
JANET MYERS
LURENE M. PROUSE PHYSICAL EDUCATION B.S., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan; Michi-

FACULTY

A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Columbia; stu- dent, Alliance Francaise, Paris; Berlin
JOHN A. SELLERS A.B., Manchester College; A.M., Ph.D., Illinois
GRACE M. SKINNER
ELLA M. SMITH
MARION FRANKLIN STOWE
ELINOR M. STRAFER ART Student, Cincinnati Art Academy; New York National Acad- emy; B.S., Columbia; student, Andrea L'Hote, Paris; Hans Hoffman, Munich; Ernest Thurn, Gloucester, Mass.
HELEN FINCH SWETE ART Graduate, Art Institute of Chicago; Broadmoor Art Academy; student, Cumming School of Art; pupil of Robert Reid, John Carlson, Charles Hawthorne, and Henry McCarter
EULA MAY UNDERBRINK
BEN H. VANDEN BELT EDUCATION Principal Lincoln Consolidated School; Assistant Director Teacher Training; A.B., Central State Teachers College; A.M., Michigan
DONNABEL M. KEYS VOSSLER
ASSISTANT PROFESSORS
JOHN RICHARD ALDEN
LILLIAN A. ASHBY
RUTH A. BABNES ENGLISH A.B., Michigan State Normal College; California; Western Reserve; A. M., Michigan; Johns Hopkins
HOWARD BLACKENBURG

OTLACES

r

L. LUCRETIA CASE LATIN A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan; Ameri- can Academy, Rome; Michigan; Middlebury
DUANE CHAMBERLAIN INDUSTRIAL ARTS B.S., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan
GRACE COOPER
LEONARD PAUL ELLIOTT PHYSICS B.S., M.S., Kansas State College; Ph.D., Kansas
ANTHONY ENGELSMAN POLITICAL SCIENCE A.B., Hope College; A.M., Michigan; Michigan
FRED J. ERICSON
JAMES L. GABBARD
MAUD HAGLE
HILDA T. HARPSTER
AUGUSTA HARRIS
MYRA O. HERRICK A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan; Palmer School of Business Writing, Chicago
HARRY E. HOY B.S., A.M., Ph.D., Nebraska; Illinois
DOBOTHY JAMES MUSIC Graduate, Chicago Musical College; M.M., American Conser- vatory of Music; Eastman; Chicago Musical College; Mich- igan
HOOVER H. JORDON
JAMES WILLIAM KEBCHEVAL A.B., Iowa State Teachers College; M.S., Iowa; Colorado; Ph.D., Iowa

B.Ed., Northern Illinois State Teachers College; A.M., Ph.D., Iowa A.B., A.M., Ph.D., Princeton J. BELLE MORRISON INDUSTRIAL ARTS B.S., Michigan State Normal College; Columbia; Academy of Fine Arts, Chicago A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Columbia; Clark MYRON T. STURGEON GEOLOGY A.B., Mt. Union College; Ph.D., Ohio State University RACHEL UNVITS NATURAL SCIENCE A.B., California ; A.M., Ph.D., Michigan ELIZABETH WARREN HISTORY A.B., Carleton College; A.M., Ph.D., Northwestern A.B., A.M., Mississippi; Columbia; George Washington University A.B., Indiana; A.M., Michigan; student in Curso de Verano Para Extranjeros, Madrid, Spain, and University of Grenoble. France A.B., Illinois; A.M., Wisconsin; Iowa; Michigan

INSTRUCTORS

- EMILY MUTTER ADAMS MUSIC Instructor in Violin; Student, University of Michigan School of Music; Busch Conservatory, Chicago; American Conservatory, Chicago; Pupil of Otaker Sevcik and Jacques Gordon, Concertmeister of Chicago Orchestra

- JOHN P. CORNISH A.B., A.M., Wayne; Detroit Society of Arts and Crafts; Cranbrook Academy of Art

- MYRA E. GRATTAN B.S., Michigan State Normal College; Michigan
- WILLARD ANDERSON HANNA ENGLISH A.B., Wooster; A.M., Ohio State; Ph.D., Michigan

- ALLEN LYLE MISEREZ ENGLISH A.B., Michigan; A.M., Chicago

FACULTY OF LABORATORY SCHOOLS

Faculty of Roosevelt School

- LEONARD W. MENZI Assistant Director Teacher Training; A.B., A.M., Chicago: Michigan
- WILLIAM F. WILCOX Assistant Principal; A.B., A.M., Michigan
- *LILLIAN A. ASHBY B.Mus. (Hon.), Adrian College Conservatory; B.S., A.M., Columbia; Columbia

*Also a teacher on the College Faculty.

*DUANE CHAMBERLAIN INDUSTRIAL ARTS B.S., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan ENGLISH-FRENCH RUSSELL COSPER A.B., Western State Teachers College; A.M., Michigan A.B., Missouri ; A.M., Columbia LAWRENCE DEBOER SOCIAL SCIENCE A.B., Hope College; A.M., Chicago; Michigan Ph.B., Chicago; Wooster College; M.S., Chicago LOUIS A. GOLCZYNSKI BIOLOGICAL AND GENERAL SCIENCE A.B., Michigan State Normal College; M.S., Michigan; Michigan A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan B.S., A.M., Columbia : Columbia THELMA JENNIE HUNT LATIN AND ENGLISH A.B., A.M., Michigan; Michigan; California *MATT LAPPINEN INDUSTRIAL ARTS B.S., Stout Institute ; Michigan M. THELMA MCANDLESS ENGLISH B.S., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan; Michigan Kindergarten Training School; Alma; New York University; Harvard ELEANOR MESTON B.S., A.M., Columbia ANNETTA MONBOE B.S., A.M., Columbia *JANET MYERS B.S., Chicago; A.M., Columbia; Columbia; George Washington University VERA O. NORTH A.B., A.M., Michigan; Michigan State College

*Also a teacher on the College Faculty.

C. GERTRUDE PHELPS
*D. CHESTER RYAN MUSIC Instructor in Band Instruments; Director Normal College Band; A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan
MARGARET M. ROBINSON A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan
SUSAN W. STINSON
*HELEN FINCH SWETE ART Graduate, Art Institute of Chicago; Broadmoor Art Academy; Cumming School of Art; pupil of Robert Reid, John Carlson, Charles Hawthorne, and Henry McCarter
CHLOE M. TODD
ARTHUR D. WALKER PHYSICAL EDUCATION B.S., Michigan State Normal College ; A.M., Michigan
VIRGINIA WIELANDY
CORA V. WORTLEY
Faculty of Lincoln Consolidated School
BEN H. VANDEN BELT
H. S. PFEIFFEE
ALICE J. BEAL PHYSICAL EDUCATION B.S., Michigan State Normal College; M.S., Michigan; Co- lumbia
Helen R. Becker
RAY W. BINNS
PAULINE N. BRIMHALL HEALTH R.N., Iowa Wesleyan School of Nursing; B.S., Michigan

*Also a teacher on the College Faculty

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

IDA K. BRINK A.M., Iowa; California
RUTH I. BROWN A.B., Grinnell; A.M., Columbia; Chicago
RALPH D. BRUCE
LAWRENCE E. DUNNING
EMMA FEUERSTEIN
LELAND JACOBS A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan; Mich- igan
FAITH E. KIDDOO HOME ECONOMICS A.B., Iowa State Teachers College; Chicago; A.M., Columbia
GLADYS E. KIRSCHBAUM A.B., Central State Teachers College; A.M., Michigan
ELIZABETH A. KUSTERER
H. E. LAING AGRICULTURE, BIOLOGY, AND INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC B.S., Michigan State College; A.M., Michigan; Columbia; Ph.D., Michigan
FLOYD LEIB
MARY R. MARTIN
BEATRICE DOROTHY MCMANUS
ELIZABETH MILLER
GRACE W. MINK
MARY ETHEL O'CONNOR SIXTH GRADE B.S., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Michigan
CARL ALFRED RICE

ALICE J. ROSCOE GERMAN, ENGLISH A.B., Michigan State Normal College; A.M., Columbia; Mich- igan
CYNTHIA RUGGLES
EARL K. STUDT ELEMENTARY SCIENCE A.B., Michigan State Normal College; M.S., Michigan
M. BERNECE TOMPKINS
SADIE TOW
J. H. TURNBULL
MABEL E. TURNER
MARINUS VAN AMEYDE
Horace H. Rackham School of Special Education
[†] CHARLES M. ELLIOTT
*FEANOIS E. LORD
*MABEL LUCIEN BENTLEY
*ANNA M. BUNGER
*WILLIAM M. CRUICKSHANK
*GERTRUDE M. FLINT ORTHOPEDIO CLASS B.S., Detroit Teachers College; A.M., Columbia; Chicago

*Also a teacher on College Faculty †Deceased November 22, 1941

- *ORA MAE SWARTWOOD HARD OF HEARING B.S., Michigan State Normal College; Michigan; A.M., Columbia
- *BEATRICE D. WADE OCCUPATIONAL THERAPIST A.B., Iowa ; Bloomingdale Hospital, White Plains, N. Y.

Faculty of Affiliated City Schools

- VIRGINIA WIELANDY B.E., National College of Education; A.M., Northwestern

Faculty of Affiliated Rural Schools

ROGER MCFALL SPENCER SCHOOL B.S., Michigan State Normal College; Michigan

LIBRARY STAFF

*Also a teacher on the College Faculty

FREDERICK B. CLEVERINGA
DORIS E. MILLIMAN
MARJORIE L. MILLIMAN
BARBARA G. OWENS
MARTHA ROSENTRETER CATALOGING A.B., Michigan State Normal College; Library School, New York Public Library; A.M., Michigan
LIZZIE TRABILCOX
VENNERT D. HERED. VIOLAT ATE TOTAL

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES

Office of the Dean of Administration

EGBERT R. ISE	BELL, A.B., LL.B.,	A.M., Ph.D	Dean
CHRISTINA M.	MACDONALD		Office Manager

Office of the Registrar

CLEMENS P. STEIMLE, A.B.	Registrar
BESSIE WRIGHT Assistant	Registrar
GERTRUDE LETTER	Recorder

General Office

AGNES MORSE	Personnel Secretary
HELEN MCCALLA	. Financial Secretary
LYLETH TURNBULL	Stenographer-clerk
BLANCHE WALTERS KRESS	Stenographer-clerk
HAZEL ROOT	Stenographer-clerk
EDITH JOHN WALKER, B.S.	Stenographer-clerk
ALICE CLYNE	Stenographer-clerk
HELEN J. HEIDAMOS	Assistant Recorder
LYDIA BECKER	
- Se	cretary-Stenographer

Office of the Dean of Women

SUSAN B. HILL, A.M.	Dean o	of Women
FRANCES FARNHAM, A.MAssociate	Dean (of Women
FLORENCE L. LYMAN, A.M Assistant to the	Dean (of Women
EVA LINDSAY PARKERSecret	ary-Ste	nographer

Office of the Dean of Men

JAMES	М.	BROWN,	B.SDean of Men	
MARIE	E.	CHASE	Stenographer-clerk	

Placement Bureau

LESLIE A. BUTLER, A.M.	Director of Placements
MARJORIE DOTY BASSETT	Secretary-stenographer
MARIE E. CHASE	Stenographer-clerk

Laboratory Schools

LESLIE A. BUTLER, A.M.	Director of Laboratory Schools
ISABEL WASHBURN	Secretary-stenographer

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES

Extension Department

HORACE Z. WILBER, A.M.	Director
ALICE E. HOWSER, A.B Assistant	Director
ERMA MEGGISON JOSLYN	okkeeper
KATHRYN CROSSMAN Sten	ographer

Roosevelt School

LEONARD W. MENZI,	A.B., A.M	Principal
ISABEL WASHBURN		Secretary-stenographer

Welch Hall

Lincoln Consolidated School

BEN H. VANDENBELT, A.B., A.M. Principal JOANNE BARSACK Secretary-stenographer

Horace H. Rackham School of Special Education

FRANCIS E. LORD, Ph.D.	Director
HELEN HETMANSPERGER	Head resident, dormitory
ETHEL E. TAYLOR	Secretary-stenographer

Charles McKenny Hall

WILLIAM H. BROWNRIGG, A.M.	Manager
ELIZA B. EICHHOLTZ Assistant	Manager
LEETA BAIRD Secretary-ster	lographer

Health Residence

GLENADINE C. SNOW, B.S., M.D.	Director
DOROTHY E. SMITH, R.N. Her	ad Nurse
	nt Nurse

Residence Halls

LUCY A. ELLIOTT, A.M. Director

Julia Anne King Residence Hall

Bertha Goodison Residence Hall

John M. Munson Residence Hall

THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION

(Incorporated 1926)

Officers

President	LESLIE A. BUTLER
Vice-President	ALBERT A. RIDDERING
Secretary	HORACE Z. WILBER
Treasurer	CLEMENS P. STEIMLE

Directors

JOHN M. MUNSON, '03	Ex Officio
MRS. DESSALEE R. DUDLEY, '00	Term Expires June, 1942
MERLAND A. KOPKA, '14	Term Expires June, 1942
PERRY S. BRUNDAGE, '08	Term Expires June, 1942
LESLIE A. BUTLER, '00	Term Expires June, 1943
ALLEN F. SHERZER, '10	Term Expires June, 1943
ARTHUR G. ERICKSON, '03	Term Expires June, 1943
ROBERT E. BARBER, '92	Term Expires June, 1944
HORACE Z. WILBER, '02	Term Expires June, 1944
ALBERT A. RIDDERING, '10	Term Expires June, 1944

STUDENT AID CORPORATION

(Incorporated 1928)

Officers and Directors

L. A. BUTLER, President	Expires January, 1942
SUSAN B. HILL, Vice-President Term	Expires January, 1946
F. R. GORTON, Secretary-treasurer Term	Expires January, 1944
J. S. LATHERS Term	Expires January, 1943
D. L. QUIRK, JR Term	Expires January, 1945

Standing Committees

The President is a member of each committee. In each case the name of the Chairman appears first.

ASSEMBLIES-Sanders, Brown, Eppler, Hill, Morgan, Stowe

BOARD IN CONTROL OF ATHLETICS-Isbell, Brundage, Loesell, Mc-Culloch, Steimle, Willoughby

CO-OPERATIVE HOUSING-Farnham, Hill, Steimle

CLASSIFICATION AND ENBOLLMENT-Isbell, Fagerstrom, Garrison, Lord, McCulloch, Morgan, Steimle, Stearns, Willoughby

COMMENCEMENT-Wilber, Brown, Erikson, Hill, Sill, Olds, Rankin, Steimle

CURRICULUM—Munson, Isbell, Bauch, Butler, Garrison, McCulloch, Sanders, Steimle, Stearns

GRADUATE COUNCIL-Sanders, Garrison, Glasgow, Isbell, Lord

GRADUATION-Butler, Elliott, Bauch, Fagerstrom, Garrison, Stearns, Harpster, Field, Kelder, Gill, Willoughby, Morgan, McCulloch, Springman, Steimle

HEALTH RESIDENCE-Olds, Hill, Samson, Dr. Snow, Ballew

HONOBARY DEGREE-Andrews, Butler, Sanders, Smith

IRREGULAR PROGRAM-Whitehouse, Brown, Farnham, G. Marshall, Snow

LIBRARY-Andrews, Binns, Edson, Gill, Hagle, Glasgow

NORMAL COLLEGE NEWS-Erikson, Loesell, M. Magoon, Smith (H. L.)

ORGANIZATIONS AND ACTIVITIES—Wilber, Garrison, Best, Kelder, Olds, Rankin, Sabourin, Smith (Ella), Snow, Stinson, Dean of Men, Dean of Women

PLACEMENT-Mr. Butler, with heads of departments as advisory members

REPRESENTATIVES ON AURORA BOARD-MCKay, Gill, Harris, Stowe. Springman

REPRESENTATIVE ON FORENSIC BOARD-MCKay

Social Life—Olds, Aitchison, Ashby, Hagle, C. Kelly, Vossler, Glasgow, Loesell, Lyman, Meston, Snow, Wilber, Dean of Men, Dean of Women

Michigan State Normal College

LOCATION

Michigan State Normal College is located at Ypsilanti, Michigan, on the main line of the Michigan Central Railroad, over which it is readily accessible from all points on the various divisions of that system. Bus lines pass through the college campus giving communication every hour with Detroit, Ann Arbor, Jackson, and intermediate points, and make connections with the various roads entering those cities. Almost three million people, sixty per cent of Michigan's total population, live within fifty miles of Ypsilanti.

HISTORY

The Michigan State Normal College, (originally Michigan State Normal School) was created by an act of the Legislature in the spring of 1849, located in the fall of the same year at Ypsilanti by the State Board of Education, and in the fall of 1852, the first building having been completed, the school was opened. It was the first state normal school in Michigan, the first west of the Alleghenies, and the sixth in the United States.

The Legislature defined the purpose of the school to be: "the instruction of persons, both male and female, in the art of teaching and in all the various branches that pertain to a good common school education. Also to give instruction in the mechanic arts, and in the arts of husbandry and agricultural chemistry; in the fundamental laws of the United States, and in what regards the rights and duties of citizens."

The provisions regarding agricultural education, it seems, were never attempted. Instead the State in 1855 founded the Agricultural School at Lansing and this institution, operating under the State Board of Education until 1861, took over the functions at first prescribed for the school at Ypsilanti, and has since been under the control of the State Board of Agriculture.

With the growth of the state the public school system enlarged in scope and the functions of the Normal School enlarged with it. The purpose of the institution was re-stated, therefore, by the Legislature in 1889: "The purpose of the Normal School shall be the instruction of persons in the art of teaching and in all the various branches pertaining to the public schools of the state of Michigan."

The Legislature of 1897 authorized the State Board of Education to designate the school (in the courses leading to life certificates and degrees) as Michigan State Normal College and in 1899 made the latter its legal name.

SCOPE OF INSTRUCTION

An examination of the curricula, details of which are given in this catalog, will show that the college offers courses in preparation for all types of public school service. It gives preparation for supervisory and administrative positions and for the teaching of the various subjects offered in the high school and elementary school.

The Michigan State Normal College has been designated by the State Board of Education to be the one of the four Teachers Colleges to prepare teachers of home economics in accordance with the provisions of the Smith-Hughes act. It is also the school designated to give paramount instruction in that special education which deals with certain types of handicapped children.

STUDENT LIFE

Administrative Ideals

The college looks upon the education of youth as a co-operative enterprise in which students and teachers mutually engage. Knowledge cannot be passed on from one to another but is rather something to be acquired through individual effort. The business of the teacher is to stimulate, direct and co-operate with the students in their individual endeavor to acquire that something which we call education, consequently there should be understanding and cordial relations between teachers and students.

The college also believes that in their social life students should be allowed the largest possible freedom and initiative, but that in this field as in the field of studies there should be co-operation between faculty and students. The college has found through years of experience that students respond whole-heartedly to this ideal of co-operation.

The college authorities appreciate the solicitude which parents feel when they send their sons and daughters away to school, and they also appreciate the great responsibility which a college assumes in the care and training of the young men and women who come to it. No subject is given more serious consideration by the faculty of the Normal College than the physical and moral welfare of its students.

Freshman Days, September 27-29, 1942

Members of the incoming freshman class are required to be present during the period known as Freshman Days. At this time each freshman is given a great deal of individual attention and the best possible start in a college career. Talks on the curricula open to students and on various phases of college life are given by administrative officers and other members of the faculty. "Campus Sisters" and "Fellowship Group of the Men's Union" acquaint students with college traditions and offer a program of social

STUDENT LIFE

activities which prevent home-sickness and establish those friendly relations which are characteristic of the College.

Dean of Women

The Dean of Women and her assistants take a direct interest in all matters pertaining to the college life of women students, and in personal emergencies on which they need friendly advice.

Dean of Men

The activities of the men students of this campus are guided by the Dean of Men who always takes a personal interest in solving their many problems.

Health Service

The Health Service of the college is under the direction of the Head of the Health Education Department and a staff of assistants.

Every student is given a physical examination each year. The college physician has a conference with those found with handicaps and advises them as to treatment.

Students who are absent from classes because of illness are reported each day to the Health Residence.

The Health Residence is open for consultation and treatment on school days from 9:00 A.M.-12:00 and 2:00 P.M.-5:00 P.M., and on Saturdays from 9:00 A.M.-12:00. Emergencies may be taken care of at any time, day or night.

Students are allowed two weeks hospitalization in Health Residence without charge. If, in serious illness, an outside doctor, nurse or technician is called, the student is responsible for the expense.

An eye clinic is held weekly at Health Residence under the direction of a specialist.

LIVING ACCOMMODATIONS

Residence Halls for Women

The Julia Anne King Residence Hall and the Bertha Goodison Residence Hall together accommodate four hundred women. These halls, which are conveniently located with reference to the library and class rooms, provide students with a reasonably priced, attractively furnished, and well governed residence where they will enjoy the influence of a cultured home and a program of worthwhile activities.

Each suite consists of two rooms, bedroom and study, and each is planned for two occupants. Furniture and arrangements are designed for the convenience of students. Telephones serve all study rooms. Students provide their own bed linens, blankets, bed covers and towels. The charge for living in a dormitory is \$162.00 per semester, payable in two installments of \$81.00. A required deposit of \$1.00 for key is refunded for the return of the key at the close of the year.

An application form is obtained through the Office of the Dean of Women. An advance deposit of \$5.00, payable to the Michigan State Normal College in the form of a draft or money order, must be paid by each student when application for reservation of a room is made. This payment will be refunded at the end of the college year, less any damage to the room and furniture. If an applicant for whom a room has been reserved finds it necessary to cancel her reservation, the deposit fee is refunded only if notice is received before September 1. The College reserves all rights concerning the assignment or reassignment of rooms or the termination of their occupancy.

Students may secure rooms in the dormitories at the opening of the second semester, provided there are vacancies.

A bulletin containing full details may be had from the Dean of Women on request.

Rooming Houses for Women

The Dean of Women will furnish a list of rooms. Students who are not in dormitories are required to live in approved rooming houses. Women students furnish their own towels, bed linen, and blankets. Some rooms are rented with the privilege of light housekeeping.

Students may move during the semester only by permission of the Dean of Women. If a woman student wishes to move at the end of the semester, arrangements must be made with both the Dean of Women and the householder twenty-one days before the end of the semester. Half of the rent is paid during winter and spring vacations.

Social Regulations

Social regulations for women students are recorded in the handbook, "Information for Women Students and Householders."

Residence Hall for Men

The John M. Munson Residence Hall accommodates 200 men. This building is centrally located and planned especially for the convenience of the student. Each suite consists of two rooms, bedroom and study, and each is planned for two occupants. Telephones serve all study rooms. Students provide their own bed linen, blankets, bed covers and towels.

A grill and lunch room serves short orders to occupants of the residence hall. Regular meals may be had at Charles McKenny hall nearby. The charge for living quarters in the dormitory is \$54.00 per semester, payable in two installments of \$27.00.

A required deposit of \$1.00 for key is refunded for the return of the key at the close of the year.

An application form is obtained through the office of the Dean of Men. An advance deposit of \$5.00 payable to Michigan State Normal College in the form of a draft or money order must be made by each student when application for reservation of a room is made. This payment will be refunded at the end of the college year less any damage to the room and furniture. If an applicant for whom a room has been reserved finds it necessary to cancel his reservation, the deposit fee is refunded only if notice is received before September 1. The college reserves all rights concerning the assignment or re-assignment of rooms or the termination of their occupancy.

Students may secure rooms in the dormitory at the opening of the second semester, provided there are vacancies.

Rooming Houses for Men

All men students of the college not housed in the Residence Hall live in private homes that are on the approved list. A list of these approved rooming houses may be obtained from the Dean of Men, and any student coming to the college for the first time should obtain one of these lists before securing his room for the school year.

Students may move during the semester only by permission of the Dean of Men. If a student wishes to move at the end of the semester, arrangements must be made with both the Dean of Men and the householder twenty-one days before the end of the semester. Half of the rent is paid during the winter and spring vacations.

Board for Men and Women

The Cafeteria in Charles McKenny Hall serves college students. There are lunch rooms and restaurants near the campus.

Self-Help for Men and Women

Employment for students is handled through the office of the Dean of Men and of the Dean of Women. Students interested in earning money with which to pay in part their expenses will be given advice and detailed information upon application. Students are urged not to come to the College unless they have at the time of entering enough money for the expenses of the first semester. Opportunities for self-support naturally increase as a student progresses through college.

Loan Funds

It is the policy of the Michigan State Normal College to assist every capable student who desires an education. The various loan funds are under the supervision of the Board of Directors of the Student Aid Corporation. For further information refer to the section in the last part of this catalog describing the funds.

Placement Bureau

The College maintains a Placement Service which aims:

1. To enable school authorities in search of teachers to make appropriate selection among the graduating classes and alumni of the college.

2. To assist students and alumni to secure suitable positions.

The Placement Bureau has complete and accurate information concerning all persons registered with it. It seeks to do full justice to candidates and school authorities alike. School authorities are invited to visit Ypsilanti, see the students at work, and make selections of teachers after a personal interview. All letters of inquiry will receive careful attention.

Fees

Regular Semester of Eighteen Weeks**

	Residents of Michigan	Non-residents*
Tuition Other fees		\$30.00 18.50
Total	\$33.50	\$48.50

Summer Session of Six Weeks

	Residents of Michigan	Non-residents*
Tuition	\$6.00 8.00	\$10.00 8.00
Total	\$14.00	\$18.00

**Students carrying irregular program will pay tuition and fees as follows:

	Residents	Non-Residents
One, two or three semester hours	\$15.00	\$18.00
Four, five or six semester hours		30.50
Seven, eight or nine semester hours		36.50
More than nine semester hours	33.50	48.50

In determining tuition charge, non-credit courses such as physical training and handwriting shall be regarded as the equivalent of two semester hours.

*Residence in Michigan for the purpose of registration shall be deter-

Summer Session of Nine Weeks

Residents of Michigan attending the nine weeks summer session will pay \$17.00; non-residents \$23.00.

LATE REGISTRATION FEE-\$2.00. A late registration fee is charged those students who, for any cause, do not complete registration within the hours, and on the day officially set apart for such registration. Registration is not complete until the fees are paid.

GRADUATION FEES:

Graduation Fee (may include diploma and certificate)	\$3.00
Provisional certificate	\$3.00
State Limited Certificate	\$2.00

Refund of Fees

Refunds for the regular semester of eighteen weeks will be granted as follows:

- 1. No refund will be granted unless applied for within one month after withdrawal.
- 2. A student who withdraws not more than two weeks after registration will be entitled to a refund of the entire semester fee.
- 3. A student who withdraws more than two weeks and less than four weeks after registration will be entitled to a refund of one-half the semester fee.
- 4. A student who withdraws more than four weeks and not later than eight weeks after registration will be entitled to a refund of 40 percent of the semester fee.

Refunds for the summer session of six weeks will be granted as follows:

- 1. No refund will be granted unless applied for within one month after withdrawal.
- A student who withdraws not more than one week after 2. registration will be entitled to a refund of the entire fee.

mined according to the State constitutional provision governing the residence of electors (See Article III, Sections 1 and 2), that is, no one shall be deemed a resident of Michigan for the purpose of registration in the Normal College unless he has resided in this state six months next preceding the date of his proposed enrollment, and no person shall be deemed to have gained or lost a residence in this state while a student in the Normal College.

The residence of minors shall follow that of the legal guardian. The residence of wives shall follow that of the husband.

The residence of wives shall follow that of the husband. Persons of other countries who have taken out their first citizenship papers and who have otherwise met these requirements for residence, shall be regarded as eligible for registration as residents of Michigan. It shall be the duty of every student at registration, if there he any possible question to his right to legal residence in Michigan under rules

stated above, to raise the question with the registration officer and have such question passed upon and settled previous to registration.

- 3. A student who withdraws more than a week and less than two weeks after the beginning of the session will be entitled to a refund of one-half of the fee.
- 4. A student who withdraws more than two weeks and not later than three weeks after the beginning of the session will be entitled to a refund of 40 per cent of the fee.

Estimate of Expenses

An estimate of expenses for one semester is as follows:	
Board, 18 weeks \$99.00 to	\$108.00
Room 45.00 to	54.00
Laundry 7.50 to	12.50
Books and stationery 12.00 to	15.00
Registration and other fees 33.50 to	48.50
Total	\$238.00

ADMISSION TO MICHIGAN STATE NORMAL COLLEGE

Admission on Certificate

A graduate of a four-year high school, accredited by the University of Michigan, will be admitted to Michigan State Normal College, provided he is recommended* by the principal of the high school, and meets conditions indicated below.

1. Prescribed Preparatory Work

A minimum of fifteen units is required for admission. Among these must be included certain major and minor sequences from the five groups of subjects listed below, a major sequence consisting of three or more units, a minor sequence consisting of two or two and one-half units.

A minimum of four sequences must be presented, which must include a major sequence from Group A and at least one other major sequence. Not more than one of these required sequences will be accepted from any one group except Group B. Sequences may be presented from two languages.

- A. English. A major sequence of three or more units.
- B. Foreign Language Group.

A major sequence consists of three or more units of a single language, a minor sequence consists of two or two and one-half units of a single language. The foreign languages acceptable for a sequence are Greek, Latin, French, German, and Spanish.

C. Mathematics-Physics Group.

A minor sequence in this group must include 1 unit of Algebra and 1 unit of Geometry. A major sequence is formed by adding to this minor sequence one or more from the following:

Advanced Algebra 1/2 or 1 unit, Solid Geometry 1/2 unit, Trigonometry 1/2 unit, Physics 1 unit,

D. Science Group.

Any two units selected from the following constitute a minor sequence and any three or more units constitute a major sequence.

¹ Physics 1 unit	Zoology 1 unit
Chemistry 1 unit	Biology (Botany 1/2 unit
Botany 1 unit	and Zoology 1/2 unit) 1 unit

^{*}It is expected that the principal will recommend not all graduates, but only those whose character, scholarship interests and attainments, seriousness of purpose, and intellectual promise are so clearly superior that the school is willing to stand sponsor for their success. The grade required for recommendation should be distinctly higher than that for graduation. 1. Physics may not be counted in both Groups C and D.

If biology is counted in these sequences neither Botany nor Zoology can be counted.

E. Social Studies Group.

> A total of two or two and one-half units selected from the following constitutes a minor sequence, a total of three or more units a major sequence.

Ancient History 1 unit

*European History 1, 11/2 unit, or 2 units

⁸American History ½ or 1 unit

*American Government 1/2 unit

*Economics 1/4 unit

The remaining units, required to make up the necessary fifteen units, are entirely elective from among the subjects listed above and from any others which are counted toward graduation by the accredited school.

The Registrar shall have the authority, with the consent and approval of the departments of instruction most immediately concerned, to accept other courses as substitutes for certain of the units listed in the various groups. Only courses well organized and competently taught will be considered and any school desiring the privilege of such substitution for its graduates should furnish the Registrar with detailed descriptions.

2. Admission by Examination

The fifteen units required for admission by examination must all be chosen from the five groups listed above and must meet the prescribed sequence requirement.

3. Partial Certificate—Partial Examination Plan

This plan is available only to a graduate of an accredited high school whose principal is willing to recommend him in a part of the required fifteen units. The candidate may at the discretion of the Registrar be admitted on the basis of the principal's recommendation covering the units satisfactorily completed plus examination covering the units in which he is deficient. For this purpose examinations will be provided only in the subjects listed in the five groups.

Entrance Examinations

Applicants for admission who are not entitled to enter on certificate and who wish to take the entrance examinations should make definite arrangements with the Registrar at least one month in advance of the dates set for the examinations. Entrance examinations will be held July 14 and September 8.

English History may be included under European History. Half units in the social studies are acceptable as part of a sequence 3. only if taken in the 11th or 12th grade.

ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS

Admission with Advanced Credit

Students from other normal schools, colleges or universities who desire to transfer their credits to the Michigan State Normal College must submit properly certified standings. These standings. when indicating work of a rank equal to that of this institution, entitle the student to advanced credit.

Applications for advanced credit must be presented upon entrance or before and include the following:

(1) An official transcript from the institution or institutions previously attended showing courses pursued, the credits in semester or term hours, and final grades;

(2) An official transcript from the high school or other secondary school from which the applicant had been graduated unless such record is included in the college transcript submitted.

Note:--Credits once adjusted and settled will be reopened only for exceptional reasons. No student, having once enrolled at Michigan State Normal College, may receive credit here for work done elsewhere, subsequently, in extension or by correspondence unless he shall have been given written permission by this institution in advance to take such work.

STANDARDS AND POLICIES

The College Year

The college year is divided into two semesters of eighteen weeks each and a summer session of six weeks. Students may enroll at the opening of any semester or session. The calendar is printed at the beginning of this catalog.

Credits*

The unit of work and of credit is the "semester hour." A semester hour is the credit granted in a course reciting once a week for eighteen weeks.

Grades**

The grades used by the College with their corresponding values in points are as follows:

Grade	Significance	or Points emester h	
A	Exceptionally high order	3	
В	Distinctly above the average	2	
C	Average	1	
D	Below average	0	
E	Unsatisfactory		
I	Incomplete		
W	Withdrawal		

*Credits earned by correspondence or extension study are not accorded honor points.

Credits earned here on the "term hour" basis are converted into "semes-ter hours" by multiplying by 5/8.

**The following regulations govern examinations:

- No student may receive credit in any course who has not taken the I. final examination in that course.
- The student will take the examination with his own class and at II. the hour indicated on the schedule.
- III. Should illness or other valid cause (during the examination period) prevent the student from taking an examination, the following procedure is provided :

 - (a) The student will report the facts at once to the Registrar who will inform the instructor concerned.
 (b) On notification from the Registrar the instructor will assign the student the grade X, indicating "no final examination" and will so report it on the class roster transmitted to the Registrar at the close of the semester. (c) If the student desires to remove the grade X, thus acquired, he
 - will apply at once in writing to the Dean of Administration, requesting a special examination and stating fully reasons therefor.
 - (d) If the request is approved the Dean of Administration will (a) If the reduct is approved the Dean of Administration with arrange with the instructor for a special examination to be given the student during the first month of the next semester.
 (e) In case the grade X be not removed as outlined above it shall automatically become grade E, denoting failure.
- The student who for any reason does not take the final examina tion, and who does not proceed as outlined under III above will be IV. assigned the grade E denoting failure.

STANDARDS AND POLICIES

"Incomplete" applies to work of acceptable quality when the full amount is not done because of illness, necessary absence, or other satisfactory reasons. It is never applied to poor work. An "Incomplete" must be completed within one month after the beginning of the following semester; otherwise, the course will be recorded as of grade E.

The grade of W will be given only when the Dean of Administration issues an official drop slip. If a student withdraws from a class without securing the drop slip, the grade of E will be given.

The grade of E or W can be removed only by repeating the course.

This system of grades went into effect at the beginning of the fall term, 1925. Each hour of credit earned prior to that date is reckoned as of grade C for those purposes for which C average is required.

Scholarship Index

The total number of points acquired divided by the total number of semester hours taken gives the scholarship index (courses repeated will be counted each time taken).

Standard for Graduation

No student will be graduated on any curriculum if his scholarship index based on the work of that curriculum is less than 1.0.

When Application for Graduation is Made

A candidate for graduation must make application for graduation as follows: For graduation in February, not later than November 15; for graduation in June, not later than March 15; for graduation in August, not later than July 15. An application blank may be obtained at the General Office on payment of the graduation fee.

Graduation Without Certificate

The primary function of the Michigan State Normal College is the preparation of teachers for the public schools of Michigan. The State Board of Education, realizing that all students are not fitted by ability and interest for the teaching profession, has made it possible for students to graduate with a degree without a certificate. Students wishing to pursue courses under this arrangement should refer to the Suggested Programs for Students Not Preparing for Teaching, and consult with the advisers named. See Appendix.

Standard Student Load

The standard student load shall be fifteen hours a week; the student may take not more than sixteen hours nor less than twelve hours without special permission. During the summer session the standard student load shall be five hours; the student may take not more than six nor less than four without special permission. In computing the standard load, required courses in physical training and handwriting are not counted in semester hours.

Irregular Program

Petition for an irregular program must be made in writing. Blanks for this purpose may be obtained in the office of the Dean of Administration.

A. CLASS LOAD

No student may enroll for more than sixteen semester hours, or for less than twelve semester hours without the approval of the Committee on Irregular Program. No credit will be given for work in excess of the amount so approved.

B. STUDENTS EMPLOYED PART TIME

A student planning to carry work, for remuneration or otherwise, in addition to the school program, must have such arrangement approved by the Committee on Irregular Program before classifying.

Policy Governing Irregular Program

1. No student adjudged physically unfit will be permitted to carry an increased load.

2. No student who has earned less than fifteen semester hours of credit in residence at this institution is eligible to carry more than sixteen semester hours.

3. No freshman is permitted to carry more than sixteen semester hours.

4. No student whose cumulative scholarship index is less than 1.5 will be eligible to carry more than sixteen semester hours. The index for the semester immediately preceding must be at least 2.0.

5. A student who in addition to his school program is employed part time will be required to carry a reduced load in case it is clear that the student's health or the quality of his work demands it.

Dropping Subjects

A student should not classify for full work and expect to drop subjects later, if necessary, to avoid failure. A student, after his program has been approved, is not permitted to drop a subject nor to take up an additional subject without the approval of the Chairman of the Committee on Classification.

Withdrawal by Request

The College exerts every effort to enable the student to make his work a success and expects fullest cooperation to that end. If after sufficient opportunity it appears that the student can not.

42

or does not, profit by membership in this institution, he will be requested to withdraw.

It is taken for granted that no young man or young woman who is expecting to teach in our public schools will be guilty of unmanly or unwomanly conduct. No personal effort will be spared in assisting students in every possible way, but those who are manifestly lacking in the essentials of good character will be requested, whenever the evidence of their unfitness is complete, to withdraw.

Financial Obligations

A student is eligible for registration or for graduation only after all his financial obligations with the college have been met. Report of grades, transcript of credits, or other statements of record will be withheld should the student be in arrears at the close of any semester.

Assemblies

As a part of the regular school program students will attend assemblies as listed on the schedule of classes and any others which may be called by the Administration. The student will arrange his school program and other employment so that the assembly hours are open. Any student having a program conflicting with the assembly program will confer at once with the Dean of Men or the Dean of Women.

Honors Courses

Honors Courses are offered in several departments to qualified seniors specializing in these departments. The purpose of these courses is to encourage creative interest, subject investigation, and permit overviews of subject matter fields. Students eligible for honors courses should consult with the heads of the departments concerned.

PURPOSE AND CONTROL OF MICHIGAN STATE TEACHERS COLLEGES

The Constitution of the State of Michigan (Act XI, Sec. 10) places the State Teachers Colleges under the authority of the State Board of Education subject to such regulations as may be prescribed by the Legislature. In 1903 (Public Acts 203) the Legislature decreed: "The State Board of Education is hereby authorized and required to prescribe the courses of study for students, to grant such diplomas and degrees and issue such licenses and certificates to the graduates of the several normal schools of the state as said State Board of Education shall determine."

From time to time the Legislature has also defined the objectives and scope of work of the Teachers Colleges. It has repeatedly declared that the purpose of these institutions "shall be the instruction of persons in the art of teaching and in all the various branches pertaining to the public schools of the state of Michigan" (Act 139, P. A. 1850; Act 192, P. A. 1889; Act 51, P. A. 1899).

The public school system, less than a century old, has developed from the meager rudiments which satisfied the frontier settlements to the enlarged and complex organization which attempts to meet the needs of today-a day which faces the solution of social, political, and economic problems of fundamental significance. Only honest, intelligent, and well-informed citizens can cope with such problems. Such citizens it is the first duty of our public schools to produce. Only honest, intelligent, well educated, and devoted teachers are adequate to meet these enlarged duties and responsibilities-the day of the mere school-keeper is gone. The problem of training such teachers has increased in scope and complexity, but to meet these problems the State Board of Education and the faculties of the Teachers Colleges have constantly applied themselves, keeping in mind always the two purposes which, since the founding of the State, have been sustained not only by legislative authority but which have the sanction of all educational experience as well. The Michigan State Teachers Colleges, therefore, have always stood and do now stand for two things paramount and inseparable in an institution for the training of teachers:

- A thorough grounding in such fields of study as may lead to the intellectual growth of the student.
- A thorough grounding in the science and art of teaching attained by sufficient actual teaching under direction.

SUBJECT GROUPINGS

The Instructional Departments of the State Teachers Colleges of Michigan are classified in Groups as follows:

Group I.-Language and Literature

Ancient Language and Literature; Modern Language and Literature; English Language and Literature; certain courses as indicated in the Department of Speech.

Group II.-Science

Astronomy; Anatomy; Botany; Chemistry; Geography; Geology; Mathematics; Physics; Physiology; Hygiene; Psychology; Zoology; certain courses as indicated in Agriculture.

Group III.-Social Science

History; Political Science; Philosophy; Economics; Sociology.

Group IV .- Education

Education (includes methods courses and practice teaching).

Group V.-Fine Arts Art; Music.

Group VI.—Practical Arts Commerce; Home Economics; Industrial Arts; School Library.

Group VII.—Physical Education and Health Education Physical Education; Health Education.

OBJECTIVES AND GENERAL SCOPE OF CURRICULA

- A. The program of study outlined for the first and second years in the curricula of the Michigan State Teachers Colleges is organized to serve, among others, the following purposes:
 - 1. To provide the student with essential factual information; to give him an introduction to methods of thought and work and to provide such opportunities for study and growth as may lead to a well-rounded general education;
 - To prepare the student for undertaking the more advanced and specialized work embraced in the curricula of the third and fourth years of the Teachers Colleges or for more advanced work elsewhere.

This program represents sixty semester hours of work, at least one-half of which must fall in Groups I, II, and III. The student must complete during the first year at least six semester hours of English Composition and at least fifteen semester hours from Groups I, II, and III.

- B. The program for the third and fourth years is designed to enable the student:
 - 1. To pursue more extensively and intensively courses which acquaint him with the fields of his special interest and which broaden his general education;
 - To pursue a curriculum designed to give him the knowledge and skills necessary for teaching in a specific field.

Admission to the program of the third and fourth years is based upon the satisfactory completion of the work outlined under (A) above or upon evidence of equivalent work done satisfactorily elsewhere. In addition the student must satisfy such special tests or examinations as may be prescribed to determine his general intelligence, scholastic aptitude, and fitness for the teaching profession.

DEGREE REQUIREMENTS

Any curriculum leading to the Bachelor's Degree consists of at least 120 semester hours of credit and must include:

Group Iat	least	12	semester	hours
Group IIat	least	12	semester	hours
Group IIIat	least	12	semester	hours
Group IVat				
English Compositionat	least	6	semester	hours

The remaining semester hours may be selected from the courses regularly offered by the college, subject to the following restrictions:

- 1. Not more than 40 semester hours may be taken in any one subject.
- 2. At least $\frac{2}{3}$ of the work beyond the second year must be in courses not open to first-year students.
- 3. The student must complete a major subject of at least 24 semester hours and at least two minor subjects of not less than 15 semester hours. (A candidate for the elementary provisional certificate may present, instead, four minors, 15 semester hours each.) Credits in the required English composition and credits in Education which are required in general on all curricula do not count toward majors or minors.
- 4. No candidate is eligible for the Bachelor's Degree who has not completed at least 30 semester hours of work in residence and who has not been in residence during the semester or summer session immediately preceding graduation.
- Courses must be selected so that the requirements in some one of the provisional certificate curricula are fulfilled. (In certain cases this requirement may be waived.)

Degrees Defined

BACHELOR OF ARTS

The student who regularly completes a curriculum conforming to the degree requirements and embracing at least 90 semester hours from Groups I, II, and III, including at least 8 semester hours in one foreign language, is eligible for the degree of Bachelor of Arts. If two or more units of one foreign language are presented for entrance, the requirements for foreign language may be waived.

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE

1. The student who regularly completes a curriculum conforming to the degree requirements and embracing more than 30 semester hours from Groups IV, V, VI, and VII, is eligible for the degree of Bachelor of Science.

2. The student who otherwise qualifies for the degree of Bachelor of Arts and who has earned at least 54 semester hours in Group II may at his option receive the degree of Bachelor of Science instead of Bachelor of Arts.

REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION

Honorary Degree

The honorary degree M.Ed., Master of Education, is conferred on persons who may be selected by the faculty and State Board of Education for this special honor.

Degrees and Certificates

The State Board of Education for the State of Michigan, on recommendation of the President and Faculty of the Michigan State Normal College confers degrees and grants teachers' certificates as follows:

- A. The Degree of Bachelor of Arts. The Degree of Bachelor of Science.
- B. The State Elementary Provisional Certificate. Qualifies the holder to teach for a period of five years from date of issue in the elementary grades (Kindergarten—Sth) in any public school in Michigan. (See Note 1.)
- C. The State Secondary Provisional Certificate. Qualifies the holder to teach for a period of five years from date of issue in the secondary grades (7-12) in any public school in Michigan, in subjects or subject fields indicated on the certificate. (See Note 2.)
- D. The State Limited Certificate. Qualifies the holder to teach in the State of Michigan for a period of three years from date of issue in any school district except a school district which maintains an approved high school. (See Note 3; also "Important Directions to Holders of Limited Certificates Based on the Michigan Teachers' Certification Code" on succeeding pages.)

Academic and Residence Requirements for Degrees and Certificates

- A. For the Bachelor's Degree the candidate shall-
 - a. present credits satisfying a prescribed curriculum aggregating 120 semester hours;
 - b. have satisfactorily completed in residence at this institution at least 30 semester hours;
 - c. have been in residence at this institution the semester or the summer session immediately preceding graduation;
 - d. satisfy the requirements for the provisional certificate. (In certain cases this requirement may be waived.)

- B. For the State Elementary Provisional Certificate the candidate shall—
 - a. present credits satisfying a prescribed curriculum aggregating 120 semester hours;
 - b. have satisfactorily completed in residence at this institution at least 30 semester hours;
 - c. have been in residence at this institution the semester or the summer session immediately preceding graduation;
 - d. satisfy the requirements for the Bachelor's Degree.
- C. For the State Secondary Provisional Certificate the candidate shall-
 - a. present credits satisfying a prescribed curriculum aggregating 120 semester hours;
 - b. have satisfactorily completed in residence at this institution at least 30 semester hours;
 - c. have been in residence at this institution the semester or the summer session immediately preceding graduation;
 - d. satisfy the requirements for the Bachelor's Degree.
- D. For the State Limited Certificate the candidate shall-
 - a. present credits satisfying a prescribed curriculum aggregating 60 semester hours;
 - b. have satisfactorily completed in residence at this institution 15 semester hours;
 - c. have been in residence at this institution the semester or the summer session immediately preceding graduation.
- Note 1. The holder of the State Elementary Provisional Certificate may be issued the State Elementary Permanent Certificate provided the candidate shall have met the following conditions:
 - (a) Application must be made to the college within one year following the expiration of the State Elementary Provisional Certificate
 - (b) The candidate must submit satisfactory evidence that he has taught successfully during the life of the certificate for not less than three years in elementary schools in the state of Michigan.
 - The holder of the State Secondary Provisional Certificate may be issued the State Secondary Permanent Certificate provided the candidate shall have met the following conditions:
 - (a) Application must be made to the college within one year following the expiration of the State Secondary Provisional Certificate
 - (b) The candidate must submit satisfactory evidence that he has taught successfully during the life of the certificate for not less than three years in secondary schools in the state of Michigan

Note 2.

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

IMPORTANT DIRECTIONS TO HOLDERS OF LIMITED CERTIFICATES BASED ON THE MICHIGAN TEACHERS CERTIFICATION CODE

Caution: No person can be employed to teach in any school district unless he is legally qualified by holding a valid certificate. In order that the holder of any limited certificate may retain without interruption his status as a legally qualified teacher, he must make application for renewal to the State Board of Education between April 1 and September 1 of the year the certificate expires; if the candidate on the expiration of the certificate does not arrange for renewal as here stated, he will forfeit his status as a legally qualified teacher, and therefore will not be permitted to teach. He will, however, remain eligible to make application for renewal until June 30 of the year following expiration of his certificate after which date renewal privileges are canceled.

- A. To the holder of the State Limited Certificate or of the State Limited Renewal Certificate:
 - 1. The holder of a State Limited Certificate granted through this college may be issued (five times) a State Limited Renewal Certificate provided the candidate shall have met the following conditions:
 - (a) Subsequent to the date of issue of the last certificate beld, the candidate must have acquired 10 semester hours of credit, of an average grade of "C" or better, earned in an institution or accepted by an institution approved by the State Board of Education. These credits must be applicable toward the requirements of the curriculum prescribed for the State Provisional Certificate eventually desired. Not less than
 - (c) The candidate must have earned in addition 10 semester hours of acceptable residence college credit.
- Note 3. A candidate presenting credits as a graduate of a Michigan County Normal School and who in addition thereto presents entrance credits satisfying the requirements of this institution shall be granted:
 - (a) Toward the Provisional Certificate, 25 semester hours;
 - (b) Toward the State Limited Certificate, 25 semester hours;
- Note 4. Not more than one-fourth of the number of hours necessary for any certificate or degree may be taken in extension or by correspondence or both. Such credit, however, cannot be applied to modify the minimum or final residence requirements.
- Note 5. No teacher's certificate will be granted to any person who is less than eighteen years of age.

Note 6. No teacher's certificate will be granted to any person who is not a citizen of the United States or who has not declared his intention of becoming a citizen. 5 semester hours must be earned in residence; the remainder may be earned in extension study but of this not to exceed 3 semester hours may be correspondence study credit.

(b) In order to assure that the credits earned toward renewal will apply on the State Provisional Certificate curriculum at the institution where the candidate intends to qualify eventually for that certificate, the candidate should arrange in advance in each case to have his course selections approved by that institution. Also all credits wherever earned should be submitted to that institution for evaluation and by it transmitted to the State Board of Education with recommendations.

- B. To the holder of the County Limited Certificate or of the County Limited Renewal Certificate:
 - 1. The holder of a County Limited Certificate may be issued (two times) a County Limited Renewal Certificate each valid for two years provided the candidate shall have met the following conditions:
 - (a) Subsequent to the date of issue of the last certificate held, the candidate must have acquired 10 semester hours of credit, of an average grade of "C" or better, earned in an institution or accepted by an institution approved by the State Board of Education. These credits must be applicable toward the requirements of the curriculum prescribed for the State Limited Certificate and for the State Provisional Certificate. Not less than 5 semester hours must be earned in residence; the remainder may be earned in extension study but of this not to exceed 3 semester hours may be correspondence study credit.
 - (b) In order to assure that the credits earned toward renewal will apply on the State Limited Certificate curriculum and on the State Provisional Certificate curriculum at the institution where the candidate intends to qualify for either certificate, the candidate should arrange in advance in each case to have his course selections approved by that institution. Also all credits wherever earned should be submitted to that institution for evaluation and by it transmitted to the State Board of Education with recommendations.

More complete information concerning the several teachers' certificates may be obtained from Bulletin No. 601, Teachers' Certification Code, published by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, Lansing, Michigan.

51

Curricula

Michigan State Normal College offers curricula embracing four years as listed below, each leading to the Bachelor's Degree and Teacher's Certificate. Details as to the requirements of each curriculum are given in the pages immediately following. Concerning majors and minors the student will consult the heads of the respective departments. The major should be chosen at the beginning of the second year; minors not later than the beginning of the third year. The adviser in charge of each curriculum will otherwise guide the student in his enrollment and each semester will approve his classification.

In all cases the student will take a course in Methods in at least one Major or Minor Subject, but such a course is not included as a part of the Major or Minor.

- 1. For Teachers in Early Elementary Grades.
- 2. For Teachers in Later Elementary Grades.
- 3. For Teachers in Junior High School.
- 4. For Teachers in Senior High School.
- 5. For Administrators and Supervisors of Schools.
- 6. For Teachers of Fine Arts.
- 7. For Teachers of Industrial Arts.
- 8. For Teachers of Home Economics.
- 9. For Teachers of Music.
- 10. For Teachers of Physical Education.
- 11. For Teachers of Special Education.
- 12. For Teachers of Occupational Therapy.
- For Administrators and Supervisors of Schools, Rural Communities.
- 14. For Teachers of Commercial Subjects.
- For Librarians in elementary and secondary schools and for Teacher Librarians.

This institution also offers the following two-year curriculum:

 For Teachers of Elementary Grades in Rural Communities.

CURRICULA

CURRICULUM FOR EARLY ELEMENTARY TEACHERS Kindergarten, Grades 1, 2, and 3

Advisers, Mr. Garrison, Miss Skinner, Miss Barnes, Miss Curtis Semester Hours Language and Literature 12 Group I 207 Literature for the Elementary Grades..... Electives 9 12 Group II Science 100 Elementary Science 2 301 Psychology 3 321 Child Psychology 3 Electives 4 Group III Social Science 12 110 or 113 Political Science 2 Electives 10 Group IV Education 25 315, 316, 303 Education $\overline{7}$ 201 Elementary Science 3 351A Teaching of Arithmetic 2 340 Educational Tests and Measurements..... 2 310 The Teaching of Reading 3 *Teaching 8 Group V Fine Arts 10 101, 200 Art 5 104, 220 Music 5 Practical Arts Group VI 5 253, 254 Industrial Arts 5 Group VII Physical Education and Health 2 201 Health Education in Elementary Grades 2 Physical Training, 15 semester hours in-cluding W101, W102, W107 and W109. Additional Required Work 10 121, 122 Rhetoric 6 121 Public Speaking 2 241 Speech Correction 2 Handwriting, 2 semester hours Electives 32 Total 120

*Students preparing for work in kindergarten teach 10 semester hours, 5 in kindergarten and 5 in the grades.

The student will complete as a minimum: a major (may be a group major. See Appendix.) subject of 24 semester hours, and two minors, 15 semester hours each; or four minors, 15 semester hours each. The equivalent of two minors must be in subjects or subject fields taught in the elementary grades.

All courses specified on this curriculum may be counted to satisfy major, minor, and group requirements.

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

CURRICULUM FOR LATER ELEMENTARY TEACHERS Grades 4, 5, and 6

Semester Hours

Advisers, Miss Harpster, Mr. Hanna.

	Semester Hours
Group I Language and Literature 207 Literature for the Element Electives	12 ntary Grades 3 9
Group II Science 101, 205, 211, 341 Geography 220 Statistical Method in Ed 100 Elementary Science 301 Psychology	10 ucation 2 2
Group III Social Science History 110 or 113 Political Science . Electives	
Group IV Education 282 Teaching of History 351B Teaching of Arithmetic 202 Elementary Science 302 Educational Psychology 316 Public Education in Mic 303 Principles of Teaching 340 Educational Tests and M 311 Teaching of Reading Teaching	3 2 3 higan 3 2 3 10 3 10 10 10 11 12 12 13 14 15 16 16 17 18 19 10 10 11 12 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 10 11 12 13
Group V Fine Arts 101, 200 Art 104 Elements of Music	
Group VI Practical Arts	
Group VII Physical Education and 201 Health Education in Ele Physical Training, 15 s cluding W101, W102, W1	mentary Grades 2 semester hours in-
Additional Required Work 121, 122 Rhetoric 121 Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester	····· 6 ···· 2
Electives	

The student will complete as a minimum: a major (may be a group major. See Appendix.) subject of 24 semester hours, and two minors, 15 semester hours each; or four minors, 15 semester hours each. The equivalent of two minors must be in subjects or subject fields taught in the elementary grades.

All courses specified on this curriculum may be counted to satisfy major, minor, and group requirements. CURRICULA

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS IN JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Advi	sers,	Miss Field, Mr. Wood.		
Group	I	Language and Literature	ster H	lours 12
Group		Science	3 9	12
Group		Social Science or 113 Political Science Electives	2	12
Group	$302 \\ 316 \\ 336 \\ 340$	Education Educational Psychology Public Education in Michigan Junior High School Education Educational Tests and Measurements Principles of Teaching Teaching	3 2 2 2 3	20
Group		Physical Education and Health Health Education in Elementary Grades Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102)		2
Additi	121,	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6	8
				$\begin{array}{c} 54 \\ 120 \end{array}$

The student will complete as a minimum: a major subject of 24 semester hours, a minor cognate subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

55

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS IN SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Advisers, Mr. Fagerstrom, Miss Carey, Mr. Smith, Mr. Erikson.

		Semes	ter H	lours
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group		Science	3 9	12
Group	111 110	Social Science or 113 Political Science Electives	2 10	12
Group	302 316 309 435 340	Education Educational Psychology Public Education in Michigan History of Educ. in the United States Extra-Curricular Activities in H. S. Educational Tests and Measurements Principles of Teaching Teaching	$\frac{2}{2}$	22
Group	VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102)		
Additi	121	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6	8
				$\begin{array}{c} 54 \\ 120 \end{array}$

The student will complete as a minimum: a major subject of 24 semester hours, a minor cognate subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULA

CURRICULUM FOR ADMINISTRATORS AND SUPERVISORS OF SCHOOLS

mana and Titonatuna

Adviser, Mr. Kelder.

Cuonn T

Semester Hours

Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group	301 444	Science Psychology Mental Tests and Measurements Statistical Method in Education Electives	3 2 2 5	12
Grou	110	Social Science or 113 Political Science Juvenile Delinquency Electives	237	12
Grou	302 303 316 340 410 434 418 431	Education Educational Psychology Principles of Teaching Public Education in Michigan Educational Tests and Measurements Problems of Supervision, or Elementary Curriculum School Administration Organization and Admin. of H. S., or Organization and Admin. of Elem. School Teaching	32	25
Grou	p VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102)		
Addi	121	required work , 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6 2	8
				51 120
Th	o otrad	ant will complete as a minimum , a major a	ubio	t of

The student will complete as a minimum: a major subject of 24 semester hours, a minor cognate subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

57

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS OF FINE ARTS

Advisers,	Mr.	Gill,	Miss	Strafer.	
-----------	-----	-------	------	----------	--

		Semes	er H	ours
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group		Science	3 9	12
Group		Social Science or 113 Political Science Electives	$\frac{2}{10}$	12
Group	302, 316	Education 303 Education Public Education in Michigan The Teaching of Drawing Teaching Elective in Education	62382	21
Group	101s 201, 210 212 213	Fine Arts s, 103, 106, 109, 111 Fine Arts 202 Life Sketching Sculpture History of Architecture History of Painting Art Composition Electives	$ \begin{array}{c} 14 \\ 6 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 6 \end{array} $	37
Group	$\frac{127}{253}$	Practical Arts General Mechanical Drawing Industrial Arts, or Household Mech.	3 3	6
Group	VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours		
Additi	121	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6	8
Electiv	7es			$\begin{array}{c} 12\\120\end{array}$
TTL o	atra da	nt mill semplete se e minimum s e medes in '	Thing	Ambo

The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Fine Arts as listed above, a minor subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULA

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS OF INDUSTRIAL ARTS

Adviser, M	fr. Willoughby. Semester	Hours
Group I	Language and Literature	12
	Science	
	Social Science or 113 Political Science 2 Electives 10	
302, 316	Education 6 303 Education 6 Public Education in Michigan 2 Content, Organization and Supervision 2 Teaching 8 Elective in Education 2	
$160, \\113, \\101, \\128, *216, *230, \\204, *214, \\205, *305, \\152, \\1$	Practical Arts112, 127, 115 Ind. Arts10Elem. Prac. Electricity2Elem. Woodwork, Sketching2Architectural Drawing3General Metalwork3Machine Drawing3General Metalwork3Practical Electricity3Printing2Advanced General Woodshop2Arts and Crafts3Practical Mechanics2	
Group VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102)	
121	Required Work ,122 Rhetoric	
Total		18 120

*Note: Women students specializing in Industrial Arts will take instead: 151, 253, 254, and 101 Fine Arts. The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Industrial

The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Industrial Arts as listed above, a minor subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

59

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS OF HOME ECONOMICS

Advisers, Miss Bauch, Miss Kelly.

		Sem	ester 1	Hours
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group	212 131, 317 301	Science Microbiology 132, 220, 251 Chemistry Household Physics Psychology Principles of Physiology	. 3 . 10 . 3	21
Group	220 110	Social Science Elements of Economics or 113 Political Science Sociology Electives	. 3	12
Group	302, 371	Education 303, 316 Education Methods of Teaching Home Economics Voc. Education in Home Econ. Teaching Elective in Education	. 8235	20
Group		Fine Arts		6
Group	111, 112, 202 301	Practical Arts 201, 211, 302, 311 Foods 212, 351, 352, 353 Clothing Home Nursing and Child Care Econ, Problems of Consumer Home Management House	$ \begin{array}{c} 12 \\ 13 \\ 3 \\ 2 \end{array} $	35
Group	VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Including W101 and W102)		
Additio	121,	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	. 6	8
				6 120-
The	stude	ent will complete as a minimum a majo	r in	Home

The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Home Economics as listed above, a minor subject of 15 semester hours. and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS OF MUSIC

Advisers, Mr. Morgan, Mr. Fossenkemper, Miss Ashby.

		Semes	ter E	lours
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group	301	Science Psychology Musical Acoustics Electives	32	12
Group		Social Science or 113 Political Science Electives	2	12
Group	302, 230 *231	Education 303, 316 Education Music Education in the Elementary School Music Education in the Secondary School Instrumental Mater. & Methods *Teaching	00 00 00	22
Group	*101, 353, 141, 232 241 413 326 *450	Fine Arts 102 Elements of Music 354 History and Literature of Music 142 Harmony Voice Culture Counterpoint Orchestration Interpretation and Technique of Conducting Applied Music Electives	822322	38
Group	VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102)		
Additi	121	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6	8
Electiv				$16 \\ 120$
course	s inst	specialists in instrumental music take the ead of those starred above: 247 (women), 24 451; any four of the five following courses-	19 (1	nen),

454, 455, 456; one music elective, 2 semester hours. Teaching music, the teaching of one academic minor, and 14 semester hours of electives. The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Music as listed above, a minor subject of 15 semester hours, and a second

listed above, a minor subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Advisers, Mr. McCulloch, Mr. Samson, Miss Boughner.

		Semes	ter H	lours
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group	221 211 131 133 123 432 301	Science Anatomy and Physiology General Bacteriology Inorganic Chemistry Elem. of Organic Chemistry Physics for Students of Physical Educ. Physiology of Nutrition Psychology General Zoology	$\begin{smallmatrix} 5 & 3 & 2 \\ 3 & 2 & 3 & 2 \\ 3 & 4 \end{smallmatrix}$	25
Group		Social Science or 113 Political Science Electives	2 10	12
Group	302,	Education 303, 316 Education Methods and Materials in Phys. Educ Teaching	838	19
Group	$\begin{array}{c} 102\\ 332\\ 351\\ 311\\ 320\\ 412\\ 414\\ 203\\ 323\\ 331\\ 415\\ \end{array}$	Physical Education and Health Personal Health Health Examinations Health Work in Schools Theory and Philosophy of Play First Aid, Athletic Training and Physio- therapy Organization of Physical Educ. History and Literature of Physical Educ. Kinesiology Individual Gymnastics Physiology of Exercise Pageantry (women) or 222 Phys. Educ. (men)	2232 222223 2	24
Additi	onal 1 121,	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6 2	8
Electiv Total				$20 \\ 120$

The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Physical Education as listed above, a minor subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

62

CURRICULA

CURRICULA FOR TEACHERS OF SPECIAL EDUCATION

Adviser, Mr. Lord. Semester Hours Language and Literature 12 Group I 207 Literature for Elementary Grades Electives 9 Group II Science 13 101 Introductory Regional Geography 2 211 Geography of the U.S. and Canada 3 100 Fundamentals in Elementary Science 2 301 Genetics 3 301 Psychology 3 Social Science 12 Group III 110 or 113 Political Science 2 *350 Mental Deficiency 2 *354 Juvenile Delinquency 3 Electives 5 Education and Special Education 29 Group IV 303 Principles of Teaching 3 316 Public Education in Michigan 2 3 310 Teaching of Reading 5 Regular Teaching 5 Special Teaching *306 Mental Hygiene *351 Education of Exceptional Children 2 2 *355 Individual Intelligence Testing 2 *356 Mechanics of Voice, Vision and Hearing 5 Fine Arts 5 Group V 2 104 Elements of Music 101 Elementary Art 3 Practical Arts 5 Group VI 112 Household Mechanics 3 Elective 2 Group VII Physical Education and Health 2 201 Health Education for Elementary Grades... 2 Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101, W107, W109) Additional Required Work 10 121, 122 Rhetoric 6 121 Public Speaking 2 *241 Speech Correction Handwriting, 2 semester hours 32 Electives 120 Total

*Counted on major. To complete major, student will take courses appropriate to Field of Specialization indicated on the following page.

63

-

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

CURRICULA FOR TEACHERS OF SPECIAL EDUCATION (Continued)

A. The Deaf and Hard of Hearing

Hours	Semester

	372, 378, 385, 393 Special Education 301 Phonetics	10 2
В.	Partially Sighted 367, 358, 366 Special Education 151 Toy Making	6 2
C.	The Blind 363, 364, 366 Special Education	6
D,	The Mentally Retarded 358 Methods of Teaching Slow-Learning Children 202 Home Nursing and Child Care (women) 151 or 101 Industrial Arts	232
E.	Crippled Children 211 General Bacteriology 369, 373, 374 Special Education 204 Food and Nutrition 221 Anatomy and Physiology	3625
F.	Children of Low Vitality 204 Food and Nutrition 357, 374 Special Education *Elective (consult adviser)	2 4 2
G.	Speech-Reading for Adults 387, 388, 389, 390 Speech-Reading	10 3
н.	Children with Speech Defects 301 Phonetics 242 Speech Correction *Electives (consult adviser)	2 3 4
I.	Children with Personality and Behavior Problems *Electives (consult adviser)	8

*For courses to be elected by students following various curricula in Special Education, see descriptions of courses.

The student will complete as a minimum: a major as indicated, a minor cognate subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULUM FOR OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY

		fr. Lord Semes	ter H	S. X. X. S. S. S. S.
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
	101	Use of Books and Libraries	2	
	221	Dramatics for Early Elementary Grades	3	
		Electives	7	
Group	II	Science		25
	301	Psychology	3	
		Fundamentals in Elementary Science	2	
	-103	Gardening	2	
	211	General Bacteriology	3	
		Anatomy and Physiology	5	
	222	General Zoology	4	
	203	Kinesiology	2	
	301	Psychiatry and Neurology	2	
	404	Medical Lectures	2	
Group		Social Science	-	12
aroup		National Government in the United States	2	14
		Juvenile Delinquency	3	
	994		7	
anon	TT	Electives Education and Special Education		10
Group		Definition and Special Education		19
	303	Principles of Teaching	3	
	000	Teaching	5	
		Theory of Occupational Therapy	2	
		Advanced Theory of Occupational Therapy	3	
	374	Physical Reconstruction of Cripp. Children	2	
		Education of Exceptional Children	2	
		Mental Hygiene	2	
Group		Fine Arts		11
		or 101s Elementary Art	3	
	111	Design	3	
	204	Advanced Design	3	
-		Elective (Music)	2	
Group	VI	Practical Arts		25
	112	Household Mechanics	3	
	301	Art Metal Work and Plastics	2	
	302	Cement Handicrafts and Pottery	2	
	304	Weaving and Needlecraft	2	
	453	Advanced Arts and Crafts	3	
		Electives	13	
Group	VII	Physical Education and Health		2
	311	Theory and Philosophy of Play	2	
		Physical Training, 15 semester hours, in-		
		cluding W101, W102, W104, Ws317		
Additio	onal I	Required Work		8
	121.	122 Rhetoric	6	
	121	Public Speaking		
		Handwriting, 2 semester hours		
Electiv	res			6
				120
The	aboy	e curriculum provides for a major in Occ	nnat	
Thera	DV. A	minor in Industrial Arts, and a second mino	or in	No-

tural Science.

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

CURRICULUM FOR ADMINISTRATORS AND SUPERVISORS OF SCHOOLS, RURAL COMMUNITIES

Advisers, Mr. Stearns, Miss Smith. Semester Hours Language and Literature Group I 12 207 Literature for the Elem. Grades 3 Electives 9 Group II Science 12 101 General Agriculture 3 101 Elem. Sci. for Rural Schools 2 301 Psychology 3 101 Introductory Regional Geography 2 220 Statistical Method in Education 2 12 Social Science Group III American History 4 210 Rural Sociology 2 110 or 113 Political Science 2 Electives 4 Group IV 32 Education 302, 303, 316 Education 8 340 Educational Tests and Measurements 2 175 School Management & Course of Study 2 394 Community Relations 2 395 Rural Principalship, or 376 The Technique of Supervision 9 2 379 Rural School Curriculum 251 Teaching of Arithmetic 3 312 Teaching of Reading 3 Teaching 8 Group V Fine Arts 5 101 Elementary Art. 104 Elements of Music 5 Group VI Practical Arts 3 112 Household Mechanics 3 Group VII Physical Education and Health $\mathbf{2}$ 252 Health Education for Rural Schools 2 Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102) Additional Required Work 8 121, 122 Rhetoric 6 121 Public Speaking 2 Handwriting, 2 semester hours Electives 34 120 Total

The student will complete as a minimum: a major subject of 24 semester hours, a minor cognate subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULA

CURRICULUM FOR TEACHERS OF COMMERCIAL SUBJECTS

		Ir. Springman. Sem		
		Language and Literature		12
Group	II	Science		13
	301	Psychology	. 3	
		Mathematics of Commerce		
		Statistical Method in Education		
	209	Geography of Commerce	. 3	
		Elective	2	
From	TIT	Social Science		13
aroup		or 113 Political Science		
		221 Elements of Economics		
		Money and Banking		
	260	Economic History of the United States	2	
Froup		Education		20
noup	302	Educational Psychology	3	20
	202	Principlos of Teaching		
		Principles of Teaching Public Education in Michigan		
	309	Methods of Teaching Commercial Subjects		
1	**	Teaching		~
roup		Fine Arts		5
		Elementary Art		
	103	Commercial Design	. 2	
roup	VI	Practical Arts	-	36
		General Mechanical Drawing		
	205	Business English	. 2	
		Elementary Accounting		
		Advanced Accounting		
		Advanced Accounting		
	*101	Beginning Typing	. 2	
	*103	Beginning Shorthand	, 3	
		Stenography		
		Secretarial Procedures		
	303	Business Law	. 3	
	304	Business Law	. 3	
	301	Business Organization and Management	. 3	
	302	Office Practice	. 2	
Froup	VII	Physical Education and Health		
		Physical Training, 15 semester hours		
		(Women must take W101 and W102)		
Additio	onal I	Required Work		8
		122 Rhetoric		
		Public Speaking		
		Handwriting, 2 semester hours		
Dlectiv	es			13
[otal				120
*Not	_	tudents who have had courses starred abov		and here

*Note: Students who have had courses starred above may substitute an equivalent amount of free elective work.

The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Commercial Subjects as listed above, a minor cognate subject of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

67

CURRICULUM FOR SCHOOL LIBRARY SERVICE

Adviser, Miss Andrews.

		Semes	ter H	ours
Group	I	Language and Literature		12
Group		Science Psychology Electives	3 9	12
Group		Social Science or 113 Political Science Electives	$2 \\ 10$	12
Group		Education 303, 316, Education Teaching Library Practice Electives	8 4 4 5	21
Group	v	Fine Arts		6
	301, 303, 305 306 307, 401 402 403 437 438	Practical Arts 302 Classification and Cataloging 304 Reference Books and Their Use Periodicals and Their Indexes Book Crafts 308 Book Selection and Purchase Organ. and Admin. of the Elem. School Li- brary, or Organ. and Admin. of the High School Li- brary Library Materials as Teaching Aids Curr. Background for an Elem. School Li- brary, or Curr. Background for a High School Li- brary	54234 234 23	25
Group	VII	Physical Education and Health Physical Training, 15 semester hours (Women must take W101 and W102)		
	121, 121	Required Work 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	$\frac{6}{2}$	8
Total		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		$\begin{array}{c} 24 \\ 120 \end{array}$

The student will complete as a minimum: a major in Library Service as listed above, a minor of 15 semester hours, and a second minor of 15 semester hours in subject fields which the student expects to teach.

CURRICULA

STATE LIMITED CERTIFICATE CURRICULUM

General Elementary or Rural

Advisers, Mr. Stearns, Miss Smith.

muriscis	mr. stearns, miss smith.		
	Semest	er H	ours
Group I 207	Language and Literature Literature for Elementary Grades	3	3
101	Science General Agriculture Elementary Science for Rural Schools Introductory Regional Geography Electives	32215	12
210	Social Science American History Rural Sociology or 113 Political Science Elective	4 2 2 2	10
312 175 303	Education The Teaching of Reading School Management, Course of Study. Principles of Teaching Teaching of Arithmetic Teaching	00 00 00 00 00	16
Group V	Fine Arts		
Group VI	Practical Arts		6
	Physical Education and Health Health Education Physical Training, 6 semester hours includ- ing W104 or Ms206	2	2
121	Required Work , 122 Rhetoric Public Speaking Handwriting, 2 semester hours	6 2	8
	Groups I, II, III		3 60

Departments of Instruction

The Instructional Departments of Michigan State Normal College are classified in groups as indicated below. Details concerning each are given in the pages immediately following and in the order in which they are here listed.

- Group I Language and Literature English, Speech (certain courses), French, German, Greek, Latin, Spanish
- Group II Science and Mathematics Natural Sciences, Chemistry, Geography, Physics and Astronomy, Mathematics
- Group III Social Sciences History, Political Science, Economics, Sociology
- Group IV Education Education, Special Education, Laboratory Schools
- Group V Fine Arts Art, Music
- Group VI Practical Arts Industrial Arts, Home Economics, Commerce, School Library
- Group VII Physical Education and Health Health Education, Physical Education

ENGLISH

PROFESSOR GERALD D. SANDERS. PROFESSOR BLANCHE F. EMERY PROFESSOR CHARLES FREDERICK HARROLD ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR ELISABETH CAREY ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR FLORENCE ECKERT ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR M. ESTHER BALLEW ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MARIAN W. MAGOON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR GRACE COOPER ASSISTANT PROFESSOR MAUD HAGLE ASSISTANT PROFESSOR RUTH A. BARNES

ASSISTANT PROFESSOR ROBERT M. LIMPUS . ASSISTANT PROFESSOR HOOVER H. JORDAN ASSISTANT PROFESSOR CARLISLE MOORE INSTRUCTOR ALLEN L. MISEREZ. INSTRUCTOR WILLARD A. HANNA INSTRUCTOR GRACE H. ATTCHISON

Major and Minor

Required courses for a Major in English:			
*107 Introduction to Poetry	3	sem	hr
*108 Introduction to Prose	3	sem	hr
*210 Shakespeare	3	sem	hr
(207, 208, 308)	3	sem	hr
Elect one appropriate to curriculum			
Electives	12	sem	hr

12 sem hr

English majors on the Junior and Senior High School curricula must choose their electives from the following courses: English 302, 314, 315, 316, 317, 318, 319, 404, 405, 407, 408. English majors on other curricula may choose from any of the courses in literature or English 302.

Required courses for a Minor in English:

The courses starred in the list above and six semester hours of literature (of which three may be in English 207, 208, or 308).

Except as any may be required on a specific curriculum, the following courses are not counted in Group I of the degree requirements: 201, 207, 208, 215, 302, 308.

Composition and Language

3 sem hr 121 Rhetoric.

A course in the fundamental skills of reading and writing, including a study of grammar, sentence structure, punctuation, and organization of simple material; the reading and analysis of short prose selections; frequent papers; conferences.

Each semester CAREY, ECKERT, BALLEW, MAGOON, COOPER, HAGLE, LIMPUS, JORDAN, MISEREZ, HANNA 9-10

First Semester

8-9 Sec a MWF Welch 212 Sec b MWF Welch 208 Sec c MWF Welch 209 10-11 Sec a MWF Welch 207 Sec b MWF Welch 208 Sec c MWF Welch 212 Sec d MWF Welch 209 1-2 Sec a MWF Welch 208 Sec b MWF Welch 212 Sec c MWF Welch 209 Sec d MWF Welch 207 3-4

Sec a MWF Welch 207 Sec b MWF Welch 208 Sec c MWF Welch 212

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Welch 207

Sec a MWF Welch 212 Sec b MWF Welch 208 Sec c MWF Welch 207 Sec d MWF Welch 209 11-12 Sec a MWF Welch 209 Sec b MWF Welch 208 Sec c MWF Welch 212 Sec d MWF Welch 207 2-3 Sec a MWF Welch 208 Sec b MWF Welch 212 Sec c MWF Welch 207

Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Welch 209

122 Rhetoric, 3 sem hr (Formerly 112, 113 Rhetoric)

A study of the forms of discourse with emphasis upon the organization of long papers; the use of the library, note-taking, compilation from sources; the analysis of models with a view to effective use of material, diction, and style; weekly papers; conferences. Prerequisite: 121 Rhetoric.

Each semester carey, eckert, ballew, magoon, cooper, hagle, LIMPUS, JORDAN, MISEREZ, HANNA

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Welch 209 Sec 2 Sat 9-11:30 Welch 207

Second Semester Hours & sections same as for 121 Rhetoric, First Semester Sat 12:30-3:00 Welch 212

201 Advanced Composition. 2 sem hr

An advanced course in writing, designed for those who show special aptitude in composition. The student is permitted to choose the form of writing in which he requires practice, and he will be given individual attention and help in his work. Prerequisite: a year of composition.

First semester MAGOON TuTh 2-3 Welch 105

215 Journalism. 3 sem hr

A study of the elements of journalism, with practice in the writing of news and feature articles and editorials. The course is recommended for those who expect to direct high school newspapers. Prerequisite: a year of composition. Second semester MAGOON

MWF 9-10 Welch 106

302 English Grammar. 2 sem hr

A study of English syntax and inflections with emphasis on the historical development of grammar. The course is especially designed for those who expect to teach grammar in the public schools, but it will benefit those who expect to do graduate work in language or in Old English or Middle English literature. Prerequisite: a year of composition.

First semester MAGOON TuTh 1-2 Welch 105

Teaching of Literature

(Credit will be given for but one course in this group.)

207 Literature for the Elementary Grades. 3 sem hr

A study of prose, poetry, and illustrated books for the child in the elementary grades; extensive experience under guidance in using library collections; practice in compiling units of reading matter for children; a survey of sources of books for use in schools. Each semester BARKES

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1	MWF	8-9	Welch	108	Sec 1	MWF	8-9	Welch	108
Sec 2	MWF	9-10	Welch	108	Sec 2	MWF	9-10	Welch	108
Sec 3	MWF	2-3	Welch	108	Sec 3	MWF	2-3	Welch	108
Sec 4	MWF	3-4	Welch	108	Sec 4	MWF	3-4	Welch	108
					Sec 5	Sat 9-	11:30	Welch	108

208 Junior High School Literature. 3 sem hr

An extensive study of the various types of literature suitable for the seventh, eighth, and ninth grades; readings from approved reading lists; practice in judging the worth of materials, together with demonstrations and guidance in presenting this material to children. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. First semester BARNES

MWF 11-12 Welch 108

308 Senior High School Literature. 3 sem hr

A critical examination of texts and of the types of organization used in the high school grades; an intensive study of one example of each literary type; practice in developing units; a survey of libraries and library sources. Prerequisites: three courses in literature.

Each semester LIMPUS MWF 2-3 Welch 105

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

Literature

107 Introduction to Poetry. 3 sem hr

A study of the form and content of various types of poetry. The primary purpose of the course is to help the student learn to read poetry correctly and appreciatively, and to establish critical standards for determining the quality of a poem. American poetry is used as a basis for the course.

Each semester SANDERS, HARROLD, ECKEET, BALLEW, MAGOON, HAGLE, JORDAN, MOORE, HANNA

Firs	Semest	er .			Sec	9	MWF	2-3	Welch	104	
Sec	1 MWF	8-9	Welch	109		-	MWF		Welch		
Sec	2 MWF	9-10	Welch	106	Sec	11	Sat 9-	11:30	Welch	105	
Sec	3 MWF	9-10	Welch	105			~				
Sec	4 MWF	10-11	Welch	106	Seco	10.2	Semes	199			
Sec	5 MWF	10-11	Welch	105	Sec	1	MWF	10-11	Welch	104	
Sec	6 MWF	11-12	Welch	104	Sec	2	MWF	11-12	Welch	109	
Sec	7 MWF	1-2	Welch	105	Sec	3	MWF	1-2	Welch	109	
Sec	8 MWF	1-2	Welch	109	Sec	4	MWF	3-4	Welch	106	

108 Introduction to Prose. 3 sem hr

A study of the form and content of various types of prose—the short story, the essay, biography, addresses, letters—with a view to helping the student establish critical standards for judging good prose. American prose is used as a basis for the course. Prerequisite: 107 Introduction to Poetry.

Each semester emery, ballew, magoon, cooper, hagle, barnes. LIMPUS, JORDAN, MOORE, MISEREZ

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 11-12 Welch 109	Sec 4 MWF 10-11 Welch 109
Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Welch 109	Sec 5 MWF 11-12 Welch 105
Sec 3 Sat 12:30-3 Welch 104	Sec 6 MWF 1-2 Welch 106
Second Semester	Sec 7 MWF 1-2 Welch 105
Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Welch 104	Sec 8 MWF 2-3 Welch 104
Sec 2 MWF 9-10 Welch 105	Sec 9 MWF 3-4 Welch 109
Sec 3 MWF 10-11 Welch 105	Sec 10 Sat 9-11:30 Welch 105

209 The Nineteenth Century Novel. 2 sem hr

A study of the work of representative English novelists from Jane Austen to George Meredith. Prerequisite: 108 Introduction to Prose.

Each semester ECKERT, AITCHISON

First Semester

TuTh 1-2 Welch 109

Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Welch 106 Sec 2 TuTh 2-3 Welch 109

210 Shakespeare. 3 sem hr

An intensive study of five of the principal tragedies, with supplementary study of a Shakespeare handbook. Prerequisite: two courses in literature.

Each semester SANDERS, HARROLD, BALLEW, HAGLE, MOORE, MISEREZ

Second Semester

First Semester

 Sec 1 MWF
 8-9
 Welch
 104
 Sec 1 MWF
 8-9
 Welch
 109

 Sec 2 MWF
 10-11 Welch
 109
 Sec 2 MWF
 11-12 Welch
 106

 Sec 3 MWF
 11-12 Welch
 106
 Sec 3 MWF
 2-3 Welch
 106

 Sec 4 MWF
 1-2 Welch
 106
 Sec 4 MWF
 3-4 Welch
 104

 Sec 5 Sat
 12:30-3 Welch
 108
 Sec 5 Sat
 12:30-3 Welch
 109

251 The Bible as Literature. 2 sem hr A study of the literature of the Old and New Testaments. Prerequisites: two courses in literature. Each semester AITOHISON TuTh 8-9 Welch 106

305 Shakespearean Comedy. 2 sem hr A study of the principal comedies. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. Second semester BALLEW TuTh 9-10 Welch 104

314 Old English. 3 sem hr A study of the language and literature of the Anglo-Saxon period. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. First semester CAREY MWF 1-2 Welch 104

315 The Age of Chaucer. 3 sem hr A study of the Canterbury Tales, with collateral readings of other of Chaucer's works; Chaucer's contemporaries; the writers of the fifteenth century; the medieval drama. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. Each semester CAREY

First Semester Sat 12:30-3 Welch 212 Second Semester MWF 1-2 Welch 104

316 English Literature, 1500-1600. 3 sem hr A study of prose, poetry, and drama of the Renaissance: Thomas More and the Oxford group; the beginnings of criticism; the Italian influence; the Sonneteers and minor poets; the University Wits; Spenser. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. First semester SANDERS MWF 9-10 Welch 104

317 English Literature, 1600-1660. 3 sem hr

A study of English literature from the beginning of the Century to the Restoration: Donne; Jonson; Bacon; Minor Cavalier and Puritan poets; Burton, Browne, Taylor, and other prose writers; the major dramatists; Milton. Prerequisites: three courses in literature.

Second semester SANDERS MWF 9-10 Welch 104 318 English Literature, 1660-1744. 3 sem hr

A study of English literature from the Restoration to the death of Pope: Dryden, Swift, Pope, Addison, Steele, the lesser poets and prose writers, and the chief dramatists of the period. Prerequisites: three courses in literature.

First semester HANNA

MWF 8-9 Welch 105

319 English Literature, 1744-1798. 3 sem hr

A study of English literature from the death of Pope to the publication of the Lyrical Ballads: Thomson, Gray, Collins, Johnson, Goldsmith, Cowper, Burns, Blake, and the lesser writers of the period in prose and poetry ; collateral reading in fiction and drama. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. Second semester HARROLD, HANNA

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Welch 105 Sec 2 Sat 12:30-3 Welch 106

401 Modern Poetry. 2 sem hr A study of the chief poets of England and America since 1900. Prerequisites : three courses in literature. First semester SANDERS, BALLEW Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Welch 104 Sec 2 Sat 10-11:45 Welch 104

403 Contemporary Drama. 2 sem hr A study of the chief modern dramatists from Ibsen to the present. Prerequisites: three courses in literature. Second semester COOPER TuTh 2-3 Welch 104

404 English Literature, 1798-1832. 3 sem hr A study of the chief writers of the English romantic movement : Wordsworth, Coleridge, Lamb, De Quincey, Hazlitt, Byron, Shelley, Keats. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. Second semester HARROLD MWF 3-4 Welch 106

405 Victorian Poetry. 3 sem hr A study of Tennyson, Browning, the Pre-Raphaelites, and the minor poets of the Victorian period. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. Each semester SANDERS

First Semester MWF 10-11 Welch 104

Second Semester Sat 9-11:30 Welch 104

407 Victorian Prose. 3 sem hr A study of the chief prose writers of the Victorian period: Macaulay, Carlyle, Newman, Ruskin, Arnold, Pater, Huxley, Stevenson. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. Each semester HARROLD

First Semester

Second Semester Sat 9-11:30 Welch 106 MWF 10-11 Welch 106 ENGLISH

408 American Literature. 3 sem hr A study of the historical development of American literature from the colonial period to the present, with emphasis on the major writers. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. Second semester LIMPUS MWF 11-12 Welch 104

416 The Modern Novel. 2 sem hr A study of representative works by such English and American novelists as Thomas Hardy, Henry James, Conrad, Galsworthy, Maugham, Sinclair Lewis, and others. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. Each semester ECKERT, COOPER

First Semester TuTh 2-3 Welch 109 Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 1-2 Welch 104 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Welch 109

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

SPEECH

PROFESSOR FREDERICK B. MCKAY PROFESSOR JOSEPH P. KELLY ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MARION FRANKLIN STOWE ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR LOUISA EDSON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR HARRY T. WOOD

Minor in Speech

Requi	red courses for a Minor in Speech :	
102	Interpretative Reading	3 sem hr
135	Play Production	3 sem hr
156	Public Speaking	3 sem hr
261	Argumentation and Debate	3 sem hr
	Elective	3 sem hr

Courses

Courses 212 and 214 may count in Group I; 201 counts in Group II. For 310, 311 and 312 Teaching of Reading, see Education.

121 Public Speaking, 2 sem hr

Sec 14 TuTh Welch 208

(Formerly 111, 112, 113 Public Speaking)

A course dealing with the fundamental problems of public speech including the organization and expression of one's own thought and the interpretation of the thought of others from the printed page. It is a prerequisite to all other speech courses. Each semester MCKAY, STOWE, EDSON, WOOD, KELLY

First Semester	Second Semester
8-9	8-9
Sec 1 TuTh Welch 209	Sec 1 TuTh Welch 209
Sec 2 TuTh Welch 208	Sec 2 TuTh Welch 208
9-10	9-10
Sec 3 TuTh Welch 204	Sec 3 TuTh Welch 209
Sec 4 TuTh Welch 209	Sec 4 TuTh Welch 208
11-12	11-12
Sec 5 TuTh Welch 204	Sec 5 TuTh Welch 209
Sec 6 TuTh Welch 209	1-2
Sec 7 TuTh Welch 208	Sec 6 TuTh Welch 209
1-2	2-3
Sec 8 TuTh Welch 209	Sec 7 TuTh Welch 209
Sec 9 TuTh Welch 207	Sec 8 TuTh Welch 207
2-3	3-4
Sec 10 TuTh Welch 209	Sec 9 TuTh Welch 204
Sec 11 TuTh Welch 207	Sec 10 TuTh Welch 208
Sec 12 TuTh Welch 208	
3-4	
Sec 13 TuTh Welch 204	

78

122 Voice and Speech Improvement. No credit

A practice course designed to meet the needs of those whose credit in 121 Public Speaking has been withheld because of special voice or speech difficulties. Emphasis is placed upon the solution of individual speech problems. Students assigned to this course are given credit in 121 Public Speaking upon giving evidence of having satisfactorily corrected their defects.

Each semester MCKAY, KELLY, STOWE, EDSON, WOOD

Th 10-11 and other hours to be arranged, Welch and Rackham

Interpretation and Dramatics

102 Interpretative Reading, 3 sem hr

This course is designed to enable the student to develop poise and ease before an audience and a clear, agreeable and forceful voice. It deals with fundamental problems in the oral interpretation of literature and numerous illustrative selections in the study of these problems. Definite platform work in interpretation is begun and selections are prepared for presentation before the class. Each semester stows

MWF 10-11 Welch 204

103 Interpretative Reading. 2 sem hr

In this course both phases of the work started in 102 Interpretative Reading are continued with more varied and difficult problems. Through extensive reading the students familiarize themselves with the works of certain authors. This reading serves as a background for intensive study and individual presentation of selections. Material from the drama is also prepared for platform presentation. Prerequisite: 102 Interpretative Reading or its equivalent.

Each semester STOWE TuTh 11-12 Welch 207

212 Readings in Victorian Poetry. (Group I). 3 sem hr

A study and oral interpretation of the poetry of the Victorian period. Review of the intellectual, artistic and political movements of the period and their relation to the poetry. Special attention is given to the interpretation of Browning and Tennyson. Prerequisite: 102 Interpretative Reading or equivalent. Second semester MCKAY

Sat 9-11:30 Welch 204

213 Recital Reading. 3 sem hr

This course is intended for students who have had considerable work in reading and public speaking or English. The work is designed to aid students in the presentation of readings of some length and difficulty in fiction, poetry and drama. Students should consult the instructor before electing this course. Prerequisites: Three courses in interpretation.

Second semester STOWE MWF 11-12 Welch 204 214 Shakespearean Reading (Group I). 3 sem hr

Individual and group interpretative readings based upon a study of the background, structure and characters of Shakespearean drama. There will be platform presentations of significant scenes from at least four plays. Prerequisite: 102 Interpretative Reading or its equivalent.

First semester MCKAY

MWF 9-10 Welch 204

221 Dramatics for Early Elementary Grades. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 221 Auditorium and Classroom Dramatics for Early Elementary Grades.)

This course is designed to show how the teacher may select material from history, literature, art and music and use it in dramatic forms of pageantry, festivals and plays; also to show how these may be produced effectively in the average classroom or assembly hall.

Second semester EDSON

MWF 10-11 Pierce, Little Theater

233 Dramatic Direction. 1 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to aid those who find themselves without preparation for directing the school play or smaller plays for auditorium or other exercises. The course will deal with choosing and directing a play and such problems of stage-craft as scenery, lighting, balance, costume and make-up. The work will consist of lectures, assigned readings, and laboratory work in specific problems of stage-craft. Not open to those who have had 135, or 232 Play Production.

Summer session STOWE

131 Story Telling. 2 sem hr

The aim of this course is to acquaint the student with the various types of stories—fables, folk-tales, myths, hero-stories and the like, and to choose those which are suited to the needs of the different grades. The emphasis is placed on the expression side and, after a discussion of the principles which underlie the art of story-telling, as much practice as possible is given to the actual telling of the story.

First semester EDSON TuTh 1-2 Welch 208

135 Play Production. 3 sem hr

A study of the problems involved in staging plays in the high school. Specifically it deals with the selection of suitable plays, the principles governing staging, make-up and costuming with an examination of modern theories regarding stage scenery and settings. The class will have opportunity to apply these principles in actual presentation of parts on a suitable stage, and if casts can be made up from the class a public program of short plays will be presented.

First semester STOWE

MWF 3-5 Pierce, Little Theater

232 Play Production. 3 sem hr

This course is devoted to a study of the principles of the drama and of staging as applied to one or two laboratory plays and one full-length play, and the presentation in costume of the full-length play as a major college production. Prerequisite: 135 Play Production.

Second semester STOWE MWF 3-5 Pierce, Little Theater

Public Speaking

156 Public Speaking. 3 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to aid the student in the development of ability in platform speaking, fitting one to appear before an audience and present his ideas clearly and forcibly. Much practice is given in extempore speech, organization and general effectiveness. It is of special value to those who may have charge of similar work in high school either as teachers of English or in the position of superintendent or principal. Each semester KELLY, MCKAY

First Semester Sec 1 MWF S-9 Welch 209 Sec 2 Sat 12:30-3 Welch 204

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Welch 204 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Welch 204

Second Semester

261 Argumentation and Debate, 3 sem hr

The course opens with a study of the principles of round table discussion, with illustrative programs. This is followed by argumentation and platform debates with special attention given to the logical and effective arrangement of arguments and an easy forceful delivery. This course commends itself to those who wish to learn the art of logical thinking upon one's feet and particularly to all who may have to supervise literary or debating societies in high schools, or direct the work of debating teams.

First semester wood MWF 2-3 Welch 204

366 Contest Speaking. 2 sem hr (Formerly 266 Contest Debating.)

Intended for the college debating groups and the college orators. Meetings of these groups are arranged each week by the instructors in public speaking. Two semester hours credit will be extended only to those who do excellent work throughout the season on the college debating teams or as college orators, and who take it as a part of the established class load. Prerequisites: 261 Argumentation and Debate, for debaters, 156 Public Speaking, for orators. Open to juniors and seniors.

Each semester KELLY, WOOD TuTh 4-5 Welch 206 371 Forum Discussion. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 271 Forum Discussion.)

A course enabling students to gain experience in the field of forum meetings and community discussion groups. It represents a definite attempt to promote leadership in connection with public questions, through the agency of platform speaking and panel discussion. A review and application of the developmental point of view is followed by programs in which the student prepares upon assigned public questions. In the latter half of the course forum procedure is regularly followed and speakers expect to defend their facts and viewpoints against questions and counter opinions from the floor. Open to juniors and seniors.

Second semester MCKAY

MWF 9-10 Welch 204

Speech Science

241 Speech Correction. 2 sem hr This course is offered to meet the demand for teachers who can intelligently diagnose and treat the less serious cases of defective speech in children. An investigation is made of the mechanism and use of the voice. This is followed by a study of the symptoms and causes of speech defects, such as, lisping, negligent speech, nasality and harshness of voice. The course is supplemented by opportunities for actual clinical experience. Open only to juniors and seniors.

Each semester woon

First Semester

Sec 1 MW 10-11 Rackham 102 Sec 2 MW 1-2 Rackham 102 Sec 3 Sat 12:45-2:30 Rackham 102

Second Semester

Sec 1 MW 1-2 Rackham 101 Sec 2 Sat 12:45-2:30 Rackham 101

242 Speech Correction. 3 sem hr

A continuation of Speech 241 involving more intensive study of the various speech disorders, emphasizing especially stuttering. The course consists of lectures and assigned readings and a study of methods and devices, together with opportunities for observation of corrective work as carried on by experienced teachers. Following the course, students may elect to do part of their practice teaching in this field. Prerequisite: 241 Speech Correction.

Second semester woop MWF 2-3 Rackham 218

301 Phonetics (Group II). 2 sem hr

(Formerly 201 Phonetics.)

In approximately one-third of the course, the facilities of the natural science laboratory are utilized to acquaint the student with the anatomy of speech—the skeletal framework and the tissues involved in breathing, vocalization, resonance and articula-

82

tion, and with their physiological functioning. The second half is devoted to a study of the formation and classification of English sounds, the historical development of English pronunciations and the problem of standards in isolated and communicating pronouncing. Open to juniors and seniors. First semester MCKAY

TuTh 1-2 Welch 204

FOREIGN LANGUAGE AND LITERATURE

PROFESSOR JOHN HENRY OWENS ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR JOHANNA SABOURIN ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR WALLACE H. MAGOON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR DOYNE WOLFE ASSISTANT PROFESSOR L. LUCRETIA CASE

Those beginning a foreign language must complete a minimum of one year to receive credit.

FRENCH

Major and Minor

Required courses for a Major in French:

*221, 222	Intermediate French	8 sem hr
*333, 334	French Composition and Conversation	4 sem hr
*421, 422	Survey of French Literature	6 sem hr
443, 444	French Syntax and Conversation	4 sem hr
	Electives in Literature Courses	2 sem hr

Students majoring in French will also take 111 Modern Language, a course in the methods of teaching. (See Education.)

The courses here listed meet the minimum requirement only. It is highly desirable that students specializing in French or planning to continue with graduate work carry their work beyond the minimum.

Required courses for a Minor in French:

The courses starred above constitute a Minor.

121 and 122 Beginning French do not count towards either a major or a minor.

Courses

121, 122 Beginning French. 4 sem hr each (Formerly 121, 122 French)

A beginning course in the language, running throughout the year. A thorough knowledge of the principles of grammar, ability to read simple French easily and rapidly, and correct pronunciation are the objectives of this course. Special reading matter of some four hundred pages.

Each semester CASE

Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Library 209 Sec 2 MTuWF 3-4 Lib 209 221, 222 Intermediate French. 4 sem hr each (Formerly 221, 222 French) An intermediate course continuing throughout the year. Review

work in composition and grammar, some conversation, and rapid reading of large quantities of French prepare the student for literary as well as practical use of the language. Prerequisite: 122 Beginning French, or two years of high school French.

Each semester owens, CASE Sec 1 MTuWF 9-10 Lib 209 Sec 2 MTuWF 2-3 Lib 208

333, 334 French Composition and Conversation. 2 sem hr each This course is usually taken concurrently with 421, 422, It consists of a thorough review of grammatical principles, free composition, diction, phonetics, and conversation. It is intended to give the Minor in French a solid grounding for the teaching of this subject. Prerequisite: 222 Intermediate French, four years of high school French, or permission of the instructor. Each semester OWENS

TuTh 2-3 Lib 209

421, 422 Survey of French Literature. 3 sem hr each (Formerly 421, 422 French)

This is the preliminary literature course in French. It covers during the two semesters the major writers from Rabelais to Gide, with a brief incursion into earlier French writers. This course is required for Minors in French and is a prerequisite for all later courses in literature. Prerequisite: 222 Intermediate French, four years of high school French, or an ability to read French satisfactory to the instructor.

Each semester owens MWF 2-3 Lib 209

443, 444 French Syntax and Conversation. 2 sem hr each This course in syntax and conversation runs throughout the year and is intended for Majors in French. The course may be repeated for supplementary credit since different material will be used annually. Prerequisites: 333, 334 French Composition and Conversation.

Each semester owens TuTh 11-12 Lib 209

The prerequisites for the following advanced literature courses are 421, 422 Survey of French Literature, or their equivalent:

431 Molière. 3 sem hr (Formerly 431 French) The work of the semester is devoted to France's greatest comic playwright. A study of source material, and influence upon later French and English writers is included. First semester odd years owens MWF 11-12 Lib 209 432 Corneille and Racine, 3 sem hr (Formerly 432 French) This course will trace the rise of the classic theater in France. Second semester even years owens MWF 11-12 Lib 209

441 French Novel. 3 sem hr (Formerly 441 French) A study of the novel and short-story from their origins in France to modern times. The chief emphasis will fall upon the nineteenth century. First semester even years owens MWF 11-12 Lib 209

442 La Pensée Française. 3 sem hr (Formerly 442 French) This course will trace the rise of French philosophy from Descartes through Bayle and the eighteenth century "philosophes" to the Revolution. A briefer study will be made of the post-revolutionary period leading to modern times. Second semester odd years owens MWF 11-12 Lib 209

GERMAN

Minor

Required courses for a Minor in German :

221, 222 Intermediate German Electives in advanced courses 8 sem hr 8 sem hr

121 and 122 Beginning German do not count towards a minor.

121, 122 Beginning German. 4 sem hr each (Formerly 121, 122 German) This is a course for beginners in the language and runs throughout the year. The work of this year is intended to give the student a good pronunciation and make him acquainted with the elements of grammar and colloquial expression. Each semester SABOURIN Sec 1 MWTHF 10-11 Lib 207

Sec 2 MWThF 3-4 Lib 207

221 Intermediate German. 4 sem hr (Formerly 221 German) A thorough review of grammar. Written and oral composition. Specific emphasis on conversation. Prerequisite: 122 Beginning German or two years of high school German. First semester SABOURIN MTuThF 9-10 Lib 207

222 Intermediate German 4 sem hr (Formerly 222 German) This course aims to develop literary appreciation and Sprachgefühl. Representative modern writers such as Thomas Mann, Storm, Schnitzler are studied. Prerequisite: 221 Intermediate German or three years of high school German. Second semester SABOURIN MTuThF 9-10 Lib 207 The prerequisite for the following advanced literature courses is 222 Intermediate German or four years of high school German: 321, 322 Nineteenth Contury German Literature, 4 sem hr each (Formerly 321, 322 German) The work of this year stresses nineteenth century literature, prose, drama, and poetry. Representative selections from authors such as Frenssen, Sudermann, Hauptmann are studied. These courses alternate with 421 Survey of German Literature and 422 Classical German. First semester odd, second semester even years SABOURIN MWThF 1-2 Lib 207 421 Survey of German Literature, 4 sem hr (Formerly 421 German) This course offers a survey of German literature from Luther to Lessing. Alternates with 321 Nineteenth Century German Literature. First semester even years SABOURIN MWThF 1-2 Lib 207 422 Classical German Literature. 4 sem hr (Formerly 422 German) The classic period, Schiller and Goethe, Alternates with 322 Nineteenth Century German Literature. Second semester odd years SABOURIN MWThF 1-2 Lib 207 GREEK Minor Required courses for a Minor in Greek:

221	Elementary Greek	4	sem	hr
222	Xenophon's Anabasis and Greek Composition	4	sem	hr
321	Xenophon, Plato, and Homer	3	sem	hr
322	Homer's Odyssey and Herodotus	3	sem	hr
425	Supervised Reading Course in Greek Literature	1	sem	hr

A knowledge of Greek is of great value in many fields of learning. To the teacher of Latin it is indispensable because of the close linguistic relation between Greek and Latin. Latin literature is based upon Greek literature and Roman life combined with Greek life to produce the Greec-Roman civilization. To the specialist in ancient history, Greek is a necessity, since his works of reference are often in Greek or are full of Greek quotations. To the scientist also Greek is of great value, as a large proportion of scientific terms are of Greek origin. Even a single year of Greek will unlock doors in many branches of knowledge.

221 Elementary Greek. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 201 Elementary Greek)

This course covers the elementary work in form and simple syntax necessary for the reading of Xenophon's Anabasis in the second semester.

First semester even years W. H. MAGOON MWThF 10-11 Pierce 34

222 Xenophon's Anabasis and Greek Composition. 4 sem hr (Formerly 202 Elementary Greek and 203 Xenophon's Anabasis and Greek Composition)

This is chiefly a reading and translation course. Four books of the Anabasis relating to the expedition of the Ten Thousand Greeks into Persia, the purposes of the expedition, its defeat and the vicissitudes of its retreat are covered. Study of Greek forms and syntax is continued by simple passages for English to Greek translation. Prerequisite: 221 Elementary Greek. Second semester odd years W. H. MAGOON

MWThF 10-11 Pierce 34

321 Xenophon, Plato and Homer. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 321 Selections from Xenophon, Plato and Homer)

Xenophon's Symposium and selections from Plato embodying the outstanding principles of Socrates are read with translation and discussion of content in relation to present day beliefs. Two books of the Iliad are read with a study of Greek hexameter verse and Homeric peculiarities of form and syntax. Prerequisite: 222 Xenophon's Anabasis and Greek Composition. First semester odd years W. H. MAGOON

MWF 11-12 Pierce 35

322 Homer's Odyssey and Herodotus, 3 sem hr

(Formerly 305 Homer's Odyssey and 306 Selections from the History of Herodotus)

The work of this semester covers four books of the Odyssey. Greek life as depicted by Homer is noted and compared with that of later centuries and of modern times. Book I of Herodotus' History is read, and Herodotus' style and method of writing history are discussed in relation to the modern point of view. Prerequisite: 321 Xenophon, Plato and Homer.

Second semester even years w. H. MAGOON. MWF 11-12 Pierce 35

425 Supervised Reading Course in Greek literature. 1 sem hr This is an advanced course to be elected by students who have had two years of college Greek, or the equivalent. Second semester odd years W. H. MAGOON Recitation hours to be arranged with the instructor.

LATIN

Major and Minor

Required courses for a Major in Latin:

*219	Latin Writing	2 sem hr
*321	Foundation Studies for Latin Teachers	3 sem hr
322	Foundation Course in Cicero and Virgil	3 sem hr
	Electives	16 sem hr

Required courses for a Minor in Latin:

Courses starred in the list above and ten semester hours in translation courses numbered beyond 150.

The courses here listed meet the minimum requirements only. It is highly desirable that students specializing in Latin carry their work beyond the minimum. 131, 132, 141, 142 Latin do not count towards a major or a minor.

These courses meet the needs not only of those who plan to teach Latin, but also of those who wish to broaden their cultural background or to lay a stronger foundation for professional work in science, in political life, in law, or in medicine.

131, 132 Beginning Latin. 4 sem hr each

(Formerly 131, 132 Beginners' Latin)

These courses cover the elementary work regularly included in the first two years of high school Latin; they stress the fundamentals of Latin grammar and the reading of easy Latin prose including Caesar.

Each semester W. H. MAGOON MTuThF 8-9 Pierce 35

141 Cicero, 142 Virgil. 4 sem hr each

(Formerly 141 Cicero and Latin Composition and 142 Virgil's Aeneid)

Courses 141 and 142 comprise the work of the third and fourth year Latin classes in secondary schools, and are to be elected by students who have had two years of high school Latin or the equivalent. A review of the fundamentals of Latin grammar, exercises in Latin composition, and the translation of selected works of Cicero and Virgil constitute the year's work. Prerequisite: 132 Beginning Latin, or the equivalent.

Each semester W. H. MAGOON. MTuThF 2-3 Pierce 35

219 Latin Writing. 2 sem hr

This course is especially designed for prospective Latin teachers: the work consists of a systematic review of Latin Syntax, together with drill in Latin composition. Prerequisite: three years of high school Latin, or 142 Virgil. First semester even years W. H. MAGOON

TuTh 1-2 Pierce 35

The prerequisite for the following literature courses is 142 Virgil, four years of high school Latin; or the equivalent:

151 Livy. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 151 Livy and Latin Composition)

Livy's Roman History, covering the period of the kings constitutes the work of the semester. Emphasis is placed upon Livy's purpose in writing a history of Rome and upon his narrative as source material; attention is drawn to the behavior and character of the Romans of this period as presented by Livy. Second semester odd years CASE

MWF 8-9 Pierce 34

152 Roman Literature, 4 sem hr

(Formerly 152 Latin Selections and Roman Literature)

This course is planned especially for Latin majors. It gives the student an acquaintance with the different types of Roman literature and the development of these from the early period through the Golden Age and the following two centuries. The different phases are illustrated by the reading of selections from authors of each period.

Second semester even years CASE MWThF 8-9 Pierce 34

231 Horace. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 231 Horace, Epistles and Odes)

The Epistles are read and the first book of the Odes with attention to the meters employed by Horace and his influence on world literature.

First semester odd years CASE TuTh 8-9 Pierce 34

232 Latin Comedy. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 232 Latin Comedy—Plautus and Terence) The course consists of reading selected plays of Plautus and Terence. Comparisons are made of Greek and Roman comedy. First semester odd years w. H. MAGOON MWF 1-2 Pierce 35

321 Foundation Studies for Latin Teachers. 3 sem hr (Formerly 301 Caesar and 221 Foundation Studies for Latin Teachers)

This course outlines for the prospective Latin teacher the methods used in the teaching of high school Caesar classes the relative effectiveness of different methods, together with a discussion of individual teaching problems. Caesar's *De Bello Gallico* is read entirely, and a study of the political history of Caesar's time is made.

Second semester even years w. H. MAGOON MWF 1-2 Pierce 35 322 Foundation Course in Cicero and Virgil. 3 sem hr (Formerly 302 and 322 Cicero, and 303 and 323 Virgil)

The Orations of Cicero commonly read in high school, and Virgil's Aeneid constitute the material of the course. Methods of presenting Cicero and Virgil most effectively to high school students are discussed.

Second semester odd years W. H. MAGOON MWF 1-2 Pierce 35

354 Latin Poetry. 2 sem hr The course consists of reading the poems of Catullus and selected authors, together with a study of the origins and development of poetry among the Romans. Second semester even years W. H. MAGOON TuTh 1-2 Pierce 35

357 Martial and Juvenal. 2 sem hr In this course Martial's Epigrams and Juvenal's Satires are read. and a study is made of the social and political history of Rome in the first century A. D. First semester even years W. H. MAGOON MW 1-2 Pierce 35

SPANISH

Minor

Required Courses for a Minor in Spanish:

221, 222 Intermediate Spanish Electives in Literature Courses 8 sem hr 8 sem hr

121 and 122 Beginning Spanish do not count towards a minor.

121, 122 Beginning Spanish. 4 sem hr each (Formerly 121, 122 Spanish)

A beginning course in the language, running throughout the year. Particular attention is paid to pronunciation and the elementary principles of grammar. About 400 pages of reading material are covered during the year.

Each semester wolfe Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Lib 208 Sec 2 MTuThF 3-4 Lib 208

221, 222 Intermediate Spanish. 4 sem hr each (Formerly 221, 222 Spanish) The course provides for a thorough review of grammar with composition and reading from modern Spanish and Spanish-American literature. Prerequisite: 122 Beginning Spanish or two years of high school Spanish. Each semester WOLFE MWThF 9-10 Lib 208

The prerequisite for the following courses is 222 Intermediate Spanish, or four years of high school Spanish:

321, 322 Spanish Novel. 4 sem hr each

(Formerly 321, 322 Spanish)

The work of this year is devoted to the rise and development of the novel in Spain. It also includes a review of grammar, composition, and conversational practice.

First semester even, second semester odd years wolfe MTuThF 1-2 Lib 208

421 Spanish-American Literature. 4 sem hr (Formerly 421 Spanish) This course deals with the literature of Spanish America. One day a week is devoted to advanced grammar and composition. First semester odd years WOLFE MTuThF 1-2 Lib 208

422 Spanish Drama. 4 sem hr (Formerly 422 Spanish) A study of the Spanish drama and its development in the modern period. One day a week is devoted to advanced grammar and composition. Second semester even years wolfe MTuThF 1-2 Lib 208

GENERAL COURSES-

MODERN LANGUAGE TEACHERS COURSE-

111 Modern Language. 2 sem hr (See Education)

COURSES GIVEN IN ENGLISH-

All these courses count in Group I for degree requirements. No knowledge of a foreign language is necessary, and they are open to students from all departments. Two or more will be offered each summer session, but, unless otherwise provided, they will be offered during the year only on sufficient demand.

110 German Literature. 2 sem hr

This course will consist of: (a) a survey of the masterpieces of German literature, or (b) a study of a period, or (c) of one eminent German writer.

Offered only on sufficient demand during year SABOURIN Summer session.

112 Spanish Literature. 2 sem hr

This course will consist of: (a) a survey of the masterpieces of Spanish literature, or (b) a study of one period or (c) of one genre.

Offered only on sufficient demand during year WOLFE Summer session. Not offered 1942.

114 French Drama. 2 sem hr

This course will cover the period from Corneille to modern times, including Moliere, Racine, Voltaire, Hugo, Dumas fils, and various moderns.

Offered only on sufficient demand during year owens Summer session owens

115. French Novel and Short Story. 2 sem hr

A brief survey of the genesis of the novel in the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries will be followed by a thorough study of Hugo, Balzac, Flaubert, Maupassant, Daudet and Zola. Offered only on sufficient demand during year owens Summer session. Not offered 1942.

201 Mythology. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 101 Mythology)

The course is designed to acquaint the student with the general field of classical mythology and the psychology underlying it. The poet's and artist's selection and use of the classic myths from early until modern times are studied and provide an interpretation of mythological allusions in literature. Some 700 mounted pictures are displayed illustrating the artists' use of the myths. First semester even years CASE

TuTh 8-9 Pierce 34

222 Latin Literature. 2 sem hr

This course will be a survey of the most important Latin writers, and their contributions to English literature.

Offered only on sufficient demand during year CASE, W. H. MAGOON Summer session. Not offered 1942.

431 Greek Tragedy. 2 sem hr

(Formerly Greek Drama in English)

This course will include a study of the tragedies of Aeschylus. Sophocles, and Euripides with a comparison of Greek tragedy and later development of that genre.

Offered only on sufficient demand during year. W. H. MAGOON, CASE Summer session. Not offered 1942.

432 Greek Comedy. 2 sem hr The plays of Aristophanes will be read in detail. Offered only on sufficient demand during year W. H. MAGOON Not offered 1942.

234 Etymology. 2 sem hr (Formerly 234 Word Study) Greek and Latin words and roots which are current in English forms are studied in order to enlarge the vocabulary and to produce a more discriminating use of words. First semester odd years W. H. MAGOON TuTh 1-2 Pierce 35 235 French Words in English. 2 sem hr

French words and phrases in common use in modern English are studied. The correct pronunciation as well as the meaning of the words is emphasized. This course is *not* open to students in French courses.

Second semester even years owens TuTh 1-2 Lib 209 NATURAL SCIENCES

NATURAL SCIENCES

PROFESSOR CLARENCE M. LOESELL PROFESSOR J. R. HICKMAN ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MARTHA BEST ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MARTHA E. CURTIS ASSISTANT PROFESSOR MYRON T. STURGEON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR RACHEL UHVITS ASSISTANT PROFESSOR HILDA T. HARPSTER

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Natural Science:

*221 General Botany	4 sem hr
*222 General Zoology	4 sem hr
*300 The Human Body	3 sem hr
Electives in Natural Science	13 sem hr

Students majoring in Natural Sciences will take in addition 325 Methods in Science Teaching. (See Education.)

Required courses for a Minor in Natural Science:

The courses starred in the list above and five semester hours of electives in natural science constitute a minor in natural science. Students on the Physical Education Curriculum may present the following courses to satisfy a minor in Natural Science:

222	General Zoology	4 sem hr
211	General Bacteriology	3 sem hr
221	Anatomy and Physiology	5 sem hr
432	Physiology of Nutrition	2 sem hr
	Electives in Natural Science	2 sem hr

A student selecting a major and two minors in the three science departments, Natural Science, Physics, and Chemistry, should be prepared to teach the sciences usually offered in high school.

95

AGRICULTURE

Minor

Required Courses for a Minor in Agriculture:

201	Soils	2 sem hr
202	Farm Crops	2 sem hr
203	Animal Husbandry	2 sem hr
301	Horticulture	2 sem hr
	Electives in Natural Science	7 sem hr

Courses

101 General Agriculture. 3 sem hr

The motive of this course is "the farm as a home." It deals with the more personal economic, social and aesthetic features of farm life. Topics considered are the farm house and its conveniences, the planning and planting of the home grounds, the organization of the farmstead for economy and convenience, and the control of plant and animal pests. Special emphasis is placed upon the study of those intensive aspects of agriculture vital to the farm as a home, viz.; poultry, the garden and the farm orchard. Rural health as affected by environmental conditions on the farm is also considered.

Each semester LOESELL

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Sci 203 Sec 2 MWF 11-12 Sci 203 Second Semester MWF 10-11 Sci 203

102 General Agriculture. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 102 Soils, Crops, and Livestock)

This is a companion course to 101 Agriculture. It deals with the fundamental principles of soil management and conservation, and of crop and livestock production. The problems of land uses and government services for agriculture are studied. Also the student is made familiar with those governmental services and materials available to the rural teachers.

Taught only on sufficient demand.

201 Soils. 2 sem hr

The object of this course is to give the student a knowledge of the nature, origin, composition, and management of the soil. It should be taken by all students who wish to specialize along any line of agricultural work.

First semester odd years loesell. TuTh 2-4 Sci 203 202 Farm Crops. 2 sem hr

In the study of farm crops the student will become familiar with the botanical nature, uses, distribution, types, culture, harvesting, and methods of improvement of our common grain, forage, fibre, and root crops.

First semester even years LOESELL TuTh 2-4 Sci 203

203 Animal Husbandry. 2 sem hr

This course is designed to give the student a knowledge of the principles and methods involved in feeding, breeding, judging and management of livestock. On account of their local importance the dairy and poultry industries will receive special emphasis. Second semester odd years LOESELL TuTh 2-4 Sci 203

301 Horticulture. 2 sem hr

In the study of horticulture, emphasis will be placed on our common orchard and small fruit crops. The topics emphasized will be varieties, culture, propagation, pruning, care of fruit, and control of diseases by spraying. The student will secure practice in pruning, spraying, cultivation and propagation in one of the plots in the Practice Orchard.

Second semester even years LOESELL TuTh 2-4 Sci 203

BOTANY

221 General Botany. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 203 Non-vascular Plants and 204 Vascular Plants) This course surveys the plant kingdom from the lowest to the highest forms. Typical life histories are studied. Also, much attention is given to those structures and functions peculiar to plants. Prerequisite: 121 Principles of Biology or high school biology.

Each semester UHVITS

First Semester

Sec 1 MTuWThF 8-9 & MWF 9-10 Sci H101 Sec 2 MWThF 10-12 Sci H101 Second Semester MTuWThF 8-9 & MWF 9-10 Sci H101

202 Systematic Botany. 4 sem hr

This course is a study in the identification and classification of flowering plants. Stress is laid on families of greatest importance. Much field work is done on the campus, in nearby woods and occasionally in more remote localities. Prerequisite: 221 General Botany or its equivalent. Second semester UHVITS

MWThF 10-12 Sci H101

205 Plant Physiology. 2 sem hr

This course aims to familiarize the student with the more important plant functions. The work will be presented by means of lectures, textbook and reference assignments, demonstrations, and individual laboratory exercises.

Second semester even years UHVITS

TuTh 1-3 Sci H101

211 General Bacteriology. 3 sem hr

This course is a study of the conditions of existence of bacteria, preparation of cultures, sterilization and disinfection, micro-organisms in relation to disease, common diagnostic methods, and the prevention of disease including the use of antiserums and vaccines. The course is designed for physical education and special education students, but is open to all students except those who have 212 Microbiology. Desirable prerequisites: High school biology and general chemistry.

Each semester BEST

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Sci H201 Sec 2 MWF 10-11 Sci H201 Sec 3 MWF 11-12 Sci H201 Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Sci H201 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Sci H201

212 Microbiology. 3 sem hr

This is a study of representative types of bacteria, yeast, and molds in relationship to higher life, especially man. Emphasis is placed on the part of micro-organisms in food, production and food preservation, methods of sterilization and disinfection, and the bacteria of the air and water. The course is designed for home economics students but is open to all students except those who are required to take 211 General Bacteriology. Desirable prerequisites: High school biology and general chemistry. First semester BEST

MWF 1-3 Sci H201

402 Algae, 2 sem hr

This course is designed to acquaint the student with the structure, development, life histories, classification, and habitats of algae. Special emphasis is placed upon collecting and classification of the local blue-green and green algae. Prerequisite: 221 General Botany or equivalent.

First semester even years UHVITS TuTh 1-3 Sci H101

403 Fungi, 2 sem hr

This course consists of a study of the structure, development, life histories, classification, habitats, and economic importance of the fungi. Special emphasis is placed upon the collecting and classification of local forms. Fungi producing important plant diseases will also be studied. Prerequisite: 221 General Botany or equivalent.

First semester odd years UNVITS TuTh 1-3 Sci H101

CONSERVATION

231 Conservation in Michigan. 1 sem hr

Held in cooperation with State Department of Conservation at Higgins Lake, Enrollment open to both men and women, Reservation should be made before July 1. Expense, including tuition, board and room is \$20.00.

Summer Extension (June 13-20)

232 Land Use Problems of Northern Peninsula. 2 sem hr

Offered in cooperation with State Department of Conservation. A 1200 mile trip radiating out from five camps. Students are quartered in tents; cots, sleeping bags, linen and meals are furnished. Expense, including board and room and transportation from Higgins Lake and return, is \$48.00 plus extension fee charged by college.

Summer Extension (Not offered 1942)

233 Field Bird Study. 1 sem hr

Held at State Department of Conservation School at Higgins Lake. Field trips, laboratory work, identification, nesting habits, songs of birds will be studied. Expense, including tuition, room and board is \$20.00.

Summer Extension (June 13-20)

234 General Field Botany. 1 sem hr

Held in cooperation with State Department of Conservation at Higgins Lake. General view of plant kingdom will be given and plant anatomy and identification will be stressed. Expense, including tuition, board and room is \$20.00. Summer Extension (June 13-20)

235 Field Entomology. 1 sem hr

Held in cooperation with State Department of Conservation at Higgins Lake. Identification and control of insects of importance to conservation activities will be stressed. Expense, including tuition, board and room is \$20.00. Summer Extension (June 13-20)

For further information confer with Head of Department.

GEOLOGY

201 Minerals and Rocks. 2 sem hr

(Formerly part of 221 Physical Geology)

This is a practical course in the identification of the common minerals and rocks by means of their physical properties. Consideration is also given to their formation, occurrence, and economic importance, and special attention is given to the minerals and rocks of Michigan. An elementary knowledge of chemistry will be helpful. There are lectures, laboratory identification, and visits to nearby mineral and rock exhibits. First semester STURGEON Sec 1 TuTh 1-3 Sci 107 Sec 2 Sat 10-11:45 Sci 107 (even years)

221 Physical Geology. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 202 Dynamic Geology)

This course is a study of the physical agencies that have determined the shape and character of the Earth's surface and that are still at work in modifying it. The topics studied include the geologic importance of weathering, running water, glaciers, wind, sea and lakes, volcanoes, earthquakes, earth structures, and mountain's. There are lectures, laboratory exercises with topographic maps, and field work. An elementary knowledge of minerals and rocks will be helpful.

Second semester STURGEON TuTh 1-3 Sci 107

222 Historical Geology. 3 sem hr (Formerly 205 Historical Geology)

Historical geology is a study of the evolution of the earth and its plant and animal inhabitants. Such study leads to a better understanding of the present earth features and is essential for an understanding of the existing plant and animal groups, their relationships and life histories. There are lectures, laboratory exercises with fossils and geologic maps, and field work. An elementary knowledge of biology and physical geology will be helpful.

Second semester odd years STURGEON MWF 1-3 Sci 107

GENERAL BIOLOGY

121 Principles of Biology. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 101 Plant Biology and 101 Animal Biology)

This is an introductory course dealing with living organisms. It consists of a presentation of the biological principles common to both plants and animals as well as a general survey of the two kingdoms. Considerable emphasis is also placed upon the methods and techniques by which scientific knowledge is obtained. This course should not be elected by persons who have had high school biology.

Each semester HARPSTER MWF 8-9, MTuWThF 9-10 Sci H202

301 Genetics. 3 sem hr

"Genetics is the science which undertakes to account for the resemblances and the differences which are exhibited among organ-

NATURAL SCIENCES

isms related by descent." (Babcock and Clausen) This course seeks to present such facts and principles from the fields of variation, cytology, animal breeding and embryology as will enable the student to interpret ordinary hereditary phenomena in both plants and animals. Applications of these principles to the human race are constantly made. This course is not open to freshmen or sophomores. Prerequisite: 121 Principles of Biology or equivalent. Each semester HICKMAN

First Semester MWF 9-10 Sci 203 Second Semester Sat 12:30-3 Sci 207 (even years)

305 Organic Evolution. 2 sem hr

This course deals with two questions. First, "Is Evolution a rational hypothesis?" Second, "What may have been the causal factors in evolution?" Answers to these questions are sought definitely in facts, as manifested in geological history, comparative anatomy, embryological development, natural classification, geographical distribution and experimental breeding. Prerequisites: 221 General Botany and 222 General Zoology.

Each semester even years HICKMAN

First Semester TuTh 8-9 Sci 205 Second Semester Sat (hrs to be arranged) Sci 205

306 Anthropology. 2 sem hr

The origin of the human race, its antiquity, classification and distribution over the earth will make up the body of the course. The growth of the various cultures, especially those in the New World, the progress toward civilization and the light which race history sheds upon the nature of modern man will be considered. Not open to freshmen or sophomores. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology.

Each semester odd years HICKMAN

First Semester TuTh 8-9 Sci 305 Second Semester Sat 10-11 :45 Sci 207

401 Biological Techniques. 2 sem hr (Formerly 401 Methods in Biology)

The aim of the course is to give the students the technical knowl-

rife and training required for the preparation of materials for high school courses in Biology, and for Biological investigations. The student is introduced to microscopic technique, methods of collecting and caring for materials, recording of data by notes, photography, rearing cultures, making of charts, and skeletons, projection apparatus, the structure and use of microscope, sources of laboratory supplies and equipment and many other topics. Prerequisites: 121 Principles of Biology or high school biology. First semester HICKMAN

TuTh 3-5 Sci 207

101

407 Bio-ecology. 2 sem hr

This course deals with the relation of plants and animals to their physical and biological environment. Extensive field work supplements the discussions, reading, and laboratory work. Prerequisite: 100 Fundamentals in Elementary Science or 121 Principles of Biology or 101 Fundamentals in Elementary Science. Second semester odd years UHVITS Sec 1 TuTh 1-3 Sci H101

Sec 2 Sat 12:45-2:30 Sci H101

ELEMENTARY SCIENCE

Major

Required courses for a Major in Elementary Science:

100	Fundamentals in Elementary Science			
101	Elementary Science for Rural Schools	2	sem	hr
103	Gardening	2	sem	hr
307	Ornamental Plants	2	sem	hr
208	Local Flora	2	sem	hr
209	Insects	2	sem	hr
210	Birds	2	sem	hr
211	Elementary Physical Science (Physics Department)	3	sem	hr
122	Weather and Climate (Geography Department)	2	sem	hr
201	The Solar System (Physics Department)	2	sem	hr
201	Minerals and Rocks (Geology)	2	sem	hr
201		2	sem	hr
407		2	sem	hr
	101 103 307 208 209 210 211 122 201 201 201	 101 Elementary Science for Rural Schools 103 Gardening (101 Agriculture if taken on State Limited Curriculum) 307 Ornamental Plants 208 Local Flora 209 Insects 210 Birds 211 Elementary Physical Science (Physics Department) 122 Weather and Climate (Geography Department) 201 The Solar System (Physics Department) 201 Minerals and Rocks (Geology) 201 Every-day Chemistry (Chemistry Department) 407 Bio-ecology 	101Elementary Science for Rural Schools2103Gardening2(101Agriculture if taken on State Limited Curriculum)2307Ornamental Plants2208Local Flora2209Insects2210Birds2211Elementary Physical Science3(Physics Department)2201The Solar System2(Geography Department)2201Minerals and Rocks2(Geology)2201Every-day Chemistry2(Chemistry Department)407407Bio-ecology2	101Elementary Science for Rural Schools2 sem103Gardening2 sem104Agriculture if taken on State Limited Curriculum)2 sem307Ornamental Plants2 sem208Local Flora2 sem209Insects2 sem210Birds2 sem211Elementary Physical Science3 sem(Physics Department)2sem201The Solar System2 sem(Geography Department)2201Minerals and Rocks2 sem(Gelogy)2sem(Chemistry Department)2201Every-day Chemistry2 sem(Geology)2sem

Students majoring in Elementary Science will take in addition 201 Elementary Science for Primary Grades, or 202 Elementary Science for Intermediate Grades. (See Education)

Minor

Required courses for a Minor in Elementary Science: 100 Fundamentals in Elementary Science or 101 Elementary Science for Rural Schools 2 sem hr Electives from above list 13 sem hr

NATURAL SCIENCES

Courses

All courses listed below are planned and taught for students specializing in elementary education. Except as specifically required on various curricula they may not be used to satisfy requirements in Group II, or used as electives on the Natural Science Major or on the Biology, Physical Education, or Agriculture Minors.

100 Fundamentals in Elementary Science. 2 sem hr This course is an elementary academic course intended to furnish a background for those subjects commonly designated as "Elementary Science and Nature Study." The topics treated will be drawn from the ordinary branches of science, and selected on the basis of their suitability to the elementary grades. Each semester curris

First Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Sci H102 Sec 2 TuTh 11-12 Sci H102 Sec 3 TuTh 1-2 Sci H102 Sec 4 Sat 12:45-2:30 Sci H102 (even years) Second Semester

Sec	1	TuTh	9-10	Sci	H102	
Sec	2	TuTh	11-12	Sci	H102	
Sec	3	TuTh	1-2	Sci	H102	

101 Elementary Science for Rural Schools. 2 sem hr

A special course planned for those preparing to teach in rural schools, A selected list of topics will be presented especially applicable to the country environment and presented in the most practical manner possible. Short field trips, laboratory exercises and classroom demonstration will feature the course. Among the topics treated will be birds, trees, seed distribution, bees, ants, slik moth, minerals, rocks, soils, erosion, weather, oxidation, along with the principles of natural and artificial selection. Each semester LOESELL

First Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Sci 203 Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Sci 203 Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Sci 203 Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Sci 203 Sec 3 Sat (hours to be arranged) Sci 203 (even years)

201 Elementary Science for Primary Grades. 3 sem hr (See Education)

202 Elementary Science for Intermediate Grades, 3 sem hr (See Education)

103 Gardening. 2 sem hr

The object of this course is to give teachers such knowledge of school and home gardening as will be of greatest value in educational work. It will consist of a special study of the types and culture of both our new and common vegetable crops. Each student will be assigned a plot of ground 12 feet by 30 feet, in which thirty vegetable types will be grown. The planting, cultivation, succession cropping, and control of insect pests by spraying will constitute a large portion of the laboratory work. Second semester LOESEL

TuTh 11-12 Sci 203

206 Elementary Science for Teachers in Service. 2 sem hr

This course aims to acquaint teachers with the most significant and understandable physical facts in the grade child's environment. The subject matter includes units on weather, the solar system, minerals and rocks, changes in the earth's surface, electricity and magnetism.

Taught only in summer and by extension LOESELL, CURTIS

208 Local Flora. 2 sem hr

The aim of this course is to make the prospective grade teacher familiar with the more important common native plants of Michigan. Emphasis will be placed on the identification of trees, shrubs, and herbaceous plants by use of simple keys. Topics such as conservation of the native flora, harmful and useful forms of plant life, and simple plant collections will also receive attention. There will be much field work.

Second semester BEST

Sec 1 TuTh 8-10 Sci H201

Sec 2 TuTh 2-4 Sci H201

Sec 3 Sat 10-11:45 Sci H201 (odd years)

209 Insects. 2 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to meet the needs of the elementary teachers for insect study units. Students will be taught the methods used in collecting, preserving, and mounting specimens for school use. Consideration will be given to life history studies, insect ecology, and the relation of these animals to man. The various methods used to maintain living insect material in the laboratory will be demonstrated, as this part of insect study is especially valuable in arousing child interest. Prerequisite: 100 or 101 Elementary Science.

First semester HARPSTER Sec 1 TuTh 2-4 Sci H202 Sec 2 Sat 12:45-2:30 Sci H202 (even years)

210 Birds. 2 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to meet the needs of elementary teachers for bird study units. The class activities include the identification of some of the more common Michigan birds in the laboratory and in the field and a study of songs, nests, migration. enemies, food habits, and value of birds. Attention is given to bird literature and to attracting birds to the school and home by means of feeding stations, baths, nest boxes, trees and shrubs. Prerequisite: 100 or 101 Elementary Science. Each semester STURGEON

First Semester

Sat (hrs to be arranged) Sci 107

Second Semester TuTh 8-10 Sci 107

211 Elementary Physical Science. 3 sem hr (See Physics)

307 Ornamental Plants. 2 sem hr (Formerly 207 Ornamental Plants)

This is a general culture course aiming to acquaint the student with our garden flowers, our ornamental shrubs and our trees. It deals with their identification and culture, their use in landscaping, and with methods of propagation and pruning. The campus furnishes a wealth of material for study and much time is spent in the field. Visits are made to gardens in Ypsilanti and neighboring towns. Prerequisite: 100 Fundamentals in Elementary Science and 208 Local Flora.

Second semester BEST

Sec 1 MW 10-12 Sci H201

Sec 2 Sat (hrs to be arranged) Sci H201 (even years)

HUMAN PHYSIOLOGY AND ANATOMY

101 Principles of Physiology. 2 sem hr

This course deals in an elementary way with principles of human physiology. It is designed especially for those who are unable to meet the requirements of the more advanced courses in physiology, but who are interested in securing a knowledge of bodily functions. There are illustrated lectures, required reading, and frequent quizzes. It is open to all students without prerequisites. It will count as a free elective in Group II, but not as an elective on a Natural Science major or minor. Each semester HARPSTER

TuTh 11-12 Sci H202

221 Anatomy and Physiology. 5 sem hr (Formerly 201 and 202 Anatomy and Physiology) This is a textbook course, supplemented by lectures and demontrations, on the structure and functions of the bones, joints and muscles and the organs of digestion, respiration and excretion. First semester BOUGHNER, BYNEARSON Women MTuWThF 8-9 Gym 12 Men MTuWThF 1-2 Gym 12

300 The Human Body 3 sem hr This is a textbook course in human physiology and hygiene. This course is required of all students majoring or minoring in Natural Science but may be elected by other students who have had the necessary preparation. Prerequisites: 221 General Botany and 222 General Zoology. Each semester HARPSTER First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Sci H202 Sec 2 Sat 12:45-2:30 Sci H202 (even years) Second Semester MWF 10-11 Sci H202

432 Physiology of Nutrition. 2 sem hr

This course is a study of the processes of digestion, metabolism and the fundamentals of diet. A textbook is used, supplemented by lectures, assigned readings and studies of the personal diet of students, Prerequisites: 131 Inorganic Chemistry and 220 Elementary Organic Chemistry.

Each semester PROUSE

First Semester

MTh 10-11 Pierce 36

Second Semester TuTh 2-3 Pierce 37

ZOOLOGY

222 General Zoology. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 102 Invertebrate Zoology and 103 Vertebrate Zoology) A general survey of the groups of invertebrate and vertebrate animals is made according to the evolutionary sequence. Emphasis is placed upon the classification and structures; however, time is devoted to such aspects as physiology, life-histories, habits, distribution, and economic relations. Prerequisite: 121 Principles of Biology or high school biology.

Each semester HICKMAN, STURGEON

First Semester

Sec 1 MTuWThF 8-9 & MWF 9-10 Sci 207 Sec 2 MWThF 10-12 Sci 207 Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 8-9 & MTuWThF 9-10 Sci 207 Sec 2 MWThF 10-12 Sci 207 Sec 3 MWF 1-2 & MTuWThF 2-3 Sci 207

223 Animal Embryology. 3 sem hr (Formerly 203 Animal Embryology.)

This is a course that gives an introduction to the fundamental facts and principles of the reproduction and development of animals. The laboratory work deals largely with the organogeny of the chick with demonstrations and study of other forms. Some attention is given to embryological laboratory methods. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology.

Second semester even years HICKMAN MWF 3-5 Sci 205

224 Comparative Anatomy of Vertebrates. 3 sem hr (Formerly 206 Comparative Anatomy of Vertebrates.) The course deals with the comparative anatomy and evolution of the various vertebrate organs. The classification of vertebrates

106

in relation to their evolution is also discussed. The laboratory work consists in the dissection of vertebrate types, including fish. amphibian, reptile, bird, and mammal. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology.

Second semester odd years HICKMAN MWF 3-5 Sci 207

420 Lower Invertebrates, 2 sem hr

The primary purpose of this course is to give training in the identification and recognition of the common animals belonging to the various groups of invertebrates excepting the arthropods. The phyla, protozoa, annelida, and mollusca will be emphasized. Various aspects such as life histories, habits, and economic importance will be considered. This course is taught by means of lectures, laboratory studies, collecting trips, and demonstrations. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology.

Second semester even years HARPSTER TuTh 2-4 Sci H202

421 Arthropods. 3 sem hr This course is one of the units in the invertebrate zoology series. The purpose of the course is to train students so that they will be able to identify the common animals belonging to the groups of crustaceans, centipeds, millipeds, spiders, and insects with particular emphasis upon the insects. Attention will be given to life histories, distribution, phylogenic relationship, and economic importance. Instruction will be given for the building of individual collections. Lectures, laboratory studies, collecting trips, and demonstrations will feature the course. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology or equivalent.

First semester HICKMAN MWF 10-12 Sci 205

422 Ichthyology, 2 sem hr

(Formerly 322 Fishes)

This course is the first unit in a general survey of the vertebrate division of the animal kingdom. The student is given special training in the classification of the fresh water fish of the Great Lakes region. Also, there is a general survey of the fishes of the world. The natural history, anatomy, ecology, and conservation of fishes are considered. Lectures, laboratory studies, field trips. and demonstrations feature the course, Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology or equivalent.

First semester even years HICKMAN TuTh 1-3 Sci 207

423 Amphibians and Reptiles. 2 sem hr

This course is the second unit in a general survey of the vertebrate division of the animal kingdom. The student becomes acquainted with the amphibians and reptiles of the world with emphasis placed upon those of the United States. Their natural history, anatomy, distribution, and economic importance are considered.

There will be lectures, laboratory work, field studies, and demonstrations. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology or equivalent. Second semester odd years HARPSTER TuTh 2-4 Sci H202

425 Ornithology. 3 sem hr (Formerly 325 Ornithology)

This course is the third unit in a general survey of the vertebrate division of the animal kingdom. Considerable attention is given to avian anatomy, physiology, taxonomy, evolution, adaptations, distribution, life histories, economic importance, and conservation. About 200 species of Michigan birds will be classified according to information obtained from the study of skins in the laboratory and from the living birds in the field. There are lectures, laboratory exercises, and field trips. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology or equivalent.

Second semester even years STURGEON MWF 8-10 Sci 107

426 Mammalogy. 2 sem hr (Formerly 326 Mammalogy)

This course is a fourth unit in a general survey of the vertebrate division of the animal kingdom. The student becomes acquainted with the mammals of northeastern America and, to some degree, those of the world. Behavior, life histories, conservation, fundamentals of mammalian anatomy, physiology, and evolution are subjects treated. Lectures, laboratory work, field trips, and demonstrations feature the course. Prerequisite: 222 General Zoology or equivalent.

First semester odd years HICKMAN TuTh 3-5 Sci 207

CHEMISTRY

CHEMISTRY

PROFESSOR PERRY S. BRUNDAGE ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR JOHN A. SELLERS ASSISTANT PROFESSOR JAMES W. KERCHEVAL ASSISTANT PROFESSOR JAMES L. GABBARD

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Chemistry:

*131 Inorganic Chemistry
 *132 Inorganic Chemistry
 261 Qualitative Analysis
 271 Quantitative Analysis
 371 Organic Chemistry
 Electives

3 sem hr 3 sem hr 4 sem hr 5 sem hr 4 sem hr 5 sem hr

Students majoring in Chemistry will take in addition 325 Methods in Science Teaching (See Education), 220 and 251 Chemistry may be substituted for 371 Chemistry.

All laboratory courses require a deposit for breakage and nonreturnable apparatus, to be paid at the time the student pays tuition.

\$2.00 for courses numbered in the 100 series \$4.00 for courses numbered in the 200, 300 or 400 series

Required Courses for a Minor in Chemistry:

The courses starred in the list above with electives, nine semester hours, additional.

A student selecting a major and two minors in the three science departments, Chemistry, Physics, and Natural Science, should be prepared to teach the science courses usually offered in high school.

Note: Students without high school chemistry should take in place of courses 131 and 132, courses 121 and 122.

Courses

121 General Chemistry. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 101a, 101b General Chemistry)

Students electing 121 are expected to elect 122 the following semester. It is a beginner's course in chemistry and is recommended to those who have not had good training in high school chemistry.

A college course in the study of the history, occurrence, preparation, properties and uses of the most important non-metals, with

109

their principal compounds and the elementary principles underlying chemistry. Lectures, illustrated by experiments, textbooks, and laboratory work. This course is elective to those who have not had high school chemistry.

First semester KERCHEVAL

Lectures:

Sec 1 MTuWF 8-9 Sci 302 Sec 2 MTuWF 1-2 Sci 302 Laboratory:

Laboratory:

Sec 1 MTh 10-12 Sci 306 Sec 2 WF 10-12 Sci 306

122 General Chemistry. 4 sem hr (Formerly 101b, 101c, General Chemistry) This course is a continuation of 121 General Chemistry. The study of the common non-metals is completed and some time is given to organic chemistry and the common metals. Prerequisite: 121 General Chemistry. Second semester KERCHEVAL

Lectures:

Sec 1 MTuWF 8-9 Sci 302 Sec 2 MTuWF 1-2 Sci 302 Sec 1 MTh 10-12 Sci 306 Sec 2 WF 10-12 Sci 306

131 Inorganic Chemistry. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 101 General and Inorganic Chemistry) This course is elective to those who have had one year of high school chemistry with laboratory work in an accredited school. If a student is not well prepared in high school chemistry, he should take 121. This is a foundation course and must precede all other courses except 121, 122, and 201 Chemistry. Each semester BRUNDAGE, SELLERS, KERCHEVAL

First Semester

Sec 1 MTuWF 8-9 Sci 303 & Sec 6 MWThF 1-2 Sci	303 a
	306
Sec 2 MWThF 8-9 Sci 303 & Sec 7 MTuWTh 2-3 Sci	303 &
Tu 8-10 Sci 306 F 1-3 Sci	306
Sec 3 MTuWTh 9-10 Sci 303 & Sec 8 MTuThF 2-3 Sci	303 &
	306
Sec 4 MTuThF 9-10 Sci 303 & Second Semester	
W 8-10 Sci 306	
Sec 5 MTuWF 1-2 Sci 303 & MTuWF 3-4 Sci 303 &	
Th 1-3 Sci 306 Tu 3-5 Sci 306	

132 Inorganic Chemistry. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 102 General and Inorganic Chemistry)

This is a continuation of 131 Chemistry. It includes a study of the halogen family, oxidation and reduction, nitrogen, sulphur, carbon, and their principal compounds. A short time is given to the principal metals. The theory and fundamental principles of chemistry are emphasized in both 131 and 132 Chemistry. Prerequisite: 131 Inorganic Chemistry. Second semester SELERS, KERCHEVAL First Semester MWF 3-4 Sci 303 & TuTh 3-5 Sci 306 Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Sci 303 & TuTh 8-10 Sci 306 Sec 2 MTuTh 9-10 Sci 306 WF 8-10 Sci 306 Sec 3 MWF 1-2 Sci 303 & TuTh 1-3 Sci 306

133 Elements of Organic Chemistry. 2 sem hr

This is an elective for students who do not wish to do any further work in chemistry, but want an elementary practical knowledge of organic chemistry. A required course for Physical Education majors who do not expect to do more work in chemistry. It deals with applications of chemistry to problems of sanitation, health, nutrition, and physiology. If one wishes to minor in chemistry, or to prepare for advanced chemistry, he should take 132 and 220 or 371 Chemistry instead of this course. Prerequisite: 131 Chemistry or 121 and 122 Chemistry. Second semester SELIERS

TuTh 11-12 Sci 303

201 Every-day Chemistry. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 120 Every-day Chemistry)

This course is designed especially for those students whose major interests lie elsewhere than in chemistry. The purpose of the course is cultural giving the general fundamental principles of chemistry without going into too much detail or theory. No previous chemistry is required and there is no laboratory work. It is largely a lecture-demonstration course accompanied by text-book and reference reading. It deals with practical things of daily life, chemistry in the industries, in the home and in the garden. Not to be taken for credit by students who have had high school or college chemistry.

First semester GABBARD TuTh 11-12 Sci 303

220 Elementary Organic Chemistry. 2 sem hr

A required course for Home Economics majors and elective to nonspecializing students who have had a year of college general chemistry. Applications of organic chemistry to sanitation, health, nutrition, and physiology are stressed. Prerequisites: 131 and 132 Inorganic Chemistry or equivalent.

First semester KERCHEVAL TuTh 9-10 Sci 302

251 Physiological Chemistry. 2 sem hr

An elementary study of food digestion, assimilation and distribution; glandular secretions, metabolism and waste products. Course 341 will supply desirable laboratory work. Prerequisite: 220 Elementary Organic Chemistry or 371 Organic Chemistry. Second semester KERCHEVAL TuTh 9-10 Sci 302

261 Qualitative Analysis. 4 sem hr

A lecture and laboratory course treating the theory and practice of identification and separation of ions, metals, salts, and mixtures. Applications of the theories of solution, ionization, equilibrium, common ion effect, oxidation and reduction are basic considerations. Prerequisites: 131 and 132 Inorganic Chemistry or equivalent.

Each semester SELLERS, GABBARD

First Semester

Second Semester Sec 1 MTuWThF 8-10 Sci 306 MTuWThF 1-3 Sci 306 Sec 2 MTuWThF 1-3 Sci 306

271 Quantitative Analysis. 5 sem hr

A lecture and laboratory course treating the theory and practice of gavimetric and volumetric analysis. Such samples as brass, limestone and iron ore are used to develop skill in gavimetric and electrolytic separations. Prerequisites: 131 and 132 Inorganic Chemistry and 261 Qualitative Analysis or equivalent. Each semester GABBARD

First Semester Lectures: TuTh 2-3 Sci 302 Laboratory: MWF 1-4 Sci 305 - Second Semester Lectures: Sec 1 MW 10-11 Sci 303 Sec 2 TuTh 2-3 Sci 303 Laboratoru: Sec 1 Tu 8-10, Th 8-11 & Sat 8-12 Sci 305 Sec 2 MWF 1-4 Sci 305

341 Food Analysis. 3 sem hr

A laboratory course in the analysis of typical foods as milk and other dairy products, fats and oils, sugars, cereals, fruits and vegetables. A desirable course to accompany 251 Chemistry, Prerequisite: A knowledge of organic chemistry. Second semester BRUNDAGE

Lecture:

TuTh 8-9 Sci 303

Laboratory: MWF 8-10 Sci 307

371 Organic Chemistry. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 221 and 321 Organic Chemistry)

A lecture and laboratory course for students specializing in science and those preparing for dentistry or medicine. Prerequisites : 131 and 132 Inorganic Chemistry, and 261 Qualitative Analysis. First semester BRUNDAGE

Lecture: MWF 11-12 Sci 303 Laboratory: Sec 1 TuTh 1-4 Sci 307 Sec 2 W 1-4 & Sat 8-11 Sci 307 372 Organic Chemistry. 4 sem hr (Formerly 321 and 331 Organic Chemistry)

A continuation of course 371 Organic Chemistry and with it constituting the customary year of foundation work in organic chemistry. Prerequisite: 371 Organic Chemistry. Second semester BRUNDAGE

Lecture:

MWF 11-12 Sci 303

Laboratory:

Sec 1 TuTh 1-4 Sci 307 Sec 2 W 1-4 & Sat 8-11 Sci 307

461 Physical Chemistry. 3 sem hr

The work includes a study of the fundamentals of chemistry, the laws and theories that relate to the behavior of gases, liquids and solids, molecular weight determinations, properties of solutions, thermo-chemistry, chemical equilibrium, colloids, periodic law and atomic structure. This course is particularly valuable for those who expect to teach physics and chemistry. Prerequisites: 131 and 132 Inorganic Chemistry, 261 Qualitative Analysis, 371 Organic Chemistry, and college physics.

First semester GABBARD

MWF 10-11 Sci 303

462 Physicochemical Measurements. 2 sem hr

A laboratory course involving determination of molecular weights, properties of pure liquids and solutions, heat of reactions, reaction rates, optical and electrical measurements, etc. Prerequisites: Foundation courses in chemistry, mathematics and physics. Must be preceded or accompanied by 461 Physical Chemistry.

First semester GABBARD, BRUNDAGE TuTh 1-4 Sci 305

471 History of Chemistry. 2 sem hr

The story of the development of chemistry from the beginning to the present time helps to give one a broad general view of science. A study of the way great men have solved problems is a great assistance in solving our own. Included in this course is a study of chemical literature and methods of locating information. All students specializing in chemistry should take this course. Prerequisites: Two years of college chemistry. First semester KERCHEVAL WF 9-10 Sci 302

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

GEOGRAPHY

PROFESSOR JAMES H. GLASGOW ASSISTANT PROFESSOR MARGARET SILL ASSISTANT PROFESSOR HARRY E. HOY

Major and Minor

	red Courses for a Major in Geography: Introductory Regional Geography	9	sem	hr
	Minerals and Rocks (Natural Sci.)		sem	
221	Physical Geology (Natural Sci.)	2	sem	hr
303	Field Geography	2	sem	hr
	Electives in Geography	16	sem	hr

Required Courses for a Minor in Geography:

101	Introductory Regional Geography	2 sem hr
	Electives in Geography	13 sem hr

In both majors and minors, at least nine semester hours of electives should be chosen from the following courses: Geography 203, 205, 211, 321, 322.

Courses

101 Introductory Regional Geography. 2 sem hr (Formerly 121 Principles of Human Geography and 101 Principles of Geography)

An introduction to geography; the distribution of population, temperature, precipitation, vegetation, land forms, water bodies, soils, minerals, and industries in the world. Each semester GLASGOW, SILL, HOY

Sec 1 TuTh	8-9 Pi	ierce 21	Sec 4	TuTh	1-2	Pierce	21
Sec 2 TuTh	9-10 P	ierce 21	Sec 5	TuTh	2-3	Pierce	21
Sec 3 TuTh	11-12 Pi	ierce 21	Sec 6	TuTh	3-4	Pierce	21

122 Weather and Climate. 2 sem hr Observation of weather elements, use of meteorological instruments, and practice in forecasting the weather. Each semester GLASGOW TuTh 8-9 Pierce 7

201 Minerals and Rocks. 2 sem hr (See Natural Science Department)

221 Physical Geology. 2 sem hr (See Natural Science Department) GEOGRAPHY

203 Geography of Asia. 3 sem hr

A regional treatment. The natural setting, the distribution of the people, the important occupations, and the problems of future development in each of several regions. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography. Second semester SILL

MWF 10-11 Pierce 21

205 Geography of Europe. 3 sem hr

A regional treatment. The natural setting, the distribution of the people, the important occupations, and the problems of future development in each of several regions. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography.

Each semester SILL

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Pierce 21 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Pierce 21

209 Geography of Commerce. 3 sem hr

Manufacturing centers, market areas, and the distribution of important raw materials; the physical, economic, and transportational factors in production and trade,

First semester SILL

MWF 10-11 Pierce 21

211 Geography of the United States and Canada. 3 sem hr (Formerly 201 Geography of the United States)

A regional treatment. The natural setting, the distribution of the people, the important occupations, and the problems of future development in each of several regions. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography.

Each semester GLASGOW

First Semester MWF 10-11 Pierce 7 Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Pierce 7

Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Pierce 7

301 Maps and Mapping. 2 sem hr

A laboratory course in the techniques of mapping. The study and construction of several map projections, the evaluation of maps, and the use of map-drawing instruments. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography. Second semester odd years GLASGOW

TuTh 3-5 Pierce 7

303 Field Geography. 2 sem hr

Techniques in the observation of geographic features in the field. The construction of maps from field sketches and notes and the preparation of field reports. City, village, rural, and recreational areas are mapped. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography.

Each semester even years glasgow

First Semester Sat 10-11:45 Pierce 7 Second Semester TuTh 3-5 Pierce 7 313 Geography of Michigan. 2 sem hr

A detailed regional treatment. The natural setting, the distribution of people, the important occupations, and the problems of future development in each part of the state. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography.

Each semester GLASGOW

TuTh 11-12 Pierce 7

321 Geography of Latin America. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 204 Geography of Latin America and 319 Geography of Caribbean Lands)

A regional treatment. The natural setting, the distribution of the people, the important occupations, and the problems of future development in each of several regions. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography.

Each semester Hoy

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 7 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Pierce 7

322 Geography of Africa and Australia. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 318 Geography of Australia and 320 Geography of Africa)

A regional treatment. The natural setting, the distribution of the people, the important occupations, and the problems of future development in each of several regions. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography. East semester Hoy

First Semester

MWF 11-12 Pierce 7

Second Semester Sat 9-11:30 Pierce 21

331 Political Geography. 2 sem hr

A geographic background for current world problems. A study of the resources, peoples, boundaries, and reciprocal regional relations of the important nations and empires of the world. Prerequisite: 101 Introductory Regional Geography. First semester GLASGOW

TuTh 2-3 Pierce 7

341 Methods and Materials in Geography. 2 sem hr (Formerly 206 Applied Geography)

An evaluation of methods commonly utilized in the teaching of geography, the available textual materials, the advantages of various types of maps and globes, and other visual aids. Recommended for students who expect to teach geography and for those who are following either elementary curriculum.

Each semester SILL

TuTh 9-10 Pierce 7

PHYSICS AND ASTRONOMY

PHYSICS AND ASTRONOMY

PROFESSOR HARRY L. SMITH ASSISTANT PROFESSOR WINSTON L. HOLE ASSISTANT PROFESSOR LEONARD P. ELLIOTT

PHYSICS

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Physics:

*221	Mechanics, Sound and Heat	4 sem hr
	Light and Electricity	4 sem hr
	Problems in Physics	2 sem hr
	Electrical Measurements	4 sem hr
	Modern Physics	2 sem hr
	Mechanics of Solids	2 sem hr
425	Sound	2 sem hr
426	Heat	2 sem hr
427	Light	2 sem hr

Students majoring in Physics will take in addition 325 Methods in Science Teaching, (See Education)

Required Courses for a Minor in Physics:

The courses starred in the list above and seven semester hours. selected from the list.

A student selecting a major and two minors in the three science departments, Physics, Chemistry, and Natural Science, should be prepared to teach the science courses usually offered in high school.

Courses

121 Mechanics, Sound and Heat. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 101 Mechanics and 102 Sound, Heat and Light)

An elementary course for students who have had no high school physics. Fundamental physical laws in the mechanics of liquids. gases, and solids, and in the subject of heat and sound, are studied and applied to everyday living. Four recitations and two one-hour laboratory periods per week are required. A working knowledge of algebra and geometry are desired.

First semester ELLIOTT

Lectures:

Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Sci 202 Sec 2 MTuThF 2-3 Sci 202

Laboratory: 2 das 1-2, 2-3, or 3-4 Sci 206 117

122 Light and Electricity. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 102 Sound, Heat and Light and 103 Magnetism and Electricity)

As in the preceding course, emphasis is placed on the practical side of the subject. The fundamental principles of light, magnetism and electricity are studied and demonstrated. Electrical phenomena are explained in terms of the electron theory as far as possible. Four recitations and two one-hour laboratory periods per week. Prerequisite: 121 Mechanics, Sound and Heat. Second semester ELLOTT

Lectures:

Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Sci 202 Sec 2 MTuThF 2-3 Sci 202

Laboratory: 2 das 9-10, 1-2, 2-3 or 3-4 Sci 206

123 Physics for Students of Physical Education. 3 sem hr This course is offered especially for students who are specializing in Physical Education. It includes selected portions from all the divisions of physics which have a bearing on the student's specialization. The aim of the course is three-fold: namely, to aid the student in his understanding of the mechanism of the body, the mechanics of the various athletic games, and the action and operation of apparatus which he may have to use. Prerequisite: one year of high school physics.

First semester HOLE MWF 1-2 Sci 102

210 Musical Acoustics. 2 sem hr

A course designed for students with a major interest in music. The physical bases of sound production, transmission, and reception will be outlined and demonstrated. Applications to topics such as intervals, temperament, acoustics of rooms, and tone production in the various types of musical instruments will be considered.

First semester HOLE TuTh 11-12 Sci 102

211 Elementary Physical Science. 3 sem hr

This course has been designed particularly for teachers of elementary science. A study will be made, at an elementary level, of common machines, weather, matter, energy, heat, sound, light, magnetism, electricity, and radio. Individual student activity in the working out of simple experimental projects, followed by class discussions, will constitute a major part of the course. Most of the apparatus will be made from materials available in the home or at a ten-cent store.

Each semester Elliott MWF 11-12 Sci 102

213 Photography and its Applications. 2 sem hr (Formerly Physics 212s)

A course in the theory and practice of photography. The physical and chemical laws involved in photography will be emphasized. The practical work will include outdoor and indoor photography, developing, printing, copying, lantern slide making, enlarging, and photomicrography. This course is designed for students of the natural and physical sciences and presumes some knowledge of physics and chemistry. It is not open to freshmen.

First semester ELLIOTT

TuTh 8-10 Sci 102 and 206

220 Problems in Physics. 2 sem hr

This course is designed to supplement 221 and 222 Physics and should be taken by all pre-engineering students. The work emphasizes the technique of problem solving involved in many practical applications of physics. The course is open to all students of college physics.

Second semester SMITH TuTh 1-2 Sci 102

221 Mechanics, Sound and Heat. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 205 Mechanics and Sound and 206 Heat and Light) This is a demonstrative study of physics in advance of the usual high school course. It is more mathematical and introduces additional problems and applications. The course is not to be taken by freshmen, Four recitations and one two-hour laboratory period per week are required. Prerequisites: One year of high school physics, 103 Trigonometry and 104 Higher Algebra I. First semester SMITH, HOLE

Lectures:

Sec 1 MWThF 9-10 Sci 202 Sec. 2 MWThF 11-12 Sci 202

Laboratory: I da 1-3 or 3-5 Sci 106

222 Light and Electricity. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 206 Heat and Light and 207 Electricity and Magnetism) This course follows 221 described above. It is a lecture and demonstrative course leading to the many practical applications of physics to optical and electrical devices of the present day. Four recitations and one two-hour laboratory period per week are required. Prerequisite: 221 Mechanics, Sound and Heat. Second semester SMITH, HOLE

Lectures:

Sec 1 MWThF 9-10 Sci 202 Sec 2 MWThF 11-12 Sci 202

Laboratory: 1 da 1-3 or 3-5 Sci 106 317 Household Physics. 3 sem hr

This course is designed especially for students of home economics and deals exclusively with those parts of physics which directly apply to operations and devices about the home. The subjects of heat and electricity receive most attention. Second semester HOLE

Lecture:

MWF 8-9 Sci 102

Laboratory: TuTh 8-9 Sci 206

322 Electrical Measurements. 4 sem hr (Formerly 313, 314 Electrical Measurements)

This is an intermediate course in electricity. The classroom work covers the fundamental principles involved in measuring electric and magnetic quantities. In the laboratory the student acquires experience in the use of high grade electrical apparatus. The experiments include studies of galvanometers, Wheatstone bridges of various forms, potentiometers and standard cells, vacuum tubes, magnetic measurements, and methods of measuring capacitance and inductance. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Sound and Heat and 222 Light and Electricity.

First semester SMITH

Lecture:

MWF 9-10 Sci 102

Laboratory: TuTh 8-10 Sci 106

325 Methods in Science Teaching. 2 sem hr (See Education.)

422 Modern Physics. 2 sem hr

In this course some of the more recent discoveries in the field of physics are discussed, especially those bearing on the nature of light and matter. Some of the most important topics considered are: The discovery of the electron; measurement of the electronic charge; radioactivity; atomic nucleii; the photoelectric effect; x-rays and their relation to crystal structure; x-ray and optical spectra. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Sound and Heat, and 222 Light and Electricity. Second semester SMITH

TuTh 9-10 Sci 102

423 Mechanics of Solids. 2 sem hr

This is an intermediate course in the mechanics of solids designed for those specializing in physics and mathematics. Some of the topics considered are: Statistics and conditions of equilibrium; various types of motion. Newton's laws of motion; moments of inertia; and center of mass. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Sound and Heat, and 222 Light and Electricity and Calculus. First semester odd years HOLE

TuTh 1-2 Sci 102

425 Sound. 2 sem hr

In this course a detailed study of wave motion is made with the emphasis on sound waves. Other topics considered are: Reflection, refraction, and interference of sound waves; vibrating strings and air columns, musical sounds, and speech and hearing. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Heat and Sound and 222 Light and Electricity.

Second semester even years HOLE TuTh 2-3 Sci 106

426 Heat. 2 sem hr

In this course the fundamental principles of heat are studied. Some of the topics considered are: Temperature, expansion, specific heat, change of state, elementary kinetic theory, and the absolute scale of temperature. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Heat and Sound and 222 Light and Electricity. First semester even years HOLE TuTh 1-2 Sci 102

427 Light. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 415 Light)

This course includes a study of both geometrical and physical optics. Some time is devoted to experimental work. Some of the topics considered are: Methods for determining the velocity of light, reflection, refraction, lenses and optical instruments; spectroscopes and spectra; interference and polarization. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Heat and Sound and 222 Light and Electricity. Second semester odd years HOLE TuTh 2-3 Sci 106

ASTRONOMY

201 The Solar System. 2 sem hr

(Formerly part of 201 General Astronomy)

A non-mathematical course addressed to the large popular interest in the subject. The course contains a great deal of material of use not only to teachers of science, but to the teacher of the grades. Evening work upon planet and moon observation with the telescope and tracing out some of the principal constellations is a feature of the course. Use is made of the ten-inch Mellish refracting telescope and the eight-inch reflector which has been constructed in the department.

First semester and summer SMITH TuTh 2-3 Sci 102

202 The Stellar System. 2 sem hr

(Formerly part of 201 General Astronomy)

This course in astronomy begins with a brief consideration of the solar system although course 201 is not a prerequisite. Its field is that of the known universe beyond the sun and planets, and the study deals with our knowledge of stars, comets, nebulae, etc., as habitants of the Milky Way and other galaxies. Second semester and summer SMITH

Second semester TuTh 2-3 Sci 102

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

MATHEMATICS

Professor Theodore Lindquist Associate Professor Carl M. Erikson Instructor Edith R. Schneckenburger

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Mathematics:

*103	Trigonometry	2 sem hr
*105	Higher Algebra II	3 sem hr
*202	Analytic Geometry	4 sem hr
221	Differential Calculus	4 sem hr
222	Integral Calculus	4 sem hr
	Electives	7 sem hr

Students majoring in Mathematics will take in addition a methods course corresponding to the curriculum on which he is specializing. (See Education)

Required Courses for a Minor in Mathematics:

The courses starred in the list above and six semester hours additional.

Courses

100 Solid Geometry. 3 sem hr

This course includes a study of lines, planes and angles in space, and the solids; polyhedrons, cylinders, cones and spheres. Prerequisites: plane geometry and one and one-half years of high school algebra.

First semester ERIKSON MWF 10-11 Pierce 3

251 The Teaching of Arithmetic. 3 sem hr (See Education.)

351A The Teaching of Arithmetic. 2 sem hr (See Education.)

351B The Teaching of Arithmetic. 2 sem hr (See Education.)

103 Trigonometry. 2 sem hr

This is an elementary course in plane trigonometry. Prerequisites: one and one-half years of high school algebra and one year of plane geometry. No credit is given to a student who has had one semester of high school trigonometry.

Each semester LINDQUIST, ERIKSON, SCHNECKENBURGER

122

First Semester Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 2 Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Pierce 3 Second Semester TuTh 9-10 Pierce 2

104 Higher Algebra I. 3 sem hr This is a review of elementary algebra, with emphasis upon the study of functions, the graphs and quadratic equations. Prerequisites: one year of high school algebra and one year of plane geometry. No credit is given to a student who has had one and one-half years of high school algebra. Each semester SCHNECKENDURGER

First Semester Sec 1 MWF 11-12 Pierce 2 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Pierce 2 Second Semester MWF 9-10 Pierce 3

105 Higher Algebra II. 3 sem hr

An advanced college course carrying the work well beyond that given in 104 Higher Algebra I, and including an introduction to the theory of equations. Prerequisite: 104 Higher Algebra I, or one and one-half years high school algebra and one year plane geometry.

Each semester LINDQUIST, ERIKSON, SCHNECKENBURGER

First SemesterSecond SemesterSec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 2Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Pierce 2Sec 2 MWF 11-12 Pierce 3Sec 2 MWF 11-12 Pierce 2

106 Industrial Mathematics. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 306 Mathematics)

This course includes mathematical operations and their employment in computation from technical formulas with actual commercial and industrial data, problems from business, industry, science and the shop. The slide rule is used as a tool for estimating and checking results. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 104 Higher Algebra I.

Second semester even years ERIKSON MWF 11-12 Pierce 3

202 Analytic Geometry. 4 sem hr This is a beginning course in plane analytic geometry. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II. Each semester ERIKSON, SCKNECKENBURGER

First Semester MTuThF 8-9 Pierce 3 Second Semester Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Pierce 3 Sec 2 MTuThF 2-3 Pierce 3

202s Analytic Geometry. 3 sem hr A slight abridgment of 202 Analytic Geometry. Summer ERIKSON

206 Surveying. 3 sem hr

The course embraces the fundamental use of transit and level. Exercises include linear measurements, angle measurements, extending straight lines, differential and profile leveling, a simple transverse survey, the fundamentals of computing and the keeping of neat accurate notes. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II.

Second semester even years upon sufficient demand ERIKSON MWF 2-4 Pierce 3

208 Mathematics of Commerce. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 208 The Mathematical Theory of Investment) This course comprises a study of the most approved forms of business computations; slide rule; notes and interest; various forms of investments as building and loan associations, annuities, and bonds; and other related topics. Second semester LINDQUIST MWF 9-10 Pierce 2

209 The Teaching of Elementary Mathematics. 2 sem hr (See Education)

210 The Teaching of Junior High School Mathematics. 2 sem hr (See Education)

211 Insurance, 3 sem hr

This is an elementary course dealing with life insurance and its historical development. The nature of life insurance and the basic principles underlying it, the uses of life insurance, the fundamental principles underlying rate making, the legal phases of life insurance are among the topics discussed. Fire insurance, casualty insurance are discussed if time permits. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II. First semester odd years ERKSON

MWF 9-10 Pierce 3

214 Theory of Equations. 2 sem hr (Formerly 205 Mathematics) This course includes the theory of equations, determinants and related topics. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II. Second semester ERIKSON TuTh 3-4 Pierce 2

215 Solid Analytic Geometry. 2 sem hr (Formerly 301 Mathematics)

This is an introductory course dealing with lines, planes, surfaces, general equations of the second degree and properties of quadrics. Prerequisite: 202 Analytic Geometry. First semester SCHNECKENBURGER

TuTh 9-10 Pierce 3

220 Statistical Method in Education. 2 sem hr (Formerly 401 Mathematics) This course gives the student practical skill in the use of statistics as now commonly employed in school work-instruction, supervision and administration. The student is given much practice in handling data relating to everyday school room problems. A knowledge of high school algebra is desirable but not required. Each semester ERIKSON First Semester Second Semester TuTh 3-4 Pierce 2 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 3 221 Differential Calculus. 4 sem hr (Formerly 203 Differential Calculus and 204 Differential and Integral Calculus) Time is devoted to the development of laws of differentiation and their application to numerous problems. Prerequisite: 202 Analytic Geometry. First semester LINDQUIST, ERIKSON Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Pierce 2 Sec 2 MTuThF 2-3 Pierce 2 221s Differential Calculus. 3 sem hr A slight abridgment of 221 Differential Calculus. Summer ERIKSON 222 Integral Calculus. 4 sem hr (Formerly 204 Differential and Integral Calculus and 205 Integral Calculus) Time is devoted to integration and its many varied applications. Prerequisite: 221 Differential Calculus. Second semester LINDQUIST, ERIKSON Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Pierce 2 Sec 2 MTuThF 2-3 Pierce 2 222s Integral Calculus. 3 sem hr A slight abridgment of 222 Integral Calculus. Summer ERIKSON

300 College Geometry. 2 sem hr (Formerly 102 Mathematics) In this course geometry is studied from an advanced point of view and is distinctly college work. Special attention is paid to the difficulties confronting the teacher of geometry. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II. Second semester odd years SCHNECKENBURGER TuTh 8-9 Pierce 3

302 Differential Equations. 3 sem hr This course includes solutions of different types of ordinary differential equations and their applications. It is of particular value to students expecting to carry on graduate work in either mathematics or the physical sciences. Prerequisite: 222 Integral Calculus.

First semester LINDQUIST MWF 8-9 Pierce 2

305 Teaching of Algebra. 2 sem hr (See Education.)

313 Descriptive Geometry. 3 sem hr (Formerly 213 Mathematics)

Various methods of representing three dimensional objects by plane figures are given. Emphasis is placed on orthographic projections and geometrical theory. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry. 105 Higher Algebra II, 100 Solid Geometry, 202 Analytic Geometry is also desirable.

Offered only on sufficient demand ERIKSON

400 History of Mathematics. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 201 Mathematics)

This course is designed to show the student how the subjects he is to teach have developed. Students have access to the large collection of books in the library. Prerequisite: A considerable number of courses leading to a major or minor in mathematics. First semester even years ERIKSON MWF 9-10 Pierce 3

HISTORY AND SOCIAL SCIENCES

PROFESSOR SIMON E. FAGERSTROM PROFESSOR PAUL E. HUBBELL PROFESSOR MEHRAN K. THOMSON PROFESSOR EGBEET R. ISBELL ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR ANNA W. FIELD ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR LLOYD E. DEVOL ASSISTANT PROFESSOR EDGAR W. WAUGH ASSISTANT PROFESSOR ELIZABETH WARREN ASSISTANT PROFESSOR ANTHONY ENGELSMAN ASSISTANT PROFESSOR HOWARD BLACKENBURG ASSISTANT PROFESSOR FRED J. ERICSON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR JOHN R. ALDEN

HISTORY

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in History:

*121	American History to 1865	4 sem hr
*122	American History, 1865 to Present	4 sem hr
231	Modern Europe, 1500-1815	4 sem hr
232	Modern Europe, 1815 to 1919	4 sem hr
	Electives	8 sem hr

Students majoring in History will take in addition 281 Teaching of History. (See Education)

Required Courses for a Minor in History:

The courses starred in the list above and seven semester hours of electives.

See Appendix for Social Science Group Major and Minor.

Courses

American History

121 American History to 1865. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 101 American History to 1789 and 102 American History 1789-1865)

A study of United States history from the period of exploration to the Compromise of 1850. The planting of the English colonies, with their institutions and national elements; the rivalry between the English and the French for the possession of North America; the dispute of the English colonies with the mother

127

country and their achievement of independence; the drafting of the Constitution and the launching of the new government; the tariff controversy, internal improvement and attempted nullification; a new democracy during the Jacksonian era; and the increasing tension over slavery; the chain of events leading to the Civil War; and the war itself. These are the principal topics of the course.

Each semester fagerstrom, field, warren, blackenburg, ericson

First	Semester			Sec	8	MTuWF	1-2	Pierce 40
Sec	1 MTuWF	8-9	Pierce 4	9 Sec	9	MTuWF	2-3	Pierce 40
Sec	2 MTuThF	9-10	Pierce 4	8 Sec 1	10	MTuWF	2-3	Pierce 36
Sec	3 MWThF	10-11	Pierce 4	0 Sec 1	11	MWThF	3-4	Pierce 40
Sec	4 MWThF	10-11	Pierce 4	9				
Sec	5 MWThF	11-12	Pierce 4	9 Secon	ıđ	Semester		
Sec	6 MWThF	11-12	Pierce 3	7 Sec	1	MTuWF	8-9	Pierce 49
Sec	7 MTuThF	1-2	Pierce 4	9 Sec	2	MTuThF	3-4	Pierce 40

122 American History, 1865 to Present. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 102 American History 1789-1865 and 103 American History 1865-Present)

A study of United States history from the reconstruction with its problems; industrial, commercial, and agricultural expansion; beginning of federal control of business; the Roosevelt nationalism and the Wilson liberalism; the United States in the World War; the "Coolidge prosperity;" and the New Deal. These are the principal topics of this course.

Each semester FAGERSTROM, FIELD, WARREN, BLACKENBURG, ERICSON

First Semester				Sec 3 MWThF 10-11 Pierce 4	9
Sec 1 MTuThF	8-9	Pierce	48	Sec 4 MWThF 11-12 Pierce 4	9
Sec 2 MTuWF	3-4	Pierce	49	Sec 5 MTuWF 11-12 Pierce 5	4
				Sec 6 MTuThF 1-2 Pierce 4	9
Second Semester				Sec 7 MTuWF 2-3 Pierce 4	0
Sec 1 MTuThF	8-9	Pierce	40	Sec 8 MTuThF 2-3 Pierce 4	0
Sec 2 MTuThF	9-10	Pierce	40	Sec 9 MTuThF 3-4 Pierce 3	7

201 Political Parties in United States. 3 sem hr

An historical study of the political parties, their origins, platforms, tactics. The parties which receive chief emphasis are the Federalist; the Republican (later Democratic); the Whig; the Republican. Such third or minor parties as the Greenback-Labor, and Socialist, receive brief attention. Prerequisite: Eight semester hours of American history. First semester FAGERSTROM

MWF 2-3 Pierce 47

260 Economic History of the United States. 2 sem hr

A study of the economic development of the United States; how we have grown in wealth and prosperity. The growth of present day agriculture from the colonial beginnings, while we were also becoming a great manufacturing and trading people; progress in transportation from the Indian trail to the modern railway; and from the tiny sailing ships to the present oil burning steamer; money and banking systems. Labor systems and problems, individualism and government control or operation. American history from the economic side, how the people have obtained a living. Each semester DEVOL TuTh 8-9 Pierce 47

261 Forcign Relations of the United States. 3 sem hr (Formerly 261 History of American Diplomacy)

A general survey of the foreign relations of the United States from the Revolution to the present. Special emphasis is placed on the problem of neutrality during the French Revolution; the Monroe Doctrine and its later development; the diplomacy of expansion; the Civil War period; problems of imperialism growing out of the Spanish-American war especially in the Caribbean; "open door" and integrity of China; the World War relations; the Washington naval conference. Prerequisite: Eight semester hours of American history.

First semester WARREN MWF 2-3 Pierce 49

262 Immigration. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 262 Immigration and Americanization)

A history of immigration into the United States with some consideration of methods of Americanization. The greater part of the course is taken up with the coming of the races to America. The European and American causes of these migrations, the racial traits and past experiences of the people who came and their reactions to American environment will be considered. The history of American policy toward immigration will be traced. Second semester BLACKENBURG

TuTh 11-12 Pierce 48

263 History of the West. 3 sem hr

A study of westward movement 1600-1890, provisions of Northwest Ordinance; lure of cheap land; banking and speculation; internal improvements; immigration; Santa Fé and Oregon Trails; Mormon trek; California and Forty-Niners; railroads; displacing of Indians; the cattle kingdom; wheat farming; incidentally exploits and contributions of Boone, Clark, Burr, Benton, Houston, Frémont, Douglas, McCormick, Custer. Prerequisite: Eight semester hours of American History.

Second semester WARREN MWF 2-3 Pierce 49

301 Problems in Recent American History, 2 sem hr

An intensive study of some recent and current problems, both national and international in character: "War debts"; the postwar tariffs; foreign trade; the plight of the farmer, and government aid; federal banking acts; the automobile and good roads: the decline of the railroads; the era of prohibition; industrial organization; unemployment. Prerequisite: Eight semester hours of American history.

Second semester FAGERSTROM Sec 1 TuTh 2-3 Pierce 47 Sec 2 Sat 10-11:45 Pierce 48

351 Background of Current Latin-American Problems. 3 sem hr Historical, geographical, and political background of Latin America. A study of Latin American independence movements; racial and cultural differences; factors which have favored outside economic and cultural penetration; political institutions; importance of the Monroe Doctrine; the current problem of establishing "good neighbor" relations; historical and geographical factors underlying trade; possible future trends in trade and defense of the Americas.

Second semester WARREN, FAGERSTROM, HOY MWF 3-4 Pierce 49

455 The History of States Rights. 2 sem hr (Formerly 255 History)

The course is conducted after the seminar method. Each student will select a topic for investigation and study, with weekly reports to the class as work progresses. Each student will write a thesis on his chosen topic which will be presented to the class. The course is open to juniors and seniors who have completed ten to twelve semester hours in United States history. Not offered 1942-43.

457 The Constitution of the United States. 2 sem hr (Formerly 257 History)

A seminar in the drafting, the ratification, and the establishment of the Constitution. One important aim is to give a few students some training in the use of source materials in history. The data used are in the main original sources. The topics for special study are: The Constitutional Convention; the struggle over ratification; the debate over Hamilton's financial policy; the dispute over Jay's treaty. Open to juniors and seniors who have had three or more courses in United States history. Second semester FAGERSTROM

MW 10-11 Pierce 47

Ancient and Medieval History

131 History of Greece and Rome. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 110 History of Greece and 115 History of Rome) This includes a short study of the civilization and history of Egypt, Babylonia, and Persia; Greek life and society; Athens in the time of Pericles and the conquests and empire of Alexander the Great; the rise of the Plebeian class and the expansion of Rome; the contest with Carthage; the Conquest of the Mediter-

HISTORY AND SOCIAL SCIENCES

ranean world; the Roman Empire under the Caesars, and the literature and society until Marcus Aurelius' day.

First semester HUBBELL

Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Pierce 37 Sec 2 MWF 3-4 Pierce 37

120 Medieval Europe. 3 sem hr

The decline of Roman society and government, the rise of Christianity, conditions in the third century and barbarian kingdoms founded on the Empire's ruins; Charlemagne and the papacy, the feudal system, the Crusades, and the Renaissance; commerce, national kingdoms, culture and discoveries which closed the Middle Ages in the time of Columbus and DeGama.

Each semester HUBBELL

First Semester MWF 2-3 Pierce 48

Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Pierce 36 Sec 2 MWF 3-4 Pierce 48

Modern History

231 Modern Europe, 1500-1815. 4 sem hr.

(Formerly 230 Modern Europe 1500-1789 and 241 Modern Europe 1789-1900)

Emphasis is on the commercial revolution, political growth of the European nations, the Renaissance and the Reformation and exhaustive religious wars; the balance of power, treaties of peace, Gustavus Adolphus, Cromwell, and Louis XIV's absolutism, the decline of Spain, English and Dutch colonization, the rise of Russia and Prussia, revolutionary ideas, the great French revolution, the era of Napoleonic Europe and the Congress of Vienna. Each semester HUBBELL, ALDEN

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWThF 11-12 Pierce 40 Sec 1 MWThF 9-10 Pierce 48 Sec 2 MTuThF 1-2 Pierce 36 Sec 2 MTuThF 3-4 Pierce 54 Sec 3 Sat 10-11:45 Pierce 48

232 Modern Europe, 1815 to 1919. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 241 Modern Europe 1789-1900 and 245 Europe Since 1900)

Beginning with the Congress of Vienna the course deals with the revolutions of 1830 and 1848, political developments in Western Europe, the unification of Italy and Germany and the interna-tional rivalries. The causes of the world war of 1914 are discussed, colonies, commerce, and alliances, and the great events of the war, followed by a study of American neutrality and participation, the society established by the post-war treaties of 1919, Russia, Italy, and the decline of the League of Nations.

Each semester HUBBELL, ALDEN

First Semester MWThF 9-10 Pierce 40 Second Semester Sec 1 MWThF 11-12 Pierce 40

Sec 2 MTuThF 1-2 Pierce 36

131

246 The Near East. 3 sem hr

The main events in Turkey, Greece, Bulgaria and the Orient during the last two centuries will be studied in connection with the rise of new national states in the Near East. The racial, religious and political problems that challenged statesmen like Venizelos. Stambulovsky and Kemal Pasha will be contrasted with the interests of great European powers. The gradual partition of the Ottoman Empire and the development of the peoples around the Eastern Mediterranean will receive attention. Second semester odd years HUBBELL

MWF 2-3 Pierce 48

249 The Far East. 3 sem hr

A survey of China, Japan, Korea, Siberia, and the Philippine Islands. The following topics are considered: Culture and religion, the influence of European merchants and missionaries, the establishment of spheres of interest, the development of nationalism, and problems of the Pacific. Sécond semester even years HUBBELL

MWF 2-3 Pierce 48

343 European Statesmen and their Policies, 1848-1900. 2 sem hr (Formerly 243 History)

The influence of Metternich, Talleyrand, Stein and Canning on European politics; Cavour's part in Italian unification; Bismarck and German unity; Thiers and French recovery after 1870; Disraeli and the Congress of Berlin; Crispi and Italy's gains by The Triple Alliance; Austria-Hungary and the Bosnian question; Bismarck's reinsurance treaty with Russia; Salisbury and the Helgoland Treaty; Decassé and the Fashoda Crisis. Open to juniors and seniors who have had two or more courses in Modern European history.

Second semester HUBBELL TuTh 2-3 Pierce 48

348 Europe Since 1919. 2 sem hr

Emphasis is placed on tracing the consequences of the World War. Hence, in addition to the chronological narrative, special attention will be given to the resulting economic conditions, effects of the several clauses of the Versailles Treaty, and the activities of the League of Nations.

First semester ALDEN TuTh 8-9 Pierce 36

440 French Revolution and Napoleon, 1774-1815. 2 sem hr (Formerly 240 History)

The background of the French Revolution. The Society of the old régime under Louis XVI, the philosophy of Voltaire and Rousseau. The work of the National Assembly, the fall of the Monarchy, religious and financial policies of the first French Republic, the triumph of the Jacobins and "the red terror"; the failure of the Directory, the entrance of Bonaparte, the achievements of Napoleon as Consul and Emperor in France, Italy and Germany, the Continental System and the British blockade, the Charter of 1814, the tinal downfall of Napoleon and the consequent restoration embodied in the Vienna treaties are the leading topics for study.

First semester HUBBELL TuTh 3-4 Pierce 48

England and the British Empire

207 British Empire. 2 sem hr

A survey course dealing primarily with India, Canada, Australasia, South Africa, Egypt, and Ireland. It will include such topics as the era of exploration, implications of mercantilism, political structure, and problems arising from the spirit of nationalism. Emphasis will be placed on the modern empire. First semester ISBELL, ALDEN TuTh 2-3 Pierce 47

211 England to 1689. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 101 English History)

While attention is given to social, economic, religious, and intellectual movements, emphasis is placed on the origin and development of political institutions. Topics include the manors, gilds, towns, local markets, foreign commerce, universities, the Angelican Church; the sheriff, the Justice of the Peace, the jury, Magna Carta, Parliament, the king's writs and development of the common law, the King's Council and emergence therefrom of the great central courts—Exchequer, King's Bench, Common Pleas, and Chancery.

First semester ISBELL MWF 9-10 Pierce 36

212 England 1689 to Present. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 102 English History)

A continuation of 211 History, with similar emphasis. Topics include the 17th century Puritans, Wesleyan movement, Oxford movement; civil war and interregnum; industrial, agricultural, and commercial revolutions; Chartism, influence of the French Revolution, the Irish problem, Corn Laws, organized labor, education, foreign relations; shift of sovereignty from King to House of Lords and from House of Lords to House of Commons; political parties; and cabinet.

Second semester ISBELL MWF 9-10 Pierce 36

281 The Teaching of History. 3 sem hr (See Education)

282 The Teaching of History in the Later Elementary Grades. 3 sem hr (See Education)

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

SOCIOLOGY

Minor

Required Courses for a Minor in Sociology:

200	Principles of Sociology	3 sem hr
201	Principles of Social Organization	3 sem hr
202	Social Pathology	3 sem hr
207	The History of Social Thought	3 sem hr
209	Methods in Sociological Research	3 sem hr
	No courses in Sociology open to Freshmen,	

Courses

200 Principles of Sociology. 3 sem hr

Sociology 200 is required of all students who take more than one course in sociology.

This course deals with the fundamental facts of human relationship, and is prerequisite to advance courses in sociology. Instead of ready-made principles the aim is to furnish the technique by which the student may discover and formulate sociological principles for himself. Special emphasis is placed on the springs of human action; the drives and motives of individuals and groups. Textbook, lectures, oral and written recitations, discussions, reports.

Each semester THOMSON

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Pierce 54 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Pierce 54

Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Pierce 54 Sec 2 Sat 12:30-3 Pierce 54

201 Principles of Social Organization. 3 sem hr

A study of the important laws of social organizations. An historical development of human institutions; the origin and antiquity of man, the general nature of ancestral man; the physiographic factors in social life, climatic selection and stimulation, the influences of geographical conditions on the spread of culture; the biological factors of social life, variation and heredity; interaction of individual and group; the evolution of material culture; basic elements in economic life, the rise of modern industrialism; myth, magic, religion and science. Textbook, lectures, reports. Each semester THOMSON, ERICSON

First Semester MWF 1-2 Pierce 37 Second Semester MWF 1-2 Pierce 54

202 Social Pathology. 3 sem hr

Extent, nature, and causation of such important problems as desertion and non-support, the unadjustments of old age, poverty, irregular work, business depressions, women in industry, child labor, industrial accidents, disasters, broken health, the blind and deaf, nervous and mental diseases, mental deficiency, alcoholism and drug addiction; the remaking of personality, social reorganization, and the building up of personal and social morale. Textbook, lectures, discussion, reports. Prerequisite: 200 Principles of Sociology or 201 Principles of Social Organization. First semester THOMSON MWF 10-11 Pierce 54

203 Problems of Child Welfare. 2 sem hr

Reviews the various aspects of the child welfare movement dealing with the conservation of life, health and physique, training and education, child labor, juvenile delinquency, and problems of dependent children; discusses the organized efforts against sickness and death during the first year of life, against inadequate play facilities, against too early entry into industry, against violence, neglect and exposure, and against other conditions making for the child's insecurity and delinquency. Textbook, lectures, discussion, reports.

Second semester even years THOMSON TuTh 8-9 Pierce 54

204 Marriage and the Family Relationship. 3 sem hr

Basis of the family in biology, psychology, economics, law, religion, and convention; historical development of the monogamous marriage; the significance of the family to society in disciplining and socializing the individual and in fixing his major attitudes which determine his social adjustments; development of kinship and marriage forms; contemporary problems such as divorce, eugenics, and social hygiene. Textbook, lectures, assigned readings, discussion, reports.

Second semester THOMSON MWF 9-10 Pierce 49

205 Social Progress. 2 sem hr

A survey of the theories and criteria of progress; critical review of the various attempts to set up the necessary conditions of human improvement and advance; the population basis, geographical and cultural stratification, race contacts, amalgamation and integration, recapitulation; social craftsmanship; civilization, cultivation, socialization; agents of diffusion, communication, migration, revolution; social stereotypes; guidance of social change; some goals of effort. Prerequisite: 200 Principles of Sociology or 201 Principles of Social Organization.

First semester THOMSON TuTh 8-9 Pierce 54

206 Criminology. 3 sem hr

A study of crime as a social problem: The history and theory of punishment; modern penal institutions such as capital punishment, the prison system, prison labor, prison administration, jalls, workhouses, and houses of correction, juvenile reformatories, women's reformatories, the parole and indeterminate sentence; the machinery of justice, including the police, the courts, pardons, and probation. Textbook, lectures, discussion, reports. First semester odd years THOMSON MWF 11-12 Pierce 54

207 The History of Social Thought. 3 sem hr

A survey and discussion of the important contributions to sociology made by such thinkers as Plato, Aristotle, the Hebrew Prophets, the Early Christians, Malthus, Darwin, Comte, Buckle, Adam Smith, Herbert Spencer, and the contemporary sociologists in connection with the so-called schools of sociology such as the mechanistic school, the geographical school, the bio-organic school, the demographic school, the psychological school, and the psychosociological school. Prerequisites: two courses in sociology. First semester even years THOMSON MWF 11-12 Pierce 54

artic in an interest of

208 Sociological Basis of Ethics. 2 sem hr

Considers critically to what extent the facts of man's social life can be made the source and basis of solutions for the theoretical and practical problems of our contemporary morality. It considers such matters as the natural science view of life; some of the advantages and implications of such a view; the relation of human and institutional nature to morality; social and individual will, social and individual values; the new conception of freedom; intelligible imperatives; the rational good. Textbook, lectures, discussion, reports.

Second semester odd years THOMSON TuTh 9-10 Pierce 36

209 Methods in Sociological Research. 3 sem hr

Deals with social statistics and the making of social science studies; the scientific attitude, social activities, conditioning factors, variation, analysis, sources of data, standards of measurement, sampling, source material, schedules, grouping, tabulation, use of scales, graphic presentation, probability and error, correlation. An essential part of the course is an actual social project carried on according to the principles set forth and making practical use of the methods of social statistics. Prerequisites: two courses in sociology and, preferably, 220 Statistical Method in Education.

Second semester THOMSON MWF 3-4 Pierce 47

210 Rural Sociology. 2 sem hr

The social situation in rural America is much more complex than in pioneer times. Specialization in farming, the consolidated school, the community church, farm economic and social organizations, the effect of good roads, automotive power, scientific methods, and international trade make rural social life a subject of gripping interest. Textbook, field work, and readings. Each semester and summer STEARNS First Semester TuTh 8-9 Pierce 6 Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 8-9 Pierce 5 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Pierce 6

350 Mental Deficiency. 2 sem hr (For description see Special Education)

354 Juvenile Delinquency. 3 sem hr (For description see Special Education)

POLITICAL SCIENCE

Minor

Required Courses for a Minor in Political Science:

110	National Government in the United States	2	sem	hr
113	State and Local Government	2	sem	hr
	Electives	11	sem	hr

Courses

110 National Government in the United States. 2 sem hr This course consists primarily of a study of the machinery and functions of the national government in the United States. Emphasis is given to the following: the origin and development of our political institutions; the changing relation of the nation and the state; political parties and national elections; the increasing responsibilities of the office of President; the structure, powers and methods of Congress; problems associated with the modern lobby; the structure and functions of the national judiciary. The course satisfies the political science requirement on all curricula. Prerequisites: high school courses in American history and government.

Each semester WAUGH, ENGELSMAN, ERICSON, ALDEN

First Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 54 Sec 2 MW 9-10 Pierce 54 Sec 3 MW 10-11 Pierce 47 Sec 4 WF 10-11 Pierce 36 Sec 5 TuTh 3-4 Pierce 36 Sec 6 Sat 12:45-2:30 Pierce 54 Second Semester

113 State and Local Government. 2 sem hr (Formerly 213 Social Science)

A study of state government with special emphasis given to the government of Michigan. This course should be especially valuable for teachers of social science in senior and junior high schools. A textbook is used but time will be given to current problems, and students are encouraged to form their own judgments on proposed changes. This course satisfies the political science requirement on all curricula. Each semester ENGELSMAN

First Semester

Second Semcster

Sec 1 MW 8-9 Pierce	40	Sec 1	MW	8-9	Pierce	48	
Sec 2 TuTh 8-9 Pierce	40	Sec 2	TuTh	8-9	Pierce	48	
Sec 3 TuTh 11-12 Pierce	36	Sec 3	TuTh	11-12	Pierce	36	
Sec 4 WF 11-12 Pierce	36	Sec 4	WF	11-12	Pierce	36	
Sec 5 MW 1-2 Pierce	48	Sec 5	MW	1-2	Pierce	47	

211 Comparative Government. 3 sem hr

English and French governments are given the major emphasis in this course. Additional study is devoted to Italian, German, and Swiss governments. Important points of similarity and difference among the various governments are stressed. Particular emphasis is given to a comparison of our own government with those of Europe. Prerequisite: 110 National Government in the United States.

First semester ENGELSMAN MWF 10-11 Pierce 48

212 International Organization. 3 sem hr

This course will take up a study of the relations of governments to each other; the character and growing importance of such relations, economic and social as well as political; the development of a body of international law to guide governments and their nationals in dealings with each other in peace and war; attempts at international organization and efforts to secure better feeling between different countries with regard both to the people and governments; the organization of our own government for carrying on its foreign relations. Particular emphasis is given to the League of Nations, the Permanent Court of International Justice and the International Labor Organization. Prerequisite; 110 National Government in the United States.

First semester WAUGH

MWF 1-2 Pierce 47

216 Municipal Government. 3 sem hr

A study of the development of municipal organization; the present forms of city government; the problems of self-government and of the relation to the state; the multiplication of municipal functions involving the expenditure of immense sums of money, and determining the well-being of the people. Prerequisite: 110 National Government in the United States or 113 State and Local Government.

Second semester ENGELSMAN MWF 10-11 Pierce 48 217 Political Theories. 3 sem hr

A study is made of the views of some of the great writers on Political Philosophy from ancient times up to about the middle of the nineteenth century; the ideas of these philosophers regarding the origin, nature and functions of the state. The philosophers whose views receive the major emphasis are the following: Plato, Aristotle, Polybius, St. Thomas Aquinas, Dante, Marsiglio, Machiavelli, Calvin, Bodin, Hooker, Grotius, Milton, Hobbes, Harrington, Locke, Montesquieu, Rousseau, Paine and Bentham. Prerequisite: 110 National Government in the United States.

Second semester WAUGH MWF 1-2 Pierce 48

218 Contemporary Problems in Political Science. 3 sem hr The purpose of this course is to introduce the student to a number of problems of current interest in the field of politics, American national politics particularly. Among the problems considered are the following: The student's place in the political life of the nation; developments in the relation of the legislature and the executive; the fundamental purposes of a legislative body; the proposition of regionalism; the development of administrative legislation and administrative justice; the basis and current operation of judicial review of legislation; political consequences of economic nationalism; the meaning of democracy and how to help make a success of it. Prerequisite: 110 National Government in the United States. Each semester WADGH

MWF 11-12 Pierce 47

ECONOMICS

Minor

Required courses for a Minor in Economics:

220	Elements	of	Economics	
221	Elements	of	Economics	

3 sem hr 3 sem hr

Nine semester hours of electives in Economics which may include 260 Economic History of the United States.

No courses in Economics are open to freshmen.

Courses

220 Elements of Economics, 3 sem hr

This course constitutes the first half of a study of general economics. Descriptive and analytical work is combined, with emphasis on basic concepts and principles. Among the topics studied are: production, income and wealth; the nature and functions of money; economic inter-dependence; forms of business organization: accounting concepts; the determination of prices and the significance of prices.

Each semester DEVOL, FAGERSTROM

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 8-9	Pierce 47	Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 47		
Sec 2 MWF 9-10	Pierce 49	Sec 2 Sat 9-11:30 Pierce 38A		
Sec 3 MWF 3-4	Pierce 47			

221 Elements of Economics. 3 sem hr

This course is a continuation of 220 Elements of Economics, Major portions of the subject matter of this course are: outline of the money and banking system of the United States: the purchasing power of money; international trade; business cycles and problems of economic stability; forces underlying the distribution of income; summary of some major aspects of economic principles. Prerequisite: 220 Elements of Economics. Each semester DEVOL

First Semester MWF 2-3 Pierce 54 Second Semester MWF 9-10 Pierce 35

222 Money and Banking. 3 sem hr

This course deals with the relation of money and credit to the processes of production and exchange of goods and services. A brief sketch of American monetary and banking history is included. Our present currency and banking system is studied. with attention given to contemporary problems, especially the relation of money and credit to the problem of economic stability. Prerequisites: 220 and 221 Elements of Economics. Each semester DEVOL

First Semester MWF 9-10 Pierce 35 MWF 8-9 Pierce 47

Second Semester

224 Labor Problems. 2 sem hr

Some current problems of workers and employers are studied in this course. Special subjects of study are: industrial insecurity; industrial incentives and labor turnover; supply and demand factors in the labor market; collective bargaining; types and policies of labor organizations and employer organizations: recent legislation relating to labor, including programs of Social Security, Prerequisites: 220 and 221 Elements of Economics, Second semester DEVOL TuTh 9-10 Pierce 47

226 Public Utilities. 2 sem hr

The economic functions and significance of public carriers and other public utilities are dealt with in this course. Peculiarities which tend to make these businesses "naturally monopolistic" are pointed out. The outlines of regulatory policies which have been adopted are studied, with some attention to the special problems

involved in applying these policies. Prerequisite: 220 Elements of Economics. *First semester* DEVOL TuTh 9-10 Pierce 35

227 Problems in Economic Theory. 2 sem hr In this course a more thorough study is made of certain selected portions of economic theory than is possible in the introductory courses. Prerequisites: 220 and 221 Elements of Economics. Taught only on suffificient demand DEVOL

228 Rural Economics. 2 sem hr

This course is devoted primarily to a consideration of the population and area of the various countries of the world as they affect world trade and exportation of American agricultural products. The trend of population from rural to urban life, the growth of industrial centers and the decline of the number of people engaged in agricultural pursuits, and the resulting effect of rural life are also considered. Opportunity is given the student to present facts and statistics obtained from the U. S. Census, in the various graphic forms.

Taught only on sufficient demand, and by extension LOESELL

229 Taxation and Public Finance. 3 sem hr

In this course concrete approach to problems of public expenditure and revenue raising is made by study of the budget of a selected local unit of government, noting the services rendered by this government and the ways by which money is raised for carrying on these services. Later the major sources of revenue and the major classes of expenditure of the state government and of the national government are studied. Attention is given to the economic effects of various kinds of taxes, and to problems relating to the use of public credit. Prerequisites: 220 and 221 Elements of Economics.

Second semester DEVOL MWF 2-3 Pierce 54

EDUCATION

Under the general term Education are the divisions of Education, Rural Education, Philosophy and Psychology.

Education

PROFESSOR NOBLE LEE GARRISON PROFESSOR HORACE Z. WILBER *PROFESSOR HARVEY L. TURNER PROFESSOR J. W. KELDER PROFESSOR TROY L. STEARNS PROFESSOR FRANK WHITEHOUSE ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR ELLA M. SMITH ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR GRACE M. SKINNER ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR BEN H. VANDEN BELT ASSISTANT PROFESSOR EVERTT L. MARSHALL

Educational Psychology

302 Educational Psychology. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 102 and 202 Education)

This course applies the general psychological principles to learning ing and to the development of personality. The laws of learning, conditions of learning, efficient learning; improving study habits, measuring the nature of the learner and his improvement in school subjects and in other aspects of personal development are stressed. Prerequisite: 301 Psychology.

Each semester GARRISON, WHITEHOUSE, MARSHALL, SMITH

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 38A Sec 2 MWF 10-11 Pierce 39 Sec 3 MWF 11-12 Adm 204 Sec 4 MWF 1-2 Pierce 6 Sec 5 MWF 2-3 Pierce 39 Sec 6 MWF 3-4 Pierce 6 Sec 1 MWF 8-9 (R) Pierce 39 Sec 2 MWF 9-10 Pierce 39 Sec 3 MWF 10-11 Pierce 38A Sec 4 MWF 1-2 Pierce 39 Sec 5 MWF 2-3 Pierce 39

322 The Psychology of the Elementary School Subjects. 3 sem hr (Formerly 222 Education)

This course is designed for those who desire to apply the principles of psychology and the data derived from psychological and pedagogical experiments to the subjects taught in the elementary school. Special attention is given to evaluating the methods used in teaching reading, spelling, arithmetic, grammar, composition, and penmanship. Prerequisites: 301 Psychology, 302 Educational Psychology.

Summer session SMITH

*Absent on leave.

446 Advanced Educational Psychology. 2 sem hr

This course is designed to supplement and intensify educational psychology by involving both a broader and more detailed application of the facts of psychology to the problems of learning in the schools. These problems involve both the elementary school and the high school. The most important experimental studies of the learning process are examined and discussed. Individual and class experiments in learning are performed. Prerequisite; 302 Educational Psychology.

Not given in 1942-43.

Principles of Education

303 Principles of Teaching. 3 sem hr (Formerly 203 Education)

This course is to be taken in the semester immediately preceding teaching. It is to prepare the student specifically for practice teaching in the training school and deals with the application of the principles of psychology and teaching to the actual work of the school. The basic factors in diagnosing, planning, teaching and in maintaining favorable working conditions in teaching will be considered. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology or 321 Child Psychology.

Each semester GARRISON, SMITH, KELDER, STEARNS

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 5 (high school) Sec 2 MWF 9-10 Pierce 39 (rural) Sec 3 MWF 10-11 Pierce 6 (elementary) Sec 4 MWF 11-12 Pierce 5 (high school) Sec 5 MWF 1-2 Pierce 39 (rural) Sec 6 MWF 2-3 Pierce 6 (elementary) Sec 7 MWF 2-3 Pierce 5 (high school) Sec 8 MWF 2-3 Pierce 38A (rural)

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 6 (elementary) Sec 2 MWF 9-10 Pierce 5 (high school) Sec 3 MWF 10-11 Pierce 6 (high school) Sec 4 MWF 11-12 Pierce 6 (high school) Sec 5 MWF 2-3 Pierce 6 (elementary) Sec 6 MWF 2-3 Pierce 5 (high school)

315 Early Elementary Curriculum. 2 sem hr (Formerly 109 and 215 Education)

This course is an intensive study of the curriculum and methods of procedure of the kindergarten-primary grades. It includes: a review of the characteristics and interests of small children; a detailed study of the aims, content and procedures of the self-directed period: home and community life; language, writing, handwork, plays and games; a survey of large units of work for each grade. Prerequisites: 301 Psychology and 321 Child Psychology.

Each semester SKINNER

First Semester Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 38A Sec 2 TuTh 2-3 Pierce 6 Second Semester TuTh 9-10 Pierce 38A

344 Visual-Auditory Aids in Education. 2 sem hr This is a lecture-laboratory course dealing with visual and auditory aids in teaching. It will consider still and motion picture photography; the making and use of slides; operating cameras, stereoscopes, lanterns and motion picture projectors; and the selection, organization and care of materials and equipment. Open to advanced students and experienced teachers. Prerequisite: 303 Principles of Teaching. Each semester UTTER

Sat 12:45-2:30 Adm 204

414 Improving Reading in Higher Grades. 2 sem hr

This course in reading instruction at advanced levels will deal with recent trends and achievements in the teaching of reading in the upper grades. It will seek to prepare teachers for diagnostic and remedial work, as well as for the developing of interest, and the controlling of reading experiences in the junior and senior high school. Lectures, readings, reports, and demonstrations in the laboratory schools.

Summer session

415 Directed Observation. 2 sem hr

This course is intended primarily for teachers of experience who feel the need of a knowledge of recent developments in teaching in the elementary school. Through assigned readings and class discussions the latest ideas regarding objectives and methods of teaching the social studies, elementary science, language, arts, and reading will be determined. These will be supplemented by observation of classes as taught in the laboratory school and by discussions of the teaching observed. The course is not a substitute for practice teaching, but may be counted as a free elective in education. Prerequisites: 303 Principles of Teaching, and teaching experience.

Summer session STEARNS

History of Education

323 History of Modern Education. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 308 History of Education During Modern Times, and 320 Philosophy of Education)

This is a study of the historical background of modern times and of the great social movements that have affected educational thought and endeavor. The work of individual educators is noted as typifying ideals and movements and as furnishing the basis of present-day theory and practices.

First semester WILBER

TuTh 9-10 Pierce 5

309 History of Education in the United States. 2 sem hr (Formerly 206 Education)

American education is rooted in the life of the American people and nation. This course is intended to consider the major purposes of American education as they have evolved through our history. Attention is given to social change and its influence upon aims, curriculum, and methods of the school. Major emphasis is put on the objectives of present-day practices.

Each semester WILBER, GARRISON

First Semester	Second Semester
TuTh 1-2 Pierce 6	Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 5
	Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Pierce 6

Tests, Measurements and Research

340 Educational Tests and Measurements. 2 sem hr This course deals with the objective measurement of classroom products. The purposes of the course are student preparation for discriminating selection, precise administration, adequate interpretation and effective classroom use of standardized and informal educational tests and test results. Emphasis is placed upon adequate diagnoses as the necessary bases of remedial teaching and of skillful educational guidance. Each student applies the principles of test making by preparing an informal test for classroom use. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology or 321 Child Psychology.

Each semester WHITEHOUSE, MARSHALL

Sec 1 TuTh 8-9 Pierce 38A Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Pierce 38A Sec 3 Sat 10-11:45 Pierce 38A

440 Research. 2 sem hr

This course is designed for those who by interest and ability in problem solving in any field of education have shown that they are capable of original work. It is an introduction to essential procedures of research. Each student selects a problem, experiments, and presents his results in written form. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 340 Educational Tests and Measurements, and 220 Statistical Method in Education. Not offered in 1942-43 WHITEHOUSE

Statistical Methods in Education (see 220 Mathematics)

Individual Intelligence Testing (see 355 Special Education)

Mental Tests and Measurements (see 444 Psychology)

Administration and Supervision

316 Public Education in Michigan. 2 sem hr (Formerly 216 Education)

A study of the development, organization, administration and support of the public school system of Michigan. This course, prescribed by the State Board of Education in all curricula leading to a teacher's certificate, acquaints the teacher with the institution in which he is to work. The following topics are emphasized: the constitutional and legal basis of public education and the function of the teacher in it; educational goals and objectives; the Michigan system of education, its development, control, and organization into elementary, secondary and higher divisions; administrative units, state, county, township, city, etc.; financial support, state and local; essentials of school law; auxiliary educational organizations—Parent-Teacher Associations, Michigan Advisory Commission on Education, Michigan Education Association, National Education Association.

Each semester WILBER, KELDER

First Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 8-9 Pierce 5 Sec 2 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 6 Sec 3 TuTh 11-12 Pierce 5 Sec 4 TuTh 1-2 Pierce 5 Sec 5 TuTh 3-4 Pierce 5 Sec 6 Sat 12:45-2:30 Pierce 5

Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 8-9 Pierce 5 Sec 2 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 6 Sec 3 TuTh 11-12 Pierce 5 Sec 4 TuTh 1-2 Pierce 5 Sec 5 Sat 12:45-2:30 Pierce 5

331 Adult Education. 2 sem hr

This course consists of a survey of the field of adult education and of present day activities in that field. Consideration is given to experiments now being carried on through agencies such as public night schools, the Y. M. C. A., Parent-Teacher Associations, C.C.C. camps, Freshman Colleges, the F. E. R. A. and college extension departments. A study is made of the organization and administration of such work and of the methods employed in instruction.

Summer Session.

336 Junior High School Education. 2 sem hr

This course is designed to introduce the prospective teacher to the problems of the junior high school. A brief survey of the forces creating this school is made. A thorough study of the characteristics of early adolescence introduces the course. Guidance, curricula, courses of study and methods are studied only as they apply particularly to this phase of secondary education. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology.

Second semester KELDER TuTh 11-12 Pierce 39 337 Educational Sociology. 2 sem hr

This course presents the development of some of the principles of social psychology, and the adaptation of these principles to educational theory and practice. Particular emphasis is placed upon group and community activities through which the individual is educated. Readings, reports, discussions are required. Not offered in 1942-43.

410 Problems of Supervision and Self-Supervision, 2 sem hr

This course deals with supervision as a means of achieving teacher growth through self-improvement either under guidance of a supervisor or alone. It is adapted to the training of supervisors, principals, and of teachers interested in self-improvement through diagnostic and remedial work. Guiding principles and standards for judging instruction are developed and applied to modern teaching practice. This course is open to experienced teachers and advanced students. Prerequisites: 303 Principles of Teaching, and teaching experience.

Second semester STEARNS TuTh 9-10 Pierce 4A

418 School Administration. 3 sem hr (Formerly 218 Education)

This course will emphasize in a general and sympathetic way, for persons planning to enter administration, generally accepted principles of school administration. The legislative, executive and appraisal functions as they relate to organization and management will be stressed. The activities comprising the work of the superintendent will be studied from the standpoint of instruction, supervision, child accounting, personnel management, finance, research, public relations, records and reports. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 303 Principles of Teaching. Not offered in 1942-43 KELDER

431 Administration and Supervision of the High School. 2 sem hr (Formerly 431 Organization and Administration of the High School)

This course deals with the functions of the high school, its development and its place in modern education. It will include an analytical study of the principal and the principalship; qualifications; duties and responsibilities of principals; organization of the principalship for effective management; personnel administration of teachers and pupils; schedule making; registration of pupils; making a program of studies; improvement of teachers in service; marking systems; records and reports; direction and supervision of extra-curricular activities; organization and administration of instruction; and leadership in the school community. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 303 Principles of Teaching.

Second semester KELDER TuTh 3-4 Pierce 4A 432 Administration and Supervision of Elementary Schools. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 432 Organization and Administration of Elementary Schools)

This course gives thorough consideration to the principles and practices of the elementary school principalship. It deals with the organization and administration of the school in general and of the following related units: classification and promotion of pupils, the curricular and extra-curricular work, special groups and subjects, classroom teaching, pupil progress, teacher improvement, school plant and equipment, personnel problems and professional leadership. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology and 303 Principles of Teaching.

Second semester KELDER TuTh 3-4 Pierce 4A

434 The Elementary Curriculum and Its Making. 2 sem hr (Formerly 334 Elementary Curriculum and Its Making)

The work of this course will be conducted primarily on a seminar and workshop basis, and will be centered upon three basic aspects of curriculum work: (a) making a survey of elementary school curriculum work to determine trends and guiding principles; (b) studying curriculum materials from schools throughout the country to note the variety and effectiveness with which these trends and guiding principles have been applied and adapted to specific purposes; (c) having individual students work out curriculum materials of specific interest and value to them in so far as such problems may be related to this work. Open to advanced students only. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 303 Principles of Teaching.

Second semester STEARNS TuTh 1-2 Pierce 6

435 Extra-Curricular Activities in High School. 2 sem hr

Practically every teacher in high school must now supervise some extra-curricular activity. This course is designed to meet this demand for those on the Senior High School Curriculum. The class is conducted in such a way as to give practical experience in organizing and working in a student council. Every phase of extra-curricular activity is studied.

Each semester STEARNS

First Semester TuTh 11-12 Pierce 6 Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 11-12 Pierce 6 Sec 2 TuTh 2-3 Pierce 6

436 The Modern High School Curriculum. 2 sem hr This course will deal with recent trends and developments in junior and senior high school curricula and with the main factors underlying the reorganization program for secondary education. Resulting curricular changes will be noted and typical curricula studied and evaluated. The work will be individualized so as to

148

1.4

EDUCATION

permit students to work on any curricular problems with which they are concerned. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 303 Principles of Teaching. Second semester STEARNS TuTh 1-2 Pierce 6

460 The Elementary School Curriculum Work Shop. 3 sem hr This course permits the student to do intensive work in actual problems which confront him in his own school and to work out curricular units in subject fields as desired. Class limited to thirty students. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 303 Principles of Teaching, and teaching experience. First semester STARNS

Sat 9-11:30 Pierce 5

461 Unit Instruction. 2 sem hr

Acquaints teachers with the fundamental principles and procedures. Emphasis will be placed upon teacher stimulation and guidance. The work involves a study of instructional units, their adaptation to individual needs, and their development to provide educative experiences; the development and use of means of evaluation of pupil growth in unit teaching; and the relating of such work to community life and all-round pupil development. Summer Session.

175 School Management and Course of Study. 3 sem hr (See Rural Education)

Psychology

301 Psychology. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 101 and 201 Education)

This course is an introductory course serving as a scientific basis for subsequent courses in education, as well as an introduction to the field of psychology. The course will center about the facts of original nature and their cultural modification—attitudes, habits, learning; and it will give much attention to proving an understanding of sensation, perception, memory, emotion and related subjects. It should be taken the term immediately preceding 302 Educational Psychology or 321 Child Psychology.

Each semester SKINNER, MARSHALL

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 8-9	Pierce 38A	Sec 1	MWF	8-9	Pierce 38A
Sec 2 MWF 10-11	Adm 204	Sec 2	MWF	10-11	Pierce 39
Sec 3 MWF 11-12	Pierce 39	Sec 3	MWF	11-12	Adm. 204
Sec 4 MWF 1-2	Pierce 38A	Sec 4	MWF	11-12	Pierce 38A
Sec 5 MWF 3-4	Peirce 38A	Sec 5	MWF	1-2	Pierce 38A
		Sec 6	MWF	2-3	Pierce 38A
		Sec 7	MWF	3-4	Pierce 38A

321 Child Psychology. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 221 Education)

This course is designed for students particularly interested in child study. It stresses the child as an individual, his original nature and temperament, as a part of a group and the interaction of biological and societal raw material; the conditioning and reconditioning of behavior tendencies, behavior problems; the individuality and similarity of responses. Personality studies, case records, tests and measurements are investigated. Prerequisite: 301 Psychology.

Each semester SKINNER

First Semester	Second Semester			
MWF 10-11 Pierce 5	Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Pierce 5 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Pierce 6			

444 Montal Tests and Measurements. 2 sem hr

The purposes of this course are to prepare students for the discriminating selection, precise administration, adequate interpretation, and effective class-room use of mental and personality tests and test results. The psychological theories and statistical procedures involved in test construction are treated only in so far as they contribute directly to the purposes mentioned above. The terms "mental" and "personality" refer to tests other than educational tests and tests for specific vocations. See 355 Special Education for Binet Testing.

Not offered in 1942-43 WHITEHOUSE

449 Advanced General Psychology. 2 sem hr

This is the second course in general psychology. The basic structural and functional principles of adult normal behavior are emphasized. Among the topics considered are intelligent behavior, attending, thinking, motivation, emotion, habit formation and their application in various fields of activity. This course is designed for pre-professionals and others desiring a second course in psychology. Prerequisite: 301 Psychology.

Not offered in 1942-43 WHITEHOUSE

450 The Psychology of Individual Differences. 2 sem hr

This course discloses in part the genesis and the elaboration of a few common individual differences. In part, it discloses, also, the significance of these differences in the lives of adults and of those under adult guidance. The object of the course is to direct the student in developing knowledge of individual differences helpful in making personal adjustments that are both creative and socially acceptable. Prerequisites: 301 Psychology and 302 Educational Psychology.

Summer session WHITEHOUSE

Mental Hygiene (see 306 Special Education)

Individual Intelligence Testing (see 355 Special Education)

EDUCATION

Philosophy

305 Ethics. 2 sem hr This course is a study of the historical development of the principles underlying the social and moral human relations, together with the application to modern institutional life. Not offered in 1942-43 WILBER

421 Introduction to Philosophy. 3 sem hr

Philosophy may be defined, first, as the reflective effort of man to construct a thought-pattern of the world in which he lives, and of his place in it; and, second, as the art of self-controversy and self-criticism by which such thought-pattern may be both extended and freed from internal contradictions. In this course the student is introduced to the major problems into which this effort has become resolved, and to the general lines of effort along which their solution has been sought. Not offered in 1942-43 WILEER

422 History of Ancient Philosophy. 3 sem hr

This course is a study of Greek philosophy from Thales to Aristotle. The work is based on a textbook, supplemented by lectures, readings, and class discussions. Not open to freshmen. Not offered in 1942-43 WILBER

424 History of Modern Philosophy. 3 sem hr

This course is a study of the doctrine of the modern philosophers from Descartes to Kant, both with regard to their relation to each other and their influence on the modern educators. Not open to freshmen.

Not offered in 1942-43 WILBER

426 Present Day Philosophy. 2 sem hr

This course is concerned with a study of philosophical trends from Kant to the present day. Attention is given to the views of the post-Kantian philosophers, and this is followed by a consideration of the late 19th century movements that have resulted in the philosophical views of today. Not offered in 1942-43 WILBER

a second an entry of the second

Courses in the Teaching of Designated Subjects

COMMERCE

305 Methods of Teaching Commercial Subjects. 4 sem hr This is a methods course as applied to the teaching of commercial subjects. The accepted principles of teaching, based upon the laws of learning, are emphasized in developing a plan of procedure for teaching the various commercial subjects. First semester SPRINGMAN MWThF 10-11 Pierce 305

FINE ARTS

216 The Teaching of Drawing. 3 sem hr (Formerly 105 Fine Arts)

This course approaches art from the viewpoint of the teacher and includes the planning of units and courses of study, both general and specific, in relation to the entire curriculum. Consideration is given to class problems and to the character and originality of the individual child. Prerequisites: 101s Elementary Art, 103 Commercial Design, 111 Elementary Design and 201 Life Sketching.

First semester swete MWF 9-10 Adm 208

HISTORY

281 The Teaching of History. 3 sem hr

Designed for teachers in junior and senior high schools. An understanding of the nature of the subjects included in Social Science in the public schools; acquaintance with, and ability to evaluate the materials of social studies, particularly of history, including graphic representation of data; and a study of selected problems peculiar to the teaching of history and other social studies are the objectives of the course. Prerequisite: sixteen semester hours of college history.

Each semester FIELD MWF 11-12 Pierce 48

282 Teaching of History in the Later Elementary Grades. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 182 History)

This course deals with the problems of history (or social studies) teaching in the public schools; the purpose of such teaching, the materials best adapted to secure the desired results, and various methods of using such materials in the classroom.

Second semester FIELD

MWF 10-11 Pierce 40

HOME ECONOMICS

371 Methods of Teaching Home Economics. 2 sem hr

In this course a study is made of the present day objectives in home economics teaching; the principles underlying the selection and organization of subject matter; the work being done in various schools as seen through observations; the organization of units of work and the materials for teaching them; the collection, filing and use of illustrative materials. Prerequisites: 303 Principles of Teaching, 302 Lunchroom Management, and 353 Clothing Economics and Tailoring.

Second semester BAUCH TuTh 1-2 Welch 103

152

474 Vocational Education in Home Economics. 3 sem hr This course parallels or precedes the semester of student teaching. A study is made of the growth and development of home economics education; Federal legislation; book and periodic literature; curriculum construction; home project development and management; testing materials; laboratory equipment and its arrangement. Home project experience and visiting are required the summer preceding this course. Prerequisite: 371 Methods of Teaching Home Economics. First semester BAUCH

MWF 8-9 Welch 103

INDUSTRIAL ARTS

361 Content, Organization and Supervision. 2 sem hr (Formerly 161 Industrial Arts) This course covers in detail the content of courses in industrial arts, organization of material, planning industrial arts shops, selecting equipment and duties of supervisors. Second semester WILLOUGHBY TuTh 2-3 Adm 4

MATHEMATICS

209 The Teaching of Elementary Mathematics. 2 sem hr This course is devoted mainly to the teaching of arithmetic. The following topics are considered: the aim of arithmetic teaching; the history of methods in arithmetic; the results of scientific studies of problems in the teaching of arithmetic; the theory and use of various tests and measurements in arithmetic; the course of study; methods of presenting various topics. Prerequisites: 251 The Teaching of Arithmetic or teaching experience. Summer session LINDOUIST

210 The Teaching of Junior High School Mathematics. 2 sem hr This course is a study of the present day movement in mathematics in the junior high school. Among the matters considered are the subject matter to be included, arrangement of subject matter, introduction of the new topics, appeals and best methods of presentation of subject matter to children of junior high school age. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II. Offered only on sufficient demand.

251 The Teaching of Arithmetic. 3 sem hr (Formerly 101 Mathematics)

This course reviews the fundamental principles of arithmetic and at the same time presents the most approved methods of teaching the same. The course is developed primarily for students classifying under the State Limited Certificate Curriculum. Each semester LINDQUIST MWF 1-2 Pierce 2

351A The Teaching of Arithmetic. 2 sem hr (Formerly 101a Mathematics)

This course reviews the fundamental principles of arithmetic and at the same time presents the most approved methods of teaching the subject in the early elementary grades. It is the required course of the Early Elementary Curriculum. Each semester SCHNECKENBURGER

TuTh 11-12 Pierce 2

351B The Teaching of Arithmetic. 2 sem hr (Formerly 101b Mathematics)

This course is the same as 351A except that the methods aspect of the subject is presented for the later elementary grades. It is the required course for the Later Elementary Curriculum, Second semester SCHNECKENBURGER TuTh 1-2 Pierce 2

305 Teaching of Algebra, 2 sem hr

This is a course for students selecting mathematics as a major or a minor. It includes modern methods of presentation and recent literature on the teaching of algebra. Prerequisites: 103 Trigonometry, 105 Higher Algebra II. Second semester even years SCHNECKENBURGER

TuTh 8-9 Pierce 3

MODERN LANGUAGE

111 Modern Language. 2 sem hr

A course devoted to the history, theory and pedagogy of modern language teaching. Review of phonetics. Not counted in Group I of the degree requirements, nor toward a Major or Minor in any Modern Language.

Second semester odd years owens TuTh 1-2 Lib 209

MUSIC

230 Music Education in the Elementary School. 3 sem hr (Formerly 230 Early Elementary and Intermediate Music Education and 312 Music Supervision and Materials.)

The content of this course includes the teaching techniques of the following topics: Care and development of the child voice, rote songs, rhythmic activities, ear training, staff notation, tonal and rhythmic problems, part singing, listening lessons, creative music, song interpretation, music in the rural school, acquaintance with the various music series designed for grade schools and other available materials.

First semester ASHBY MWF 8-9 Roosevelt 201 231 Music Education in the Secondary School. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 231 Junior and Senior High School Music Education and 312 Music Supervision and Materials)

The content of this course includes the study of the following topics: Care and treatment of adolescent voices, classification and training of voices, song interpretation, organization and administration of all types of choral ensembles, theory, history and literature of music classes. Evaluation of numerous materials suitable for choral organizations and other music classes in the secondary school. Psychology and philosophy of music education. Second semester ASHBY

MWF 8-9 Roosevelt 201

352 Instrumental Materials and Methods. 3 sem hr

This is a general course to acquaint the students with instrumental problems confronting young supervisors of music in the elementary and secondary schools today. Practical study of the instruments studied as a minor will be featured through ensemble work with care given to pitch, tone, range, and technique. The course contains also a study of suitable literatures; methods of teaching instrumental classes and private instruction for school pupils.

Second semester FOSSENKEMPER MWF 3-4 Pease D

READING

310 The Teaching of Reading (Early Elementary). 3 sem hr (Formerly 121 Speech)

This course is a preparation for teaching reading in the primary grades. In addition to the text, lectures and assigned readings are given. Consideration is given to recognition of words, sentences and phonics, eye movement, inner speech, lip movement, rate and comprehension, and the relative value of oral and silent reading. The sources of reading material and its relation to the child's tastes and activities are studied and opportunity is given to observe lessons taught by experienced teachers. This course is not to be taken by students who have had 311 or 312 Education. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology, or 321 Child Psychology.

Each semester EDSON

First Semester MWF 1-2 Pierce 5 Second Semester Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Pierce 37 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Pierce 5

311 The Teaching of Reading (Upper Grades). 3 sem hr (Formerly 122 Speech)

This course covers problems and methods of teaching reading in the grades of the later elementary and junior high school. Attention is given to the functions of oral and silent reading and their relative values to plans for content silent reading and training silent reading lessons and for oral reading and appreciation lessons. Readings, discussions, reports and observations in the grades stressed. This course is not to be taken by students who have had 310 or 312 Education. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology.

Second semester EDSON MWF 2-3 Pierce 37

312 The Teaching of Reading (Rural). 3 sem hr (Formerly 123 Speech)

This course is designed to give the most fundamental knowledge about methods, objectives, and reading materials suitable for all reading levels found in the rural schools. The course includes about four observations of the reading activities in the campus training schools and in the College rural schools. Not to be taken by students who have had 310 or 311 Education.

First semester EDSON

Sec 1 MWF 10-11 Pierce 38A Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Pierce 37

SCIENCE

201 Elementary Science for Primary Grades. 3 sem hr

A methods course for those who expect to teach in the primary grades or who expect to supervise such teaching. The work consists of methods of organization and presentation of science problems to primary children, of directing such activities as would arise and of collecting and caring for live material. Students should not take this course during the same season in which they take 100 or 101 Elementary Science. Prerequisite: 100 or 101 Elementary Science.

Each semester CURTIS

First Semester

 Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Sci H102
 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Sci H102
 Sec 3 Sat on sufficient demand odd years Sci H102 Second Semcster Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Sci H102 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Sci H102

202 Elementary Science for Intermediate Grades. 3 sem hr This is the companion course to the preceding, but is intended for those who are planning to teach in the intermediate grades. An attempt is made to prepare the student to organize the problems, collect the materials and direct the activities of the elementary science. Methods of presentation of simple experiments to intermediate children and of conducting field trips, will be demonstrated. Students should not take this course during the same season in which they take 100 or 101 Elementary Science. Prerequisite: 100 or 101 Elementary Science. Each semester curres EDUCATION

First Semester

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Soi H102 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Sci H102 Sec 3 Sat on sufficient demand odd years Sci H102 Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Sci H102 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Sci H102

325 Methods in Science Teaching. 2 sem hr

The early part of the course is devoted to a study of classroom technique and methods of presentation of the subject matter of junior and senior high school science. Later the student is given opportunity for actual practice in the preparation and presentation of demonstrations illustrating scientific facts and principles. Numerous references are made to current articles which deal with the problems of the science teacher. Students majoring or minoring in any of the sciences are eligible to this course. Second semester ELLIOTT TuTh 1-2 Sci 202

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

251 Methods and Materials in Physical Education. 3 sem hr A study of the methods and the use of materials used in the teaching of indoor activities. Opportunity is given to do practice teaching and to receive constructive criticism. Observations and reports of the work carried on in the laboratory schools are required.

Each semester vossler, olds

First Semester MWF 11-12 Gym 10 (men) Second Semester MWF 9-10 Gym 5 (women)

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

RURAL EDUCATION

PROFESSOR TROY L. STEARNS *PROFESSOR H. L. TURNER ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR B. H. VANDEN BELT ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR ELLA SMITH

The Division of Rural Education gives preparation for the following lines of service to rural schools:

- 1 Teaching in one-teacher schools.
- 2 Teaching in consolidated and village schools.
- 3 Serving as principal or superintendent of consolidated and village schools.
- 4 Supervision of instruction in rural schools.
- 5 County normal school instruction.
- 6 Superintending of county school systems.

Courses

175 School Management and Course of Study. 2 sem hr This course is a study of principles of organization and management with special application to small rural schools. Bulletins published by the Department of Public Instruction are studied to acquaint the student with recommendations of the department concerning organization and management and to supplement the subject matter of the course of study.

Each semester SMITH

First Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Pierce 39 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Pierce 39 Second Semester TuTh 9-10 Pierce 39

210 Rural Sociology. 2 sem hr (For description see History Department)

303 Principles of Teaching. 3 sem hr (For description see Education Department)

376 The Technique of Supervision. 2 sem hr (Formerly 276 Education)

The purpose of this course is to train leaders in the supervisory phases of teacher-training as it is carried on by the critic teacher in a county normal or by a supervisor of teachers in service. The course will be devoted to such problems as lesson planning, demonstrating types of lessons, and the criticism of instruction. Actual demonstrations will be conducted by members of the class such as would be expected of a critic teacher or a supervisor. This course is required of students preparing for positions of rural leadership.

Second semester STEARNS TuTh 9-10 Pierce 4A

*Absent on leave.

158

379 Rural School Curriculum. 2 sem hr (Formerly 279 Education)

The purpose of this course is to acquaint the students with the best current thought relating to the content of the elementary school curriculum. Opportunity will be offered to examine modern textbooks in the elementary school subjects. Standards for judging textbooks will be developed. Considerable attention will be given to the men who are leading the thought today in curriculum making and the ideas for which they stand. Special attention will be given to the Michigan Curriculum Program for elementary schools. Not open to freshmen.

Summer session STEARNS

390 Modern Trends in Rural Education. 2 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to acquaint the student with current thought and practice and to indicate apparent trends toward better rural schools along the three definite lines of organization, finance, and instruction, Consolidation, county-wide planning, county unit, sources and distribution of funds, local budgeting, supervision, curriculum re-organization, and the improvement of rural teachers in service are among the topics considered. Freshmen and inexperienced teachers are not admitted to this course. Offered summers on sufficient demand STEARNS

394 Community Relations. 2 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to acquaint prospective teachers with the techniques of school and community relationships both formal and informal. The mutual dependence of school and community, school and community achievement days, joint efforts for the improvement of both the organization and work of the Parent-Teacher Association, community councils and similar organizations and activities are considered.

First semester STEARNS TuTh 9-10 Pierce 4A

395 Rural Principalship. 2 sem hr

This course considers the administrative, instructional and community relationships of the principal or superintendent of the small town, village and consolidated school of from three to ten teachers. An attempt is made to give a job analysis of the many functions of this type position and to suggest organization of these duties of the busy principal or superintendent for efficiency. Offered only on sufficient demand KELDER

470 The Rural School Curriculum Work Shop. 3 sem hr

This course permits the student to do intensive work in actual problems which confront him in his own school and to work out curricular units in subject fields as desired. Class limited to thirty students. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology, 303 Principles of Teaching, and teaching experience. First semester STEARNS

Sat 9-11:30 Pierce 5

SPECIAL EDUCATION

PROFESSOR FRANCIS E. LORD MRS. GERTRUDE FLINT MISS GERTRUDE ROSER MISS ANNA BUNGER MRS. LETHE OLDS MISS BERNICE RINGMAN MRS. MABEL L. BENTLEY MISS ORA M. SWARTWOOD MISS MIRIAM D. PAULS MISS BEATRICE D. WADE MR. WILLIAM M. CRUICKSHANK

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Special Education:

See Curricula for Teachers of Special Education. For specializing students only.

Required courses for a Minor in Special Education:

306	Mental Hygiene	2 sem hr
350	Mental Deficiency	2 sem hr
351	Education of Exceptional Children	2 sem hr
356	Mechanics of Voice, Vision and Hearing	5 sem hr

Four semester hours to be determined by the head of the department,

The student who wishes to take a minor in Special Education must obtain, in advance, the approval of the Committee on Graduation. Application blank for the purpose may be secured in the office of the Dean of Administration.

The purpose of this department is to train teachers for the following:

- A. THE DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING
- B. THE BLIND
- C. THE PARTIALLY SIGHTED
- D. THE MENTALLY DEFICIENT
- E. CRIPPLED CHILDREN
- F. CHILDREN OF LOW VITALITY
- G. SPEECH-READING FOR ADULTS
- H. CHILDREN WITH SPEECH DEFECTS
- I. CHILDREN WITH PERSONALITY AND BEHAVIOR PROBLEMS
- J. OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY

160

These curricula lead to the degree of Bachelor of Science and the provisional certificate. Beginning students who wish to specialize in Special Education should follow the outline closely. Students entering the department with advanced credits should confer with the head of the department before registering.

350 Mental Deficiency and 354 Juvenile Delinquency count as Social Science Courses in Group III.

Courses 350, 351 and 354 are recommended for all teachers, principals and superintendents who wish a general understanding of the field of Special Education.

Affiliations

In order to give students specializing in Special Education as thorough an acquaintance with their problems as possible, visits for observation and study will be made to the special schools and classes and to the following state institutions:

The Wayne County Training School at Northville

The Michigan Home and Training School at Lapeer

The State School for the Deaf at Flint

The State School for the Blind at Lansing

The Boys' Vocational School at Lansing

The Girls' Vocational School at Adrian

The Michigan Hospital School at Ann Arbor

The Ford Republic at Farmington

The Institute of Human Relations, U. of M.

The Ypsilanti State Hospital

The Michigan Child Guidance Institute

The Michigan Children's Institute

Courses

306 Mental Hygiene. 2 sem hr

This course aims to account for the normal behavior of man and his emotional reactions. It deals with those factors, the knowledge of which enables a person to understand himself and others. It should aid the teacher and parent in solving disciplinary problems and be of direct help in the adjustment of students to their college life. Therefore it may serve as a positive factor in reducing failure, both in the classroom and outside. Not open to freshmen.

Each semester ELLIOTT

First Semester TuTh 8-9 Rackham 101 Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 1-2 Rackham 101 Sec 2 Sat 12:45-2:30 Rackham 101 350 Mental Deficiency. 2 sem hr

This course deals with the nature and causes of mental deficiency; physical and mental characteristics of mental defectives; different types and the possibility of development; psychology of backward and defective children in relation to their training and instruction and the social control of the mentally deficient. Opportunity will be given for observation and clinical study of sub-normal children. Not open to freshmen.

Each semester ELLIOTT

First Scmester

Sec 1 TuTh 1-2 Rackham 101 Sec 2 Sat 12:30-3 Rackham 101 Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Rackham 101 Sec 2 Sat 9-11 :30 Rackham 102

351 Education of Exceptional Children, 2 sem hr

A consideration of the problems connected with the education of the non-typical child—the blind, the deaf, the crippled, speech defectives, subnormals, supernormals and children of low vitality. Principles and methods of differentiation by means of which the schools may be enabled to meet the needs of every child will be discussed. This course is of special value to principals and superintendents, as well as to teachers of Special Education.

Not open to Freshmen.

Each semester LORD TuTh 9-10 Rackham 102

Turn 9-10 Rackham 102

354 Juvenile Delinquency. 3 sem hr

A study of relation of mentality and other factors to conduct in children of school age; insubordination, incorrigibility, truancy, and juvenile crime considered from the standpoint of their relation to environmental influences, emotional instability, mental conflicts, and suppressed experiences. Case studies of children presenting conduct problems will be made.

Not open to Freshmen.

Each semester LORD

First Semester

MWF 10-11 Rackham 101

Second Semester MWF 1-2 Rackham 101

355 Individual Intelligence Testing. 2 sem hr

The course will cover the leading individual tests of intelligence level. The purpose is to give the student a practical working knowledge of the language and performance scales, by text, discussion, demonstration, and actual experience, to the end that he may rate the intelligence level of the various classes of children found in the public schools. Aside from Special Education majors, admission to this class is by permission of the director only. Each semester LORD

Th 10-12, Tu 11-12 Rackham 102

356 Mechanics of Voice, Vision and Hearing. 5 sem hr (Formerly 311 Principles of Seeing & Hearing, 384 Mechanics of the Ear and Acoustic Training, 371 Elements of Speech, and part of 201 Phonetics.)

SPECIAL EDUCATION

This course is concerned with intensive studies in four related fields: (a) a study of the anatomy of speech, the skeletal framework and the tissues involved in breathing, mechanics of voice and speaking and their physiological function; (b) the principles of physics of sound and light as applied to hearing and seeing; (c) a study of the anatomy and hygiene of the eye and the common eye diseases and defects; (d) a study of the structure and physiology of the ear, the process of hearing and the causes of deafness. Each of the four divisions of the course will occupy about one-fourth of the semester and will be handled by specialists in the respective fields.

Second semester MCKAY, SMITH, OLDS, SWARTWOOD MTuWThF 8-9 Rackham 101

357 Education of Children of Low Vitality. 2 sem hr (Formerly 357 The Fresh Air Class)

Administration, educational methods and problems of open window classes. Historical background of open window classes, selection of pupils, health and nutritional programs, principles of recreation, mental hygiene for physically handicapped children, methods of case study with recommendations for readjustment. Study of curricula and individual workbooks especially adapted for work with children of lowered vitality.

Each semester BENTLEY

TuTh 8-9 Rackham 201

358 Methods of Teaching Slow-Learning Children. 2 sem hr This course aims to give teachers an understanding of the individual abilities of slow learning children. A study is made of the subject matter that can be taught these children and the curricular procedures which are most applicable to their needs. Each semester ROSER

TuTh 2-3 Rackham 205

363 Education of the Blind. 2 sem hr

This course is designed to give the student a knowledge of the field of education for the blind. It includes a consideration of types and characteristics of the blind in the United States and European countries, a survey of the work for the blind, provisions for the teaching of children with seriously defective sight, as well as of the deaf-blind and the adult blind. Attention is also given to the various types of schools for the blind and to associations and organizations for their relief, occupation and placement. Summer session.

364 Methods of Teaching the Blind. 2 sem hr

This course consists of instruction in Braille and in pencil writing. Consideration is also given to the following topics: Preschool education for the blind, kindergarten training, methods of teaching the elementary school subjects, and the teaching of Braille to adults. A demonstration class will be held in connection with this course.

Summer session.

366 Hygiene and Anatomy of the Eye. 2 sem hr (Formerly 366 Sight Saving)

Major attention is given to a study of eye anatomy and of eye hygiene; common eye diseases and defects, vision testing; the techniques of effective cooperation with oculists, nurses, and other agencies: standards of eligibility of children to the sight saving classes. A minimum of ten hours attendance in the ocular clinic of the University Hospital is also required.

First semester OLDS

TuTh 3-4 Rackham 206

367 Education of Children with Impaired Vision. 2 sem hr (Formerly 367 Sight Saving Teaching Methods)

Treats of general problems of sight conservation, organization and administration of sight saving classes, adjustment of environment, teaching media and curricula modifications essential to the needs of the individuals with defective vision. An assigned program of observation of sight saving class work is required. Second semester OLDS

TuTh 3-4 Rackham 206

369 Methods of Teaching Crippled Children. 2 sem hr

The purpose of this course is to familiarize the student with units of work designed to meet the education and psychological needs of the crippled child. Emphasis will be placed upon the presentation and adaptation of teaching materials, the ways and means of providing for individual differences. This includes a study of the individual in the light of his particular disability. Each semester FLINT

TuTh 3-4 Rackham 212

372 Teaching Speech to the Deaf. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 372 The Teaching of Speech)

A thorough study is made of formation and development of English sounds with emphasis on kinesiological phonetics. A comparison will be made between the international phonetic alphabet. Yale charts, and diacritical markings; the fundamentals of voice production and the technique of teaching articulation, rhythm, accent, fluency, and inflection to the deaf are developed. Laboratory period to be arranged. Prerequisite: 301 Phonetics, 356 Mechanics of Voice, Vision and Hearing. Second semester PAULS

TuTh 2-3 Rackham 219

373 Therapeutic Care of Crippled Children. 2 sem hr

A study of means of rehabilitation of crippled children, stressing the principles of physiotherapy and occupational therapy; special equipment and special services; camping, plays, games and leisure time activities and means of safeguarding the child both in and out of school. Field trips as indicated in 374 Special Education. Second semester RINGMAN

TuTh 8-9 Rackham 211

374 Physical Reconstruction of Crippled Children. 2 sem hr (Formerly 374 Physical Reconstruction)

This course will include a discussion of state and national agencies dealing with crippled children, methods of finding and diagnosis, causes of crippling, methods of treatment and prevention and classification of types. Consideration will be given to cardiac cases since these children are often found in orthopedic classes. Class discussions, special lectures, visits to clinics, camps and convalescent homes for crippled children.

First semester RINGMAN

TuTh 8-9 Rackham 211

378 Audiometric Testing and the Use of Hearing Aids. 3 sem hr (Formerly 378 Techniques in Use of Hearing Aids and 401 Testing Auditory Acuity)

Techniques for administering group and individual audiometric tests and instruction in the interpretation of audiograms. History of hearing aids and their development; a study of the mechanical requirements of high fidelity aids and the arrangement of multiple aids for classroom work. Using hearing aids for an appreciation of rhythm and music, speech correction and improvement of voice quality in children who have residual hearing. Prerequisite: 356 Mechanics of Voice, Vision and Hearing.

Offered only on sufficient demand SWARTWOOD MWF 3-4 Rackham 221

379 Fundamentals of Voice Production in the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Child. 3 sem hr

A course for teachers of the deaf. Improvement of the teacher's own voice as a pattern for student improvement; development of an appreciation for a standard of good voice quality; a study of applied physiology of the organs of phonation and articulation as a basis for vocal diagnosis and voice improvement; the articulated vowel; tactile sense and voice training; diagnosis and corrective measures for faulty phonation in the deaf and hard of hearing designed to approach more nearly the creation and imitation of normal voice quality in normal speech. Text: Assigned reading in "Mechanism of the Larynx" by Negus. Summer session.

381 Advanced Course in Creation of Voice in the Deaf Child. 3 sem hr

An advanced course dealing with the diagnosis and correction of voice and speech problems. Attention is given to the application of the principles established in 379 Fundamentals of Voice Production in the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Child. Study is made of the theory of overlaid function of speech and the application of the theory to normalizing of speech for the deaf. Card system of diagnosis is employed. Training in diagnosis is given through tactile methods and ear training. Individual voice and speech correction is given through imitation using a microphone and earphone set-up. Prerequisite: 379 Fundamentals of Voice Production in the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Child. Summer session.

385 Essentials of Language Development and Reading for the Deaf. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 385 Essentials of Language Development and 400 Reading for the Deaf Child)

This course is a study of the natural acquisition of language and the principles used to develop the language of the deaf. The development of a reading program is studied, showing how it coordinates with language development. The needs of the various grade levels are discussed.

First semester PAULS

MWF 2-3 Rackham 219

Training Courses for Teachers of Speech-Reading

Deafened students applying for the training courses for teachers of speech-reading will follow the curriculum as outlined by the adviser. In all cases arrangement for these courses is through conference.

Students with normal hearing preparing to teach deaf and hardof-hearing children will take courses 393 and 401.

393 Jena Materials and Method. 2 sem hr

This course includes discussion of the theory of the Jena Method of Speech-Reading as applied to the teaching of hard-of-hearing children. Study is made of foundation procedures, the development and handling of exercises, and the correlation of speech-reading with academic subjects. Provision is made for observation of the children's class. Notebook reports of both discussion and observation hours are required.

First semester SWARTWOOD

TuTh 8-9 Rackham 221

396 Principles of Teaching Speech-Reading. 3 sem hr

Discussion of methods used in the teaching of speech-reading in the United States, with a survey paper to summarize the points of view represented. Special study of Jena Method procedures as preparation for subsequent practice teaching of adults. Written report of the work of the leagues for the hard-of-hearing. Offered only on sufficient demand BUNGER

Speech-Reading

These courses are open to hard-of-hearing adults who have normal command of speech and language. The objective is the acquiring of skill in speech-reading, the ability to understand spoken language in spite of impaired hearing. Adults of all ages may enroll as special students. The courses carry credit for students pursuing a regular college curriculum. The work is made practical for both educational and rehabilitation purposes.

The method of instruction is that of the Ypsilanti Adaptation and Extension of the Jena Method of Speech-Reading.

387 Speech-Reading I. 3 sem hr

A careful development of rhythmical syllable exercises, synchronous drills and grammatical form exercises. Emphasis is placed on imitation and rhythm as aids in developing speech-reading ability. Discussion and conversation are directed toward the forming of the right foundation habits for subsequent study and practice of speech-reading.

Each semester BUNGER MWF 10-11 Rackham 216

388 Speech-Reading II. 2 sem hr

This course stresses student participation in the leading of all drills for simultaneous speaking. The spoken drills are followed by practice in silent accompaniment or subconscious imitation as different members of the group speak. The material for this course includes a review of the syllable drills, more advanced sentence work, simple stories, and an introduction to topical discussions of timely subjects. May be elected with 387.

Each semester BUNGER

TuTh 11-12 Rackham 216

389 Speech-Reading III. 3 sem hr

The material for practice shows advancement to longer talks, current news items, exchange of opinions and experiences, biographical sketches, travel talks, and topics of interest to individual members of the class. The routine procedure of the foundation courses is used only as a means to help the speech-reader overcome what difficulties he encounters in following the subject in hand. The aim is for silent understanding rather than oral accompaniment.* Prerequisites : Speech-Reading I and II.

Each semester BUNGER

MWF 1-2 Rackham 216

390 Speech-Reading IV. 2 sem hr

This course is individualized to meet the difficulties and interests of the class. The aim is to make the classroom practice as nearly as possible typical of the contacts of daily life. Material includes discussion of hobbies, the filling out of personality questionnaires, conversation as conducted in social groups, and the creation of hypothetical situations such as the interviewing of a prospective employer or the mapping out of an itinerary for extended travel. Individual help is given when needed. May be taken with Speech-Reading III.

Each semester BUNGER TuTh 2-3 Rackham 216

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

Occupational Therapy

301 Psychiatry and Neurology. 2 sem hr

A series of lectures will consider the abnormal psychological reactions and the major and minor psychoses from the standpoint of etiology, symptomatology and treatment. A study of the structure, function and pathology of the central nervous system and a survey of the function of the social services in the treatment of neuropsychiatric cases is included.

First semester YPSILANTI STATE HOSPITAL STAFF Hours to be arranged.

302 Theory of Occupational Therapy. 2 sem hr

History and development of Occupational Therapy with special emphasis on the scope of the field and its place in the hospital organization. Theory of the application in the treatment of mental disease and maladjustment with emphasis on the importance of careful correlation of an Occupational Therapy program with other services.

First semester WADE

Sat hours to be arranged Rackham 101

403 Advanced Theory of Occupational Therapy. 3 sem hr

The application of Occupational Therapy in the treatment of tuberculosis, orthopedics, medical and surgical conditions; methods of recording findings, the analysis and adaptation of crafts to these various groups; administration and organization of a department; study of professional ethics; a survey of allied professions and the successful utilization of auxiliary social services. Second semester WADE

Hours to be arranged Rackham 101

404 Medical Lectures. 2 sem hr

A series of lectures on medical and surgical conditions, with emphasis on the important symptoms, complications, psychological reaction and convalescent care. The subjects include tuberculosis, orthopedics, general medical and surgical conditions, cardiac and communicable diseases, blindness and deafness.

Second semester UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN HOSPITAL STAFF Hours to be arranged

LABORATORY SCHOOLS

LESLIE A. BUTLER, A.M., Director

FRANCIS E. LORD, A.M., Ph.D., Director of Special Education LEONARD W. MENZI, A.M., Principal Roosevelt Training School BEN H. VANDEN BELT, A.M., Principal Lincoln Consolidated School ERNEST H. CHAPELLE, A.M., Supt. Ypsilanti Schools FLOYD L. SMITH, A.M., Principal Woodruff School OPAL V. SLAVENS, A.M., Principal Carpenter School WINIFRED M. LANTZ, B.S., Principal Spencer School

PURPOSE

All of the work done in the laboratory schools has the following purposes: to exemplify the best teaching practices, to serve the best interest of the pupils of the schools, and to prepare teachers for the public schools of Michigan.

LABORATORY SCHOOL BUILDINGS

Horace H. Rackham School of Special Education

The Horace H. Rackham School of Special Education, housed in a building costing \$300,000 given by the Rackham Foundation, is the first of its kind anywhere. Much study and effort have gone into providing every facility for the comfort and convenience of handicapped children as well as students who are preparing to teach the partially sighted, the deaf and hard of hearing, the crippled, and children with physical and mental handicaps. A dormitory with kitchen and dining room for boarding children from over the state who would not otherwise have the advantages of special instruction, an auditorium, clinics, offices and classrooms specially designed for handicapped children and for the education of teachers to instruct them are features of this unusual provision for special education.

Roosevelt School

Roosevelt is the campus elementary and high school. The building, equipment and grounds were designed especially for meeting all the purposes of an adequate teacher training plant. The school is organized on the six-three-three plan and provides facilities for student teaching from kindergarten through twelfth grade. The kindergarten is located in Welch Hall.

Woodruff School

The Woodruff School is a typical elementary city school including kindergarten and first six grades. It was the first off campus public school to become affiliated with the college for training purposes. It is a regular ward school in the Ypsilanti system and is located within easy walking distance of the campus.

Lincoln Consolidated School

The Lincoln Consolidated School is located six miles south of Ypsilanti and is one of the most excellent illustrations of school consolidation to be found. It serves a farm area of sixty-three square miles and is attended by approximately seven hundred pupils. Its work embraces all grades from kindergarten through twelfth grade and is organized on the six-six plan. Its community owned transportation system of seventeen busses and central fireproof garage; its general and farm mechanics shops; its Smith-Hughes agriculture and home economics units; and its well organized and functioning student and community activities make it one of the most interesting and instructive centers for student teaching.

Rural Laboratory Schools

The Normal College maintains two small rural laboratory schools. The Spencer School is a two-teacher school of six elementary grades three miles east of the city limits. It is housed in a new modern building of beautiful design and excellent equipment. The Carpenter School is a typical one-teacher school of six grades located three miles west of the campus where opportunity is given for student teaching in this situation so prevalent in rural Michigan.

STUDENT TEACHING

Student teaching provides opportunity for the student to become familiar with a variety of activities always present in every school in addition to the teaching of classes. To avail oneself of these opportunities necessitates the spending of more time in the laboratory school for an equivalent amount of credit than in the classroom of the usual college class. This fact should be taken into account when classifying for student teaching.

The instruction in all elementary schools is done on the basis of grade groups with a supervising teacher in charge of approximately thirty children. Instruction in the junior and senior high schools is done on the departmental basis. Special supervising teachers care for the work in art, music and physical education.

All candidates for teachers' certificates are required to engage in practice teaching, and they receive therefor five to ten semester hours of credit depending upon the curriculum pursued.

Students on the elementary curriculum are required to devote three clock hours to student teaching daily for one semester in any grade or grades from one to six, and receive credit of eight semester hours.

Students on the early elementary curriculum who are specializing in kindergarten are required to devote two clock hours daily for one semester to kindergarten practice teaching and two clock hours daily for another semester in grades one, two, or three. For this work credit is allowed of five semester hours for each semester.

Students specializing in home economics are required to engage in student teaching one hour daily for one semester, for which credit is allowed of five semester hours.

Students on the state limited certificate curriculum are required to engage in student teaching two hours daily for one semester in one of the rural laboratory schools and are allowed credit of five semester hours.

Students on the special education curricula are required to devote two hours daily for one semester teaching normal children and two hours daily for another semester teaching exceptional children. For this student teaching credit of five semester hours is allowed for each semester.

All students preparing to teach junior or senior high school academic subjects or in the special fields of art, music, industrial arts, and physical education are required to engage in student teaching one hour daily for two semesters, for which is allowed total credit of eight semester hours.

Persons who have completed satisfactorily one year of preparation in a Michigan County Normal are given credit for 3 semester hours of student teaching. They are required to take such additional units as are specified on the particular curriculum pursued.

The following general regulations regarding student teaching should be observed :

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

- 1. All assignments for teaching in the laboratory schools and changes in the same are made by the Director.
- 2. No student will be assigned to practice teaching whose scholarship index is less than 1, below "C" average.
- 3. No credit in practice teaching will be given for work rated less than "C".
- 4. To qualify for graduation with a teacher's certificate, the student must attain a grade of not less than "C" in each course taught.
- No student may earn more than three semester hours' credit in practice teaching during a summer session.
- 6. No student will be permitted to satisfy the total requirements in student teaching during summer sessions only.
- 7. If a student is to do eight semester hours of teaching in the elementary grades, a half day for one semester should be scheduled for it.
- If he is specializing in high school work, he should teach his major subject first.
- No student teacher will be assigned twice in succession to the same supervising teacher or to the same laboratory school.
- 10. Students who are pursuing a four-year curriculum should not begin their student teaching before the second semester of the junior year.
- 11. All students should have completed three courses in education before entering upon practice teaching. The third course, which is devoted to principles of teaching, should be taken in the semester immediately preceding the one in which student teaching is begun.
- 12. Students doing more than four semester hours of student teaching may not carry more than the standard load, fifteen semester hours.
- All students classifying for student teaching should reserve the hour from 4 to 5 for conferences.
- 14. During the time that the student is doing his teaching in the laboratory schools, he should so arrange his daily schedule that his teaching will take precedence over all other interests and duties.

Student Teacher Conferences

During the period of student teaching there are three types of conferences designed for the assistance of student teachers. During the first semester of student teaching the student is expected to attend weekly Student Teacher Assemblies with the Director of Laboratory Schools. These are held on Wednesday afternoons from four to five.

Throughout the student's period of practice he is expected to have group conferences with his supervising teacher once or twice

172

each week. These are held from four to five o'clock on Tuesday and Thursday afternoons unless otherwise scheduled by the supervising teacher.

Individual conferences are held with supervising teachers and with the principals, or director, as needs or desires of student teachers demand.

Application for Student Teaching

Application for directed teaching must be made in the semester preceding that in which the teaching is to be done. To enroll for the first semester, application must be made not later than March 15; for the second semester, not later than November 15; for the summer session, not later than May 15. Application blank may be obtained at the Roosevelt School office.

FINE ARTS

PROFESSOR ORLO M. GILL ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR ELINOR STRAFER ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR HELEN FINCH SWETE INSTRUCTOR DORIS L. PORTER

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Fine Arts:

See Curriculum for Teachers of Fine Arts. For specializing students only.

See Appendix for Arts Group Major.

Required Courses for a Minor in Fine Arts:

101 or 101s Elementary Art	3 sem hr
103 Commercial Design	2 sem hr
111 Design	3 sem hr
200 Art Appreciation	2 sem hr
201 Life Sketching	3 sem hr
Electives	2 sem hr

Courses

101 Elementary Art. 3 sem hr

A course in drawing and painting open to all students with the purpose of developing an appreciation of form and color and offering to each individual opportunities in creative work. Crayons, water colors, chalk and clay are used.

Each semester STRAFER, SWETE, GILL, PORTER

First Semester

Second Semester

96	Sec	1	MWF	9-10	Adm
05	Sec	2	MWF	11-12	Adm
08	Sec	3	MWF	1-2	Adm
08	Sec	4	MWF	2-3	Adm
06					

Sec	1	MWF	8-9	Adm	206
Sec	2	MWF	9-10	Adm	205
Sec	3	MWF	11-12	Adm	208
Sec	4	MWF	1-2	Adm	208
Sec	5	MWF	2-3	Adm	206
Sec	6	MWF	3-4	Adm	205

101s Elementary Art. 3 sem hr This class is held two hours, three days a week. A course for students who plan to specialize in Fine Arts. The aim is the same as that of 101 with additional opportunity for creative work in order to strengthen native ability and techniques. This course is for students with some art background. First semester GILL, SWETE

MWF 10-12 Adm 205

103 Commercial Design. 2 sem hr

Lettering and design with emphasis on composition and color as applied to posters, cover designs, book plates, trademarks, and manuscript writing.

Each semester STRAFER, SWETE

Firs	st	Semes	ter		
		TuTh TuTh			
pec	4	тати	1-2	Adm	200

Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Adm 206, Sec 2 TuTh 2-3 Adm 206 Sec 3 Sat 12:45-2:30 Adm 206

104 Blackboard Drawing. 2 sem hr

This is a course in rapid sketching with white and colored chalks. Illustrations are made of various subjects in nature, the social studies, and children's literature.

Second semester STRAFER TuTh 2-3 Adm 200

106-106a Still-life Drawing and Painting. 3 sem hr each This class is held two hours, three days a week. Special attention is given to the arrangement of various objects for the purpose of stimulating the student's perception of form, value, and color. Charcoal, water color, and oils are used. For additional work in this course classify in 106a. Prerequisites: 101 or 101s Elementary Art and 111 Design.

Second semester GILL MWF 1-3 Adm 209

109 Color. 3 sem hr

(Formerly Color Theory and Freehand Drawing)

Designed to give the student an experience in the knowledge and use of color and to develop a sense of its relative proportion and arrangement. It includes representative and abstract painting. Second semester STRAFER, SWETE MWF 10-12 Adm 205

111 Design. 3 sem hr (Formerly 111 Elementary Design) This class is held two hours, three days a week. The development of the ability to create structural and decorative arrangements is the purpose of this course. Prerequisite: 101 or 101s Elementary Art.

First semester swete, strafer MWF 10-12 Adm 206

200 Art Appreciation. 2 sem hr (Formerly 200 Art Appreciation and Design) A general course to introduce the student to the history of sculpture, painting, and architecture, and to acquaint the student with

the elements of creative design and color as applied to the home, school, and community.

Each semester STRAFER, GILL, PORTER

First Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Adm 206 Sec 2 MW 10-11 Adm 208 Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 8-9 Adm 206 Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Adm 206 Sec 3 TuTh 2-3 Adm 208

201, 202 Life Sketching. 3 sem hr each This class is held two hours, three days each week. It consists of criticisms of individual drawings and paintings from life in black and white and color. Prerequisite: 101 or 101s Elementary Art. Each semester STRAFER, SWETE MWF 10-12 Adm 207

204 Advanced Design. 3 sem hr This class is held two hours, three days each week and consists of design and its use in numerous crafts such as batik, block printing and the decoration of various types of shapes and surfaces. Prerequisite: 101 or 101s Elementary Art. Second semester even years PORTER MWF 10-12 Adm 208

221 Interior Decoration. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 205 Home Economics Design and 206 Interior Decoration)

A study of the arrangement of furnishings and decoration of numerous types of buildings stressing their structural qualities. A knowledge of the character and selection of furniture, textiles, pictures, lighting and their functions is emphasized. First semester STRAFER

Sec 1 MWF 3-4 Adm 206

Sec 2 MWF 3-4 Adm 208

207 Costume Design. 3 sem hr

This course affords the student an opportunity to acquire style and originality in the designing of costumes for various occasions. A knowledge of fabrics and the development of design in line, tone, and color is encouraged.

Second semester PORTER, SWETE

Sec 1 MWF 3-4 Adm 205

Sec 2 MWF 3-4 Adm 208

208-208a Outdoor Sketching. 3 sem hr each A comprehensive study of color and landscape composition. Prerequisite: 101 or 101s Elementary Art. Summer on demand GILL

210-210a Sculpture. 3 sem hr each The use of clay in a three dimensional representation of nature and the human figure. Special attention is given to creative composition. Prerequisites: 101 or 101s Elementary Art and 201 Life Sketching.

First semester even years strafer MWF 1-3 Adm 209 211 History of Furniture and Minor Arts. 2 sem hr

A course designed for general students and those interested in historic ornament as applied to different styles of furniture and the related arts. The styles of Gothic and Renaissance in Europe; the early and Empire styles in France; the Jacobean, William and Mary, and Queen Anne in England; and the designers of the Georgian Period, Chippendale, Heppelwhite, and Sheraton are stressed. Early American. Colonial, and modern styles are ineluded.

Offered only on sufficient demand PORTER

212 History of Architecture. 2 sem hr (Formerly History of Art)

A study of the forms and structural principles of buildings. It includes a survey of Egyptian, classical Greek and Roman, Byzantine, Romanesque, Gothic and Renaissance architecture with their historical and economic backgrounds. Special attention is given to the design and construction of modern homes and public buildings.

First semester GILL TuTh 8-9 Adm 204

213 History of Painting. 3 sem hr (Formerly History of Art) This course is a survey of European and American painting. A notebook of prints is required. Second semester STRAFER MWF 8-9 Adm 204

216 The Teaching of Drawing. 3 sem hr (See Education)

301 Lettering. 2 sem hr The objective of this course is to acquire skill in pen and brush lettering for display cards, posters, signs, and charts. First semester odd years GILL TuTh 3-4 Adm 205

302 Advertising Illustration, 2 sem hr Compositions and lay-outs suitable for advertising are carried out in water color, pen and ink, and crayon. The various processes of reproduction for magazines and newspapers are considered. Prerequisites: 101 or 101s Elementary Art, 103 Commercial Design and 201 Life Sketching.

Offered only on sufficient demand STRAFER, GILL

303 Poster Design. 2 sem hr An advanced course in commercial art. A variety of poster techniques are employed. Prerequisites: 101s Elementary Art, 103 Commercial Design, 111 Design, and 201 Life Sketching.

Second semester on demand GILL, STRAFER TuTh 3-4 Adm 206

305-305a Etching. 3 sem hr each

The art of etching as a medium of expression is the purpose of this course. Prints are made from copper and zinc plates. Compositions are worked out in dry-point, aquatint, and soft ground etching. The lives and works of famous etchers are studied throughout the course. Prerequisites: 101 or 101s Elementary Art, 201 and 202 Life Sketching.

First semester even years GILL MWF 2-3 Adm 205

401 Art Composition. 3 sem hr

This course enables the student to acquire further creative ability and a knowledge of structural values and techniques with the aid of the fundamental principles of design and color. Problems in illustration, mural decoration and the stage are introduced. Prerequisites: 101 or 101s Elementary Art, 201 Life Sketching, 109 Color, and 111 Design.

Second semester GILL, STRAFER, SWETE MWF 10-11 Adm 208 MUSIC

MUSIC

PROFESSOR HAYDN MORGAN ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR CARL LINDEGREN ASSISTANT PROFESSOR LILLIAN ASHBY ASSISTANT PROFESSOR DOROTHY JAMES MARIUS E. FOSSENKEMPER MISS MYRA GRATTAN MRS. CORA V. WORTLEY D. CHESTER RYAN

Required Courses for a Major in Music:

See Curriculum for Teachers of Music. For specializing students only.

See Appendix for Arts Group Major.

THEORY, HISTORY, LITERATURE AND APPRECIATION OF MUSIC

101 Elements of Music. 3 sem hr

This is a course in theory, ear training and music reading. It includes the study of rhythm and tone problems, major and minor modes, ear training, oral and written dictation, part singing and reading in G, F and C clefs. For specializing students only. First semester GRATTAN MWF 9-10 Pease C

102 Elements of Music. 2 sem hr For description of this course see 101 Elements of Music above. Prerequisite: 101 Elements of Music. For specializing students only. Second semester GRATTAN

TuTh 9-10 Pease C

104 Elements of Music. 2 sem hr This course is designed to give the grade teacher a singing, music reading and theory experience in the elements of music. It acquaints the students with rhythm and tone problems, and aims to develop skill in music reading and an appreciation of music. Each semester GRATTAN Sec 1 TuTh 11-12 Pease E Sec 3 TuTh 2-3 Pease E Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Pease E

115 Music Appreciation, 2 sem hr A course for non-specializing students. The aims of the course are to acquaint the student with the various types, forms, and

styles of instrumental and vocal compositions. Illustrations through records and performances by accomplished musicians will he used.

Each semester MORGAN TuTh 8-9 Pease C

141 Harmony, 4 sem hr (Formerly 110 and 111 Harmony) This course is a study of the construction and use of all triads and primary seventh chords. It includes an intensive drill in four-part writing, harmonic dictation and keyboard harmony. First semester JAMES Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Pease E (Instrumental students) Sec 2 MTuWF 1-2 Pease E (Vocal students and others who have had Harmony in high school)

142 Harmony. 4 sem hr (Formerly 111 and 112 Harmony) This course includes a study of secondary seventh chords, simple modulations, four-part writing, harmonic dictation and keyboard harmony. Prerequisite: 141 Harmony. Second semester JAMES Sec 1 MWThF 10-11 Pease E (Instrumental students)

Sec 2 MTuWF 1-2 Pease E (Vocal students)

241 Counterpoint. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 213 and 214 Counterpoint)

This course is a study of the various species of two and three-part counterpoint, motive development and the principal polyphonic forms. Analysis of typical works and considerable original composition are required. Prerequisite: 142 Harmony.

First semester JAMES Sec 1 MW 8-9 Pease E (Instrumental students) Sec 2 TuTh 8-9 Pease E (Vocal students)

313 Advanced Harmony. 2 sem hr

This course deals with the harmonic development of modern composition, beginning with the works of Debussy. The aim is to give students an introduction to the musical thought of the period. It includes analysis and composition, Prerequisite: 142 Harmony. Offered only on sufficient demand JAMES

353 History and Literature of Music. 4 sem hr

(Formerly 153 History and Literature of Music, 310 Musical Form and 325 Music Appreciation)

The aims of the course are to acquaint the student with the progress in music from its primitive beginnings to the classic period. The principal forms and styles of music are studied. Phonograph records and performances by accomplished musicians are used to develop an appreciation of music.

First semester MORGAN

MTuThF 11-12 Pease C

354 History and Literature of Music. 4 sem hr (Formerly 154 History and Literature of Music, 310 Musical Form and 325 Music Appreciation) This course is a continuation of 353 History and Literature of Music. From the classic period to the Moderns. Prerequisite: 353 History and Literature of Music. Second semester MORGAN MTuThF 11-12 Peage C

413 Orchestration. 3 sem hr

This is a practical work in orchestrating original and other works. Arrangements for various ensembles as well as one score for full orchestra are required. Prerequisite: 241 Counterpoint. Each semester JAMES

First Semester MWF 2-3 Pease E Second Semester MWF 8-9 Pease E

414 Orchestration. 3 sem hr

This course is a continuation of 413 Orchestration. Arrangements are made for various combinations of instruments and analysis of representative symphonic works. Prerequisite: 413 Orchestration. Second semester JAMES

MWF 2-3 Pease E

MUSIC EDUCATION

220 Elementary Music Education. (For Non-specializing students.) 3 sem hr

(Formerly 220 Early Elementary Music Education)

This course is a study of music in relation to the interests, characteristics and needs of children in early elementary grades. It includes the following topics: development of a sense of rhythm, care and development of the voice, ear training, presentation of the staff and its notation, music reading, song repertoire, appreciation of beauty in music and instrumental work. Prerequisite: 104 Elements of Music.

Each semester GRATTAN Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Pease C Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Pease C

221 Secondary Music Education. (For Non-specializing students.) 3 sem hr

(Formerly 221 Intermediate Music Education)

This course is a study of music in relation to the interests, characteristics and needs of girls and boys in intermediate grades. It includes the following topics: care and development of the voice; artistic singing of beautiful song literature; development of skill in music reading through study of rhythmic types, tonal patterns, chromatics, minors, part singing; creative work; appre-

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

ciation of beauty in music; and instrumental work. Prerequisite: 104 Elements of Music. Second semester GRATTAN MWF 1-2 Pease C -

326 Interpretation and Technique of Conducting. 2 sem hr Emphasis upon the conductor's abilities to interpret the spirit, mood, and import of vocal and instrumental music and to develop the power of imagination. Rehearsal procedures for developing excellence in tonal beauty, phrasing, intonation, diction, choice of tempi, score reading, accompanying, refinement of physical movements and other significant details. Second semester MORGAN, FOSSENKEMPER

MW 2-3 Pease D

230 Music Education in the Elementary School. 3 sem hr (See Education)

231 Music Education in the Secondary School. 3 sem hr (See Education)

352 Instrumental Materials and Methods. 3 sem hr (See Education)

APPLIED MUSIC

A student on any specializing Music course may by examination attain credits up to two semester hours in college courses of applied music. The amount of credit given will depend upon the results of such examination.

Vocal Ensemble

130 Normal Choir. No credit. This course is required of all students specializing in music and open to all college students who qualify. It may be elected for one semester only. No absence from rehearsal allowed during the first four weeks of any semester. Each semester MORGAN TuTh 6:45-7:45 Pease

131 Class in Artistic Singing. Madrigal Club. No credit. This is a study of the interpretation of masterpieces, meeting once a week. It is for advanced pupils only. Each semester MORGAN Hours to be arranged

232 Voice Culture. 2 sem hr (Formerly Music 132a, 132b) – This is a course of lectures on vocal anatomy, breathing and the various phases of singing. Analysis and use of exercises for the

development of the voice and elimination of the faults of singing. A limited repertory of old classics and folk songs. It is open to all students and required of all specializing in Public School Music.

Each semester LINDEGREN First semester Instrumental students Second semester Vocal students TuTh 8-9 Pease B

Instrumental Ensemble

247 Instrumental Ensemble. 2 sem hr

This is a course in chamber music for woodwinds, brass or strings. It is offered during the second semester of each year to women on the Instrumental Curriculum instead of 249 Band. The credit earned each semester is $\frac{1}{2}$ semester hour. Four semesters of work required to earn two semester hours.

Second semester FOSSENKEMPER MTuThF 2-3 Pease Stage

248 Orchestra, 2 sem hr

This course is open to all students in the College, but is required of all students on the Instrumental Curriculum. The credit earned each semester is $\frac{1}{4}$ semester hour. Eight semesters, or four full years, required for the entire course. No credit is given for less than two semesters of work.

Each semester FOSSENKEMPER M 4-6. W 6:45-8:30 Pease Stage

249 Band. 2 sem hr

This course is open to all men students in the College, but is required of all men on the Instrumental Curriculum. The credit earned each semester is $\frac{1}{4}$ semester hour. Eight semesters, four full years, required for the entire course.

Each semester BYAN

M 6:45-8:30, Th 4-5:30 Pease Stage

Individual

450 Applied Music, Singing and Piano. 2 sem hr This is a course of private half-hour lessons in singing and piano, and in vocal ensemble given once a week and required on the Music Curriculum. The details of all such private lessons are to be decided during consultation with the Head of the Department of Music. The credit earned each semester is ¹/₄ semester hour. At least two years of private lessons are required. No credit is given for less than one year of work. 451 Applied Music, Major Instrument. 2 sem hr This is a course of private half-hour lessons on the major instrument given once a week and required on the Instrumental Curriculum. The credit earned is ¹/₄ semester hour. Four years of work are required to earn two semester hours. No credit is given for less than one year of work.

Note: Students on the Instrumental Curriculum elect four of the Applied Music Courses given below, 452, 453, 454, 455, 456. They are chosen under the guidance of the Head of the Department of Music as minor courses in Applied Music. Each course consists of half-hour private lessons, one per week through two consecutive semesters. The credit earned in each course is $\frac{1}{2}$ semester hour. No credit will be given for less than one year of work.

452 Applied Music. Piano. 1/2 sem hr

This minor instrument may be elected on the Instrumental Curriculum in the fall and must be carried one year. The credit for each semester is 1/4 semester hour.

453 Applied Music, Strings. 1/2 sem hr

This minor instrument may be elected on the Instrumental Curriculum in the fall and must be carried one year. The credit for each semester is ¼ semester hour.

454 Applied Music, Brass. 1/2 sem hr

This minor instrument may be elected on the Instrumental Curriculum in the fall and must be carried one year. The credit for each semester is $\frac{1}{4}$ semester hour.

455 Applied Music, Woodwinds. 1/2 sem hr

This minor instrument may be elected on the Instrumental Curriculum in the fall and must be carried one year. The credit for each semester is $\frac{1}{4}$ semester hour.

456 Applied Music, Singing. 1/2 sem hr

This course may, with the consent of the Head of the Department of Music, be elected instead of any one of the four preceding courses, 452, 453, 454, 455. The credit for each semester is $\frac{1}{4}$ semester hour. No credit will be given for less than one year of work.

CONSERVATORY OF MUSIC

PURPOSE OF THE CONSERVATORY

The Conservatory has three distinct aims: first, to train teachers of public school music; second, to offer opportunity to persons who desire to study voice or an instrument; third, to equip leaders of orchestras, bands, mixed chorus and glee clubs, through general musiclanship, through the technique of conducting and through the suggestion of literatures for the various organizations. A great many who are preparing to teach in grade positions or in high school wish to add to their general culture and usefulness by becoming somewhat proficient in music, and to such the conservatory offers exceptional advantages.

AFFILIATION WITH THE COLLEGE

The Conservatory was organized in 1880 by authority of the State Board of Education. In May, 1916, it was reorganized by the State Board under the following motion:

"That the music department be reorganized and known as the Normal College Conservatory of Music; that it shall consist of the Public School Music Department, the purpose of which shall be the education and training of teachers of public school music, and the Vocal and Instrumental Department, for the purpose of offering opportunity to the students of the College who are preparing to teach public school music and to others to pursue the study of voice or of instruments at their own expense; and that

"The administrative head of the Conservatory shall be the Director who shall be nominated by the President of the College and elected by the State Board of Education as well as the other teachers."

FACULTY

HAYDN MORGAN, Director, B. S. M., M. A., New York University

Piano

MARGUERITE BREAKEY, B. S. in Music, Michigan State Normal College; A. M., Michigan; pupil of Mme. Rosina Lhevinne.

RUTH SKINNER, B. S. in Music, Michigan State Normal College; M. M., Michigan; pupil of Joseph Brinkman and Arthur Schnabel.

Voice

CARL LINDEGEEN, Pupil of Gustaf Holmquist, Albert Borroff, Theodore Harrison, Dr. Arthur Mees, and Herbert Witherspoon. ANNIS DEXTER GRAY, Pupil of Herbert Witherspoon.

Violin

EMILY MUTTER ADAMS, Pupil of Jacques Gordon, Concert Master of Chicago Symphony Orchestra; University of Michigan School of Music.

Wood-Wind Instruments

MARIUS E. FOSSENKEMPER, A. B., University of Michigan; Member Detroit Symphony Orchestra; Director Normal College Symphony Orchestra.

Violoncello

ARLENE SEAMAN, B. S., Michigan State Normal College.

Brass Instruments

D. CHESTER RYAN, A. B., Michigan State Normal College; A. M., University of Michigan; Director Normal College Band.

Theory

DOROTHY JAMES, Mus. M., (American Conservatory of Music, Chicago); Eastman; Michigan.

Music Education

LILLIAN A. ASHBY, B. Pd., Michigan State Normal College; B. Mus. (Hon.), Adrian College Conservatory; B. S., A. M., Columbia.

CORA V. WOETLEY, Graduate, Michigan State Normal College. MYRA GRATTAN, B. S., Michigan State Normal College.

INDIVIDUAL AND CLASS LESSONS

Lesson periods are 30 minutes long. A semester of lessons consists of one lesson per week for 18 weeks.

Singing

Students specializing on any music course may take advantage of the class rate for individual lessons, but only during their freshman year. The class rate is open to any other college student, during any year.

Mr. Lindegren

Mrs. Gray

Instruments

Piano 1	e	S	s	0	n	IS	5		-				1	à		4	-			4	į,	4	14		i.	4			2	\$27.00
Orchest	1	2	1		I	n	IS	t	r	u	n	a	e	n	ts	s.,		e	a	c	h			4					4	\$27.00
Theory								ŝ																						\$36.00
Harp .																														
Organ									-	1						ļ		ļ											ļ	\$54.00

All students specializing in music are required to take individual lessons throughout their courses, unless by examination they show excellence that will partly excuse them.

Instrumental Course

Major Instrument	.\$27.00	per	semester
Minor instrument	.\$27.00	per	semester
Total yearly fee	\$108.00		

Vocal Course

For each semester during first year: Singing....\$28.00 or \$37.50 per semester, according to teacher

For any semester after first year: Singing....\$40.50 or \$54.00 per semester, according to teacher Piano\$27.00 any semester in any year

After entering on examination, a student will know whether both piano and singing lessons are required.

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

INDUSTRIAL ARTS

PROFESSOR GEO. A. WILLOUGHBY ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MARY E. HATTON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR BELLE MORRISON ASSISTANT PROFESSOR DUANE CHAMBERLAIN INSTRUCTOR MAURICE RICHARDS INSTRUCTOR MAURICE RICHARDS INSTRUCTOR MATT LAPPINEN INSTRUCTOR J. H. TURNBULL

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Industrial Arts:

See Curriculum for Teachers of Industrial Arts. For specializing students only.

See Appendix for Arts Group Major.

Required Courses for a Minor in Industrial Arts:

MEN

WOMEN

101	Elementary Woodwork
	2 sem hr
112	Household Mechanics
	3 sem hr
127	General Mechanical
	Drawing 3 sem hr
113	Elementary Electricity
	2 sem hr
115	Elementary General
	Metalwork 2 sem hr
160	Introduction to Industrial
	Arts Education 2 sem hr
	Electives 2 sem hr

- 101 Elementary Woodwork
- 2 sem hr 112 Household Mechanics 3 sem hr
- 127 General Mechanical Drawing 3 sem hr
- 152 Arts and Crafts 3 sem hr
- 160 Introduction to Industrial
 - Arts Education 2 sem hr Electives 3 sem hr
- Note: Those wishing to qualify for Farm Shop teaching must take 218 Practical Mechanics.

All students wishing to qualify for industrial arts teaching must meet the requirements of the State Board of Education concerning school shop safety including safe practices and safety education, ability to operate power machinery, acquaintance with industrial practices, and the ability to make and interpret working drawings.

Courses

Laboratory hour required with each subject.

101 Elementary Woodwork and Shop Sketching. 2 sem hr It is the aim in this course to teach the elementary principles of woodwork correlated with shop sketching. The course includes the development and construction of projects which form a foundation for teaching.

Each semester WILLOUGHBY, CHAMBERLAIN

Sec 1 TuTh 11-12 Adm 4 Sec 2 TuTh 11-12 Adm 10

112 Household Mechanics. 3 sem hr

This course is general in nature covering numerous projects and jobs which involve processes and the application of information most valuable to one in his home or business. Elements of sheetmetal, bench metal, plumbing, electrical and general work are included. This illustrates teaching in a small general shop. Each semester WILLOUGHEY, CHAMBERLAIN

Sec 1 MWF 11-12 Adm 9 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Adm 9 Sec 2 MWF 2-3 Adm 9

113 Elementary Practical Electricity. 2 sem hr

This course is elementary in nature covering in detail the fundamentals underlying common applications of electricity, electrical repair and maintenance, the construction of simple electrical devices and simple wiring. The teaching of the work as a part of industrial arts is emphasized.

Second semester WILLOUGHBY, CHAMBERLAIN, RICHARDS Sec 1 MW 9-10 Adm 9 Sec 2 MW 3-4 Adm 9

115 Elementary General Metalucork. 2 sem hr

It is the aim in this course to acquaint students with the more simple branches of metalwork including sheet-metal, bench metal, simple forging and metal casting. In connection with the shop work information is given relative to the characteristics and uses of various metals and their manufacture.

First semester WILLOUGHBY, CHAMBERLAIN, RICHARDS Sec 1 MW 9-10 Adm 9 Sec 2 MW 3-4 Adm 9

127 General Mechanical Drawing. 3 sem hr.

This is a general course covering the elements of mechanical drawing including working drawings, lettering, isometric drawing and developments, with special emphasis on content which will serve as a basis in teaching and understanding plans and blueprints. The content of this course is modified to meet the requirements of pre-engineering students in Sec. 1, second semester. Each semester WILLOUGHBY, RICHARDS

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Adm 8 Sec 2 MWF 9-10 Adm 4 Sec 3 MWF 3-4 Adm 4 Sec 4 offered only on sufficient demand Adm 4 128 Architectural Drawing, 3 sem hr

An elementary course which deals with the drawing of plans and some details of construction. Emphasis is placed on the reading and making of good plans. Some work is given on elevations. Second semester WILLOUGHBY, LAPPINEN MWF 1-2 Adm 8

151 Toy Making, 2 sem hr

This course aims to meet the needs of teachers in kindergarten and primary departments, rural and ungraded schools, and those in charge of exceptional children.

Many of the problems considered would be helpful to leaders of campfire and social groups. Special stress is laid upon the designing, making and finishing of toys,

Second semester HATTON TuTh 11-12 Welch 7

152 Arts and Crafts, 3 sem hr

The chief aim in this course is to enrich general education through activities which are interesting and valuable. The course covers material in bookbinding, basketry, and other forms of work which involve processes and information valuable to those who expect to teach elementary work, special classes or summer camp activities.

Each semester MORRISON, HATTON

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1 MWF 11-12 Welch 4 Sec 1 MWF 1-2 Welch 4 Sec 2 MWF 1-2 Welch 4 Sec 3 Sat offered only on sufficient demand Welch 4

Sec 2 Sat offered only on sufficient demand Welch 4

160 Introduction to Industrial Arts. 2 sem hr

The chief aim in this course is to give students a clear conception of industrial arts work in its various phases and the part it plays in the general scheme of education so they may proceed with their work more intelligently. Discussions are held on the work now being given in various school systems and possible future developments. The duties of industrial arts teachers are considered and discussions are held on some of the practical problems confronting the industrial arts teacher.

First semester WILLOUGHBY TuTh 2-3 Adm 4

204 General Woodwork 3 sem hr (Formerly 104 Industrial Arts)

It is the aim in this course to acquaint students with the different branches of the woodworking industry and to give them some experience in each. It covers a broad range of activities including benchwork, elements of patternmaking, elements of cabinet-making, elements of carpentry, wood-turning and some mill work. First semester WILLOUGHBY MWF 10-11 Adm 10

205 Printing. 2 sem hr This is a general course covering the fundamentals of printing including a study of type, type measurements, various cases, leads and slugs, setting type, justification and spacing, pulling proofs, correcting material, care and use of equipment, composing machines, trade terms and allied trades. Each semester LAPPINEN

TuTh 2-3 Adm 3

206 Printing. 2 sem hr This is a more advanced course in printing for those especially interested in the work and desirous of teaching it. Prerequisite: 205 Printing. Each semester LAPPINEN TuTh 2-3 Adm 3

214 Practical Electricity. 3 sem hr (Formerly 114 Industrial Arts)

This is an advanced course intended for those especially interested in practical electricity and those who intend to teach electrical work as a part of general shop or as a special subject. It covers wiring, construction of devices, and considerable material on the construction and repair of motors and generators. Prerequisite: 113 Elementary Practical Electricity. Second semester WILLOUGHBY

MWF 10-11 Adm 10

216 General Metalwork. 3 sem hr (Formerly 116 Industrial Arts) This is a continuation of course 115 covering more advanced work and the use of more metalworking equipment. Prerequisite: 115 Elementary General Metalwork. First semester WILLOUGHBY MWF 2-3 Adm 10

218 Practical Mechanics. 2 sem hr (Formerly 117 Industrial Arts) The content of this course is somewhat similar to that in simple mechanics but the material is more advanced and of such a nature that it will form a basis for the teaching of general mechanics or farm mechanics. Prerequisite: 112 Household Mechanics. Each semester TURNBULL TuTh 11-12 Lincoln School

230 Machine Drawing. 3 sem hr (Formerly 130 Industrial Arts) This course deals with the drawing of machine parts and such information as sizes of bolts, kinds of threads and other standards. Sketching, tracing and blueprinting form an important part of the course. Prerequisite: 127 General Mechanical Drawing. First semester WILLOUGHBY, LAPPINEN MWF 1-2 Adm 8

253 Industrial Arts for Elementary Grades. 3 sem hr (Formerly 153 Industrial Arts)

This course is planned primarily for teachers of the elementary grades and for those specializing in Fine and Industrial Arts. It deals with the changes made by man in the forms of materials which provide food, utensils, textiles and clothing, Present day industrial processes as well as their historical development will be emphasized. Construction work will be considered as an art expression and will be adapted to the different grades. Prerequisite: 101 Elementary Art.

Each semester HATTON

Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Welch 7

Sec 2 MWF 10-11 Welch 7

Sec 3 Sat offered only on sufficient demand Welch 7

254 Industrial Arts for Elementary Grades. 2 sem hr (Formerly 154 Industrial Arts)

The materials, processes, conditions of production, and the purchase and use of the products of the industries providing shelter and furnishings, records and tools and machines will be studied. The course involves some advance in technique and many of the problems are especially adapted to the intermediate grades. Prerequisite: 101 Elementary Art. Each semester MORRISON

First	Semes	ter
-------	-------	-----

Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 1-2 Welch 4 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Welch 4 Sec 3 Sat offered only on suffi- Sec 3 Sat offered only on sufficient demand Welch 4

Sec 1 TuTh 2-3 Welch 4 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Welch 4

cient demand Welch 4

301 Art Metal Work and Plastics. 2 sem hr (Formerly 301 Art Metal Work)

Copper, brass, silver and plastics will be used in this course. The setting of stones, saw-piercing, repousse, enameling, casting, soldering, and finishing will be taught. Useful articles of copper and brass, as well as rings, brooches, chains, pendants will be made by the student.

Offered only on sufficient demand HATTON

302 Cement Handicrafts and Pottery. 2 sem hr (Formerly 302 Cement Handicraft)

The fundamentals of cement and pottery work are covered in this course. Pottery work includes composition, preparation and construction by hand, pressing and coil, glazing and firing. Tiles and garden utensils in cement are also included. Offered only on sufficient demand HATTON

304 Weaving and Needlecraft. 2 sem hr

Structure, mechanics and threading of various types of looms: practical work in weaving textiles, pattern, tapestry and pick-up

weaves are included in this course. Also simple and decorative forms of needlecraft with emphasis on good design and practical application.

Offered only on sufficient demand MORRISON

305 Advanced General Woodshop. 2 sem hr (Formerly 105 Industrial Arts) This is a continuation of 204. Prerequisite: 204 General Woodwork. Second semester WILLOUGHBY MW 10-11 Adm 10

331 Advanced Drafting. 2 sem hr (Formerly 131 Industrial Arts) This is an advanced general course for those especially interested in drafting and those desiring to prepare to teach mechanical drawing as a special subject.

Offered only on sufficient demand WILLOUGHBY

361 Content, Organization and Supervision. 2 sem hr (See Education.)

362 The General Shop. 2 sem hr

(Formerly 162 Industrial Arts)

This is a class-room course covering the underlying principles, the development and the problems of the organization known as "general shop." It is a practical course for those desiring to teach or supervise general shop work.

Offered only on sufficient demand WILLOUGHBY

453 Advanced Arts and Crafts. 3 sem hr

This is a continuation of course 152, offering experience in the application of the more advanced techniques of leather, wood carving, puppetry and other crafts not covered in previous courses. This course includes also an analysis of crafts and their adaptation as a treatment for physical and mental disabilities as used in occupational therapy.

Offered only on sufficient demand MORRISON

.

HOME ECONOMICS

PROFESSOR ESTELLE BAUCH Associate Professor Clara Kelly Associate Professor Eula M. Underbrink

Michigan State Normal College prepares teachers to qualify under the provisions of the Smith-Hughes and George-Deen Acts. Courses may also be elected by students majoring in other curricula.

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in Home Economics:

See Curriculum for Teachers of Home Economics. For specializing students only.

Required Courses for a Minor in Home Economics:

111	Foods	2 sem hr
112	Clothing	2 sem hr
211	Advanced Foods	3 sem hr
212	Advanced Clothing	3 sem hr
202	Home Nursing & Child Care	3 sem hr
301	Economic Problems of the Consumer	2 sem hr

For students majoring in Home Economics the following courses may satisfy requirements for minors:

Group	II	212	Microbiology	3	sem	hr
		131	Inorganic Chemistry	3	sem	hr
		132	Inorganic Chemistry	3	sem	hr
		220	Elementary Organic Chemistry	2	sem	hr
		251	Physiological Chemistry	2	sem	hr
		317	Household Physics	3	sem	hr
Group	III		Elements of Economics	100 C	sem	hr
	1	110	National Government in the United Sta			
	lor	113	State and Local Government	2	sem	hr
		204	Marriage and the Family Relationship	3	sem	hr -
			Electives in History	4	sem	hr
			Electives in Social Science	3	sem	hr

Note: The following courses are open to any student in the College: Home Economics 111, 112, 202, 204, 253, 301.

HOME ECONOMICS

Courses

111 *Foods. 2 sem hr (Formerly 101 Home Economics) An introductory course in foods in which a study is made of the composition, selection, and preparation of foods usually included

in simple family meals. Each semester BAUCH

First Semester

Second Semester

Sec 1 TuTh 8-10 Welch 103 Sec 2 TuTh 1-3 Welch 103 Sec 1 TuTh 8-10 Welch 103 Sec 2 TuTh 2-4 Welch 103

112 Clothing. 2 sem hr (Formerly 151 Clothing) An introductory course in clothing which deals with the fundamental problems involved in garment construction and with the selection, care, and repair of clothing. Each semester KELLY TuTh S-10 Welch 202

201 Nutrition. 3 sem hr

This course deals with the nutritive value of foods in relation to the nutritional needs of individuals and groups. Laboratory work includes the arrangement of displays of 100-calorie portions and their costs; a comparison of the mineral and vitamin content of various foods; the preparation and arrangement of ideal and special dietaries. Prerequisites or parallels: 101 Principles of Physiology, 211 Advanced Foods, 251 Physiological Chemistry. Second semester UNDERDRINK MWF 1-3 Welch 203

202 Home Nursing and Child Care. 3 sem hr

This course is divided into two units. In one unit a study is made of home care of the sick and convalescent; first aid; control of disease in home and community. In the second unit a study is made of the care, development and training of the infant and the preschool child. Each semester BAUCH

MWF 9-10 Welch 103

204 Food and Nutrition. 2 sem hr This is a course in practical nutrition for the college student. It is a study of food requirements, selection and habits, as applied to adults and children. The course is designed for men and women students not majoring in home economics. First semester UNDERBRINK TuTh 1-2 Welch 203

^{*}The student is required to wear a white uniform when working in the hundry and in the food laboratories. This should be purchased under the supervision of the department. Approximate cost \$2.00.

211 Advanced Foods. 3 sem hr (Formerly 102 Home Economics) This course deals with the more advanced problems connected with the family's food. Laboratory course. Prerequisite: 111 Foods. Each semester UNDERBRINK MWF 8-10 Welch 203

212 Advanced Clothing. 3 sem hr

(Formerly 152 Home Economics)

A course designed for students who desire more advanced work in the selection and construction of clothing. Emphasis is given to the alteration and adaptations of patterns and to the fitting of garments. A unit on children's clothing is included. Prerequisite: 112 Clothing.

Each semester KELLY

MWF 10-12 Welch 202

253 General Home Economics. 2 sem hr

This is an intensive course planned to meet the needs of students specializing in early or later elementary or in special education curriculum and for others interested in home making activities for their personal needs. It is composed of three units: foods, house furnishings and management, and clothing. Practical work for each unit is offered through demonstration by the instructor with student participation.

Second semester KELLY TuTh 11-12 Welch 202

301 Economic Problems of the Consumer. 2 sem hr

(Formerly Marketing)

In this course a study is made of the economic problems of the family in present-day society. Problems studied include family incomes, their source, distribution, and adequacy for desirable standards of living; the use of the income through budgeting and improved standards of buying in order to secure greater satisfactions for the consumer. 220 Elements of Economics is desirable as a prerequisite.

First semester BAUCH TuTh 11-12 Welch 103

302 Lunchroom Management—Demonstration Cookery. 2 sem hr The aim of this course is to summarize and apply the food principles of all preceding food classes. The course consists of two units: one on school lunches and quantity cookery, the other on demonstrations for school and community groups. Prerequisite: 311 Food Buying and Meal Service, 371 Methods of Teaching Home Economics.

Second semester BAUCH WF 10-12 Welch 103 311 Food Buying and Meal Service. 2 sem hr (Formerly 103 Home Economics)

This course includes the planning, preparation and serving of meals adapted to family needs and for special occasions, A study is made of table appointments and types of service. Problems in relation to the purchasing of food supplies are given special attention, Prerequisite: 201 Nutrition.

First semester UNDERBRINK WF 10-12 Welch 203

351 Textiles. 3 sem hr

This course deals with the study and analysis of fabrics used for clothing and household purposes and with factors that influence their wearing qualities and cost. Practical application of this knowledge is made to the buying problems of the consumer. Prerequisites: 132 Inorganic Chemistry, 212 Advanced Clothing.

First semester KELLY MWF 1-3 Welch 202

352 Clothing Design. 3 sem hr (Formerly 252 Home Economics)

In this course practical application is made of the principles of design to the planning, selection and construction of clothing for different types of individuals and occasions. Fattern designing, handling of difficult materials and finishing techniques are stressed. A brief study of historic costume is made from the standpoint of its effect on present day styles. Prerequisites: 351 Textiles, 353 Clothing Economics and Tailoring, 371 Methods of Teaching Home Economics.

Second semester KELLY MWF 1-3 Welch 202

353 Clothing Economics and Tailoring, 2 sem hr

This course is designed to give the student some knowledge of the economic factors related to clothing. Budgeting the clothing allowance and the buying of clothing are studied. Dressmaking in wool with emphasis on tailored finishes is included. Also the renovation and remodeling of clothes. Prerequisite: 212 Advanced Clothing, Parallel: 351 Textiles.

First semester KELLY TuTh 1-3 Welch 202

371 Methods of Teaching Home Economics. 2 sem hr (See Education.)

402 Home Management House. 5 sem hr

(Formerly 401 Home Management House, and 113 Household Problems)

This course combines the study and application of the composite duties of home-making. These include such problems as the management of time and money; the selection, use, and care of household supplies and equipment; laundry; desirable attitudes and standards for successful family life. Residence in the Ellen Richards House is required during this course. Prerequisite or parallel: 474 Vocational Education in Home Economics.

Each semester UNDERBRINK

MTuWThF 3-4 Ellen Richards House

474 Vocational Education in Home Economics. 3 sem hr (See Education.)

Note: In addition to the above prescribed courses, students wishing to qualify for vocational certificates should have the following experiences:

- Personal projects in connection with their college courses in home economics by which to improve their skill, managerial, or personal qualifications.
- Experience in supervising one or more home projects together with home visits during the period of student teaching.
- Contact with the summer project program in the State by visits made with the supervising teacher of the community.

COMMERCE

COMMERCE

PROFESSOR JOHN SPRINGMAN ASSISTANT PROFESSOR MYRA O. HERRICK INSTRUCTOR NORA B. MILFORD

Required Courses for a Major in Commercial Subjects:

See Curriculum for teachers of Commercial Subjects. For Specializing students only.

Courses

101 Beginning Typewriting. 2 sem hr Instruction is given in the learning and mastery of the typewriting keyboard. Skill and accuracy are constantly emphasized. The most recent methods based upon the psychology of learning, are employed in teaching this course. For beginners only. No credit is given if typewriting has been previously taken.

Each semester MILFORD

MWThF 10-11 Pierce 304

102 Elementary Accounting. 3 sem hr

This course emphasizes the elementary principles of accounting. The work is developed from the standpoint of the individual proprietorship. Particular attention is given to the development of debit and credit, the importance and use of business papers. income and expense accounts, the trial balance, financial statements, and the closing of the ledger. Each semester SPRINGMAN

First Semester MWF 9-10 Pierce 305 Second Semester MWF 3-4 Pierce 305

103 Beginning Shorthand. 3 sem hr

The functional method is used in the teaching of shorthand. The pupil learns the art of shorthand by reading and writing sentences and letters rather than individual words and phrases. For beginners only. No credit is given if shorthand has been previously taken.

Each semester MILFORD MWF 11-12 Pierce 305

201 Advanced Accounting. 3 sem hr A more advanced study of accounting methods through the part-

A more advanced study of accounting methods through the partnership form of business. Special column journals, controlling accounts, subsidiary ledgers and their purpose are emphasized. Attention is given to periodic adjustment of accounts, a more intensive study of income statements, balance sheets and their analysis and closing the ledger. Prerequisite: 102 Elementary Accounting or equivalent, Second semester SPRINGMAN MWF 10-11 Pierce 305

202 Advanced Accounting. 3 sem hr

This is an advanced course. It deals with the accounting procedure of the corporation. Business methods and procedure, comparative statements are studied and analyzed. Rural accounting is given attention including depreciation and operating costs. Prerequisite: 201 Advanced Accounting. First semester SPRINGMAN

MWF 3-4 Pierce 305

203 Stenography. 3 sem hr

The aim in this course is to train students to take dictation at a speed required in business, and to transcribe their notes correctly at a reasonable speed. The development of typing skill is an important part of this course. Prerequisites: 101 Beginning Typewriting and 103 Beginning Shorthand or equivalents. Second semester MILFORD

MWF 8-10 Pierce 305 and 304

204 Secretarial Procedures. 3 sem hr

This course is designed to train students to assume the responsibilities of the more important office positions. This calls for skill in taking dictation and careful arrangement of the material on the written page promptly and accurately. The rendering of social service, and the development of qualities of leadership are an inportant part of this work. Prerequisite: 203 Stenography,

First semester MILFORD

MWF 8-10 Pierce 305 and 304

205 Business English. 2 sem hr

This course is designed to develop an understanding of English as used in business. Emphasis is placed on speaking and writing the English of business effectively; correct and forceful sentence structure; correct and pleasing oral expression; attractive set-up and arrangement of the various types of business letters. Prerequisites: 121, 122 Rhetoric.

Each semester MILFORD TuTh 8-9 Pierce 305

301 Business Organization and Management, 3 sem hr

This course deals with the fundamentals of business organization. Emphasis is placed on business management, finance and accounting, credit, investment funds, personnel, the advantages and disadvantages of the different types of business organization. The place of the purchasing, sales, and advertising departments are discussed. The selection of a business with a view of ownership COMMERCE

is given attention. The place of young people in the great social agency called business is emphasized. Second semester SPRINGMAN **MWF 9-10 Pierce 305**

302 Office Practice. 2 sem hr

The technique of office procedure as applied to present day methods in an up-to-date office is emphasized. Attention is given to a study of the appliances most commonly used in offices. Methods of instruction will be given to enable teachers to train pupils to enter upon the duties of their initial position confidently and advantageously.

Each semester MILFORD MWThF 1-2 Pierce 305

303 Business Law. 3 sem hr

This course is organized to give a knowledge and understanding of basic legal principles as applied to ordinary business transactions. It will enable people to guard against the ordinary legal errors. The law of contracts, negotiable paper, sales of personal property, agency, bailments, insurance, partnerships, corporations is stressed. It is essential that teachers of commercial subjects have an understanding of these principles. First semester SPRINGMAN MWF 2-3 Pierce 305

304 Business Law. 3 sem hr This course is a continuation of 303 Business Law. Prerequisite: 303 Business Law. Second semester SPRINGMAN MWF 2-3 Pierce 305

305 Methods of Teaching Commercial Subjects. 4 sem hr (See Education.)

Handwriting

This course is required on all curricula. The aim is to help students improve their own handwriting on paper and blackboard, and to enable them to teach the subject. Practice is given in scoring writing according to a standard handwriting scale. Students must take this course sometime before their third year in college. To satisfy the requirements of the course, the student must attain a grade of not less than "C".

Each semester HERRICK

Sec 1 MW	8-9 Pierce	301	Sec 6 TuTh	1-2	Pierce 301
Sec 2 TuTh	9-10 Pierce	2 301	Sec 7 MW	1-2	Pierce 301
Sec 3 WF	10-11 Pierce	301	Sec 8 MW	2-3	Pierce 301
Sec 4 TuTh	11-12 Pierce	2 301	Sec 9 TuTh	2-3	Pierce 301
Sec 5 WF	11-12 Pierce	301			

SCHOOL LIBRARY SERVICE

ELSIE V. ANDREWS FREDERICK B. CLEVERINGA MARTHA ROSENTRETEE WANDA C. BATES BARBARA G. OWENS

The curriculum in School Library Service is offered to meet the increasing demand for full-time librarians in the elementary and secondary schools and for teacher-librarians, who give part time to teaching and part time to supervision of the school library. Courses may also be elected by students majoring in other curricula.

Only a limited number of students may elect courses in School Library Service. In every case the election must be approved by the adviser, Miss Andrews.

Major and Minor

Required Courses for a Major in School Library Service:

See Curriculum for School Library Service. For specializing students only.

Required Courses for a Minor in School Library Service:

301	Classification and Cataloging	3 sem hr
303	Reference Books and Their Use	2 sem hr
307	Book Selection and Purchase	2 sem hr
	Electives in School Library Service	8 sem hr

Courses

101 Use of Books and Libraries. 2 sem hr

A prerequisite for all students who wish to qualify as student assistants in the College Library, but it is also open to any other students wishing practical instruction in using library materials. It is not to be taken by students majoring or minoring in School Library Service. First semester ANDREWS

TuTh 2-3 Lib 203

301 Classification and Cataloging. 3 sem hr

A study of the principles and methods of classification and cataloging planned to meet the needs of the average school library. The Dewey Decimal system of classification will be taught and also the procedures involved in constructing a dictionary catalog. First semester ROSENTRETER MWF 1-2 Lib 203

302 Classification and Cataloging. 2 sem hr A continuation of the introductory course, with laboratory work to illustrate principles studied. Emphasis will be given to the special problems involved in cataloging books for children. Prerequisite: 301 Classification and Cataloging. Second semester ROSENTRETER TuTh 1-2 Lib 203

303 Reference Books and Their Use. 2 sem hr This course is a general survey of the content and use of reference books and materials suitable for secondary schools. Readings, reports and problems will be required. First semester CLEVERINGA TuTh 11-12 Lib 203

304 Reference Books and Their Use. 2 sem hr This is a continuation course with special emphasis upon indexes, bibliography, and the making and maintaining of a vertical file. Practical problems in all of these subjects will be given. Second semester CLEVERINGA TuTh 11-12 Lib 203

305 Periodicals and Their Indexes. 2 sem hr This course is a survey of periodical literature suitable for school library use, and consists of a study of the various types of periodicals published in the United States; the use of periodical indexes as teaching aids, and the processes involved in the care, use and binding of periodicals and public documents. First semester CLEVERINGA

TuTh 9-10 Lib 203

306 Book Crafts. 3 sem hr A study of the origin of the book, printing, physical makeup of the book, bindings of various kinds, the repair of books and preparation of books and periodicals for binding. Second semester OLEVERINGA MWF 11-12 Lib 203

307 Book Selection and Purchase. 2 sem hr A study of standards for book selection for school libraries and teachers, practical work in book acquisition, and book production and publishers. First semester ANDREWS TuTh 3-4 Lib 203

308 Book Selection and Purchase. 2 sem hr Book and periodical aids to book selection; reading lists and a study of tendencies and content of modern books, and the building of a selective list of standard books for school library purchase. Second semester ANDREWS TuTh 2-3 Lib 203 401 Organization and Administration of the Elementary School Library, 2 sem hr

The following topics will be studied: the relation of the library to the school program, stimulation of interest in recreational reading, the selection, acquisition and use of suitable materials for the elementary library.

First semester bates MTh 10-11 Lib 203

402 Organization and Administration of the High School Library. 2 sem hr

A survey of the function of the High School Library in the school program. Topics to be stressed include: the library in the school's supplementary and recreational reading program, the selection and organization of materials, and the teaching of the use of books and libraries.

Second semester owens MTh 10-11 Lib 203

403 Library Materials as Teaching Aids. 3 sem hr

Undertakes to give prospective teachers and school librarians valuable sources for securing inexpensive teaching and library materials, and also free materials available through State and Federal Departments, commercial agencies, publishing houses, etc. Second semester ANDREWS MWF 2-3 Lib 203

437 Curriculum Background for the Elementary School Library. 2 sem hr

Comparable to a course in an elementary curriculum for those who contemplate actual teaching in the elementary school, since one of the most important duties of the librarian is to keep in close relationship with schoolroom practice. The availability of source material for student and teacher will be emphasized. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology; 303 Principles of Teaching; and teaching experience. Second semester STEARNS

TuTh 1-2 Pierce 6

438 Curriculum Background for the High School Library. 2 sem hr

Presents the library point of view to future high school librarians in order that the library may function properly in its relation to high school students and teachers. The source material for both regular high school classroom procedure and extracurricular activities is emphasized. Prerequisites: 302 Educational Psychology. 303 Principles of Teaching.

Second semester STEARNS TuTh 1-2 Pierce 6

HEALTH EDUCATION

PROFESSOR GLENADINE SNOW, M. D.-Director of Student Health Service.

> PROFESSOR PAUL B. SAMSON ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR LURENE PROUSE ASSISTANT PROFESSOR IRENE O. CLARK NURSES: DOROTHY E. SMITH, WILMA FRENS

Courses

102 Personal Health, 2 sem hr

In this course each student evaluates his own health examination record which is used as a basis for the formation of discriminating health judgments. It includes scientific information concerning the principles that determine the improvement and maintenance of health, and the prevention of disease. Each semester CLARK, PROUSE, SAMSON

First Semester Sec 1 TuTh 2-3 Adm 204(W) Sec 1 TuTh 2-3 Adm 204(W) Sec 2 MW 2-3 Gym 12(M) Sec 3 TuTh 2-3 Gym 12(M)

Second Semester

Sec 2 TuTh 2-3 Welch 209(M)

Note-Courses 201 and 252 overlap so much that a student is not permitted to take more than one of them.

201 Health Education in the Elementary Grades. 2 sem hr This course is given for students preparing to teach primary and intermediate grades. Health inspection of school children, survey of environmental conditions, and other methods of determining the health needs of the child are taught. A study is made of the application of educational principles in health instruction. Practice is given in evaluating the newer courses in Health Education. Each semester CLARK, PROUSE

First Semester Sec 1 TuTh 11-12 Adm 204 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Adm 204

Second Semester TuTh 11-12 Adm 204

252 Health Education for Rural Schools. 2 sem hr This course presupposes some knowledge of personal hygiene. It includes the study of the evaluation and healthful control of the school environment, as well as the health status of individual children, and the principles and methods of health instruction as applied in a rural school. Each semester CLARK

First Semester TuTh 9-10 Adm 204 Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 9-10 Adm 204 Sec 2 TuTh 3-4 Adm 204

332 Health Examinations. 2 sem hr

This course is designed for those who are interested in the theory and practice of physical examination and diagnosis. The relation of physical activity to the health of the individual is considered. Study of the principles of normal diagnosis is combined with practice of clinical nature, the student assisting in the examination of children and adults, thus gaining under supervision the ability to carry on such activities in the schools. Each semester snow

First Semester MW 9-10 Adm 204

Second Semester TuTh 9-10 Welch 207

351 Health Work in the Schools. 3 sem hr

This course is designed for those who may supervise the health education program in a public school system, or those who will cooperate in promoting such a program. Methods of discovering health needs in different communities and possible ways of organizing a program to meet such needs are studied. Recommendations of experts in the health field are considered, together with the principles upon which such opinions are based. Each semester CLARK

First Semester MWF 2-3 Adm 204 Second Semester MWF 9-10 Adm 204

360 Health Education Applied. 3 sem hr

This course is planned for school nurses and for teachers who have had a year or more of experience. The relation of the teacher and the nurse, with their respective contributions to the health program, is discussed. The value of periodic health examinations is considered and participation in this examination by nurses and teachers is learned by discussion and by actual experience in helping to examine children. The relation of physical and mental health to behavior problems is studied. This course is a preparation for efficient community and school health leadership.

Summer session snow

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

PROFESSOR JOSEPH H. MCCULLOCH PROFESSOR PAUL B. SAMSON PROFESSOR LLOYD W. OLDS PROFESSOR ELTON J. RYNEARSON ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR RUTH BOUGHNER ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR DONNABEL VOSSLER ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR LURENE PROUSE ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR IRENE O. CLARK ASSISTANT PROFESSOR AUGUSTA HABRIS INSTRUCTOR CHLOE M. TODD INSTRUCTOR ARTHUR D. WALKER INSTRUCTOR LAWRENCE DUNNING INSTRUCTOR RAYMOND STITES INSTRUCTOR GEORGE MARSHALL INSTRUTOR ALICE BEAL INSTRUCTOR JEANETTE EVANS INSTRUCTOR GENEVIEVE L. FOX

Major

Required Courses for a Major in Physical Education:

See Curriculum for Teachers of Physical Education. For specializing students only.

Students majoring in Physical Education who have not had high school chemistry should take 121 and 122 General Chemistry. Students who have not had high school physics should take 121 Mechanics, Sound and Heat and 122 Light and Electricity (see curriculum requirements).

Courses

203 Kinesiology (Mechanics of Exercise). 2 sem hr

A textbook course in the mechanism of bodily movements. The separate movements of the upper limb, lower limb and trunk are studied first, and then those of the body as a whole, as it is used in gymnastics, games and sports, and the various occupations of life.

Second semester BOUGHNER, RYNEARSON TuTh 8-9 Gym 12 (women) TuTh 1-2 Gym 12 (men)

221 Theory and Practice of Football and Basketball. (men) 2 sem hr

A course consisting of lectures, demonstrations, use of motion pictures, and practice in teaching the fundamentals, and various styles of offensive and defensive play. The course is designed for those expecting to coach these sports.

First semester RYNEARSON, STITES

MWF 10-11 Gym 12

222 Theory and Practice of Track and Baseball. (men) 2 sem hr This course consists of lectures, use of motion pictures, demonstrations, and field work, in teaching the skills involved in these sports. The course is for those expecting to coach these activities.

Second semester olds, RYNEARSON MWF 10-11 Gym 12

251 Methods and Materials in Physical Education. 3 sem hr (See Education).

301 Principles of Physical Education. 2 sem hr

A course in the fundamental principles of physical education. It includes a discussion of the place of physical education as a part of the educational program and of the relationship of administrators to the problems of interscholastic competition. A study is made of the adaption of physical activities to the different age levels in the elementary, junior and senior high schools. This course is open to those preparing for positions as administrators and high school teachers.

Second semester odd years SAMSON TuTh 11-12 Gym 12

311 Theory and Philosophy of Play. 2 sem hr

A course in the philosophy and psychology of play, its history in the race, its development in recent times, and its influence in the education and development of the individual. Study is made of the practical conduct of play as illustrated in the playground, the community center, boys' and girls' clubs, summer camps, and schools.

Each semester MCCULLOCH

First Semester TuTh 11-12 Gym 12 Second Semester TuTh 9-10 Gym 12

320 First Aid, Athletic Training and Physiotherapy. 2 sem hr A course in which the principles of first aid, athletic training and physiotherapy are studied. In addition to lectures, special attention is given to demonstration and practice of massaging, bandaging, taping and therapeutic measures as applied in athletic activities and injuries. Prerequisite: 221 Anatomy and Physiology. Each semester PROUSE, MARSHALL First Semester TuTh 9-10 Gym 13 (men) Second Semester TuTh 2-3 Briggs FH (men) TuTh 10-11 Gym 13 (women)

323 Individual Gumnastics. 2 sem hr

A textbook course supplemented by lectures and demonstrations on the mechanics of physical deformities and their causes. Abnormalities of the spine and feet, and other postural and functional conditions are discussed. Their treatment by active and passive movements is applied in W122 and M122 Restricted Activities.

First semester PROUSE, SAMSON TuTh 8-9 Gym 13 (men) TuTh 1-2 Gym 13 (women)

331 *Physiology of Exercise.* 3 sem hr A textbook course, supplemented by lectures and laboratory work on the physiology of muscle, nerve, circulation and respiration, with special relation to the effects of bodily exercise. Each semester BOUGHNER

Lecture: MWF 1-2 Welch 1

Laboratory: Th 1-2 Welch 1

342 Boy Scout Leadership. 2 sem hr

The course covers the history, aims and principles of the Boy Scout movement. Students are given opportunity for practical experience in the various phases of scouting and woodcraft. The course follows the requirements of the Department of Education, National Headquarters Boy Scout's of America. Open to all men students,

Second semester even years samson TuTh 11-12 Gym 13

412 Organization of Physical Education. 2 sem hr

This course plans courses of physical training to meet the conditions of city and rural schools. Principles of supervision and construction of buildings and playfields is discussed, and inspection of modern equipment and buildings is made. Each semester MCULLOCH

First Semester TuTh 9-10 Gym 12 Second Semester TuTh 8-9 Gym 13

413 Camping. 2 sem hr

A study is made of the various kinds of organized camps. The course includes the methods of planning and managing camps, how to choose a camp site, kinds of camp shelters, both permanent and temporary, sanitation, the camp commissary, program, safety provisions, leadership and woodcraft. This course is planned to meet the demand for trained leaders for private and semi-public camps.

Second semester odd years samson TuTh 9-10 Welch 106 414 History and Literature of Physical Education. 2 sem hr A course of lectures and reference work covering the history of physical education and making a systematic survey of the literature of the subject. Each student is expected to make a rather complete study of a chosen topic.

Each semester SAMSON TuTh 1-2 Gym 13

415 Pageantry, (Women) 2 sem hr

This course is a study of the problems involved in organizing and presenting pageants and similar programs. It deals with the selection or creation of suitable themes, and the principles governing the activities, setting, costuming, musical accompaniment, and other factors involved in such programs. The class receives practical experience by assisting in the production of the College Spring Festival.

Second semester vossler TuTh 9-10 Gym 13

416 Tests and Measurements in Physical Education. 2 sem hr The purpose of the course is to prepare students for the discriminating selection, administration, interpretation, and use of standardized tests and measurements in physical education. Prerequisite: 302 Educational Psychology.

Each semester E. MARSHALL TuTh 2-3 Pierce 38A

ACTIVITY COURSES FOR WOMEN MAJORING IN PHYSICAL EDUCATION

SOPHOMORE-

Ws104 Folk Dancing. 2 sem hr activity credit Teaching methods and practice of folk dancing, Second semester PROUSE TuTh 3-4 Gym 5

Ws106 Elementary Swimming. 2 sem hr activity credit Theory and practice of beginners' swimming. American Red Cross book used as text. First semester Fox TuTh 3-4 Gym Pool

Ws201 Sports and Rhythms. 3 sem hr activity credit Theory and practice of soccer, volleyball, and primary rhythms. First semester HARRIS MWF 3-4 Gym 2

Ws205 Sports and Gymnastics. 3 sem hr activity credit Theory and practice of track and tennis and teaching methods of stunts and apparatus. Second semester PROUSE MWF 3-4 Gym 5 Ws209 Elementary Rhythms. 2 sem hr activity credit Teaching methods and practice of elementary tap dancing. First semester HARRIS TuTh 1-2 Gym 2

Ws210 School Games. 3 sem hr activity credit Practice in teaching school games and activities related to girls' organizations. Second semester BOUGHNER TuTh 4-5:30 Welch Gym

JUNIOR-

Ws102 Elementary Dance. 2 sem hr activity credit Teaching methods and practice of the modern dance. First semester vossLER MTh 10-11 Gym 5

Ws211 Advanced Swimming. 3 sem hr activity credit Theory and practice of coaching, officiating meets, and Red Cross Life Saving Examinations, First semester Fox, BOUGHNER MWF 11-12 Gym Pool

Ws305 Sports. 2 sem hr activity credit Theory and practice of basketball, baseball, and minor sports. An opportunity is given for rating of national basketball referees. Second semester FOX TuTh 11-12 Gym 10

Ws314 Teaching in Games and Sports. 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossler

Ws315 Dance Materials. 2 sem hr activity credit Teaching methods and interpretation of advanced dance material. Second semester HARMIS TuTh 11-12 Gym 2

Ws316 Teaching in Dancing, 2 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossler

SENIOR-

Ws207 Sports and Formal Gymnastics. 3 sem hr activity credit Theory and practice of hockey and badminton and teaching methods and practice of formal gymnastics. First semester PROUSE MWF 11-12 Gym 2

Ws317 Community Recreation. 3 sem hr activity credit A coeducational course. This course includes the practice of the methods and the use of materials in conducting activities suitable for community groups and in the teaching of social dancing. Second semester HARRIS MWF 11-12 Gym 2 Ws420 *Teaching in Dancing.* 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossler

Ws421 Advanced Rhythms. 3 sem hr activity credit Teaching methods and practice of advanced tap dancing. First semester HARRIS MWF 8-9 Gym 2

Ws422 Teaching in Games and Sports. 2 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossles

Ws423 Advanced Dance. 3 sem hr activity credit Teaching methods and practice of advanced modern dance. Second semester vossler MW 4-5:30 Gym 2

ACTIVITY COURSES FOR MEN MAJORING IN PHYSICAL EDUCATION

SOPHOMORE-

Ms204 Boxing and Wrestling. 2 sem hr activity credit First semester STITES TuTh 11-12 Gym 10

Ms205 Advanced Apparatus. 3 sem hr activity credit First semester MARSHALL MWF 9-10 Gym 5

Ms206 Group Games. 2 sem hr activity credit First semester STITES TuTh 9-10 Gym 10

Ms207 Gymnastics. 2 sem hr activity credit Second semester MARSHALL TuTh 9-10 Gym 5

JUNIOR-

Ms103 Elementary Rhythm, Teaching and Practice. 2 sem hr activity credit Second semester HARRIS TuTh 1-2 Gym 10

Ms307 Swimming and Life Saving. 3 sem hr activity credit First semester SAMSON MWF 10-11 Gym Pool

Ms308 *Teaching and Coaching.* 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossler

Ms310 *Teaching and Coaching.* 2 sem hr activity credit Each semester VOSSLER

SENIOR-

Ms317 Community Recreation. 3 sem hr activity credit See Ws317 Second semester HARRIS MWF 11-12 Gym 2

Ms414 Teaching and Coaching. 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossler

Ms416 Teaching and Coaching. 2 sem hr activity credit Each semester vossler

ACTIVITY COURSES FOR GENERAL STUDENTS-WOMEN

On the four-year curriculum, 15 semester hours of physical activity are required of all women students.

W101 and W102 are required of all women except those on the State Limited Certificate Curriculum. These should be taken in the freshman year.

A student judged physically unable to carry activity courses may, in lieu thereof, present without credit 5 semester hours of physiology and hygiene of a grade not less than C. Such arrangement must be approved in advance by the Committee on Graduation.

Students are required to wear a regulation gymnasium costume. This must be purchased in Ypsilanti for the sake of uniformity.

Students using the gymnasium will pay a deposit of fifty cents for a towel. Deposit should be paid at the time the student pays his tuition.

W101 Freshman Physical Training 3 sem hr activity credit Required of all freshmen.

First semester vossler, prouse, harris, evans

Sec	1	MWF	9-10	Gym	2	Sec	4	MWF	1-2	Gym	5
Sec	2	MWF	10-11	Gym	2	Sec	5	MWF	2-3	Gym	2
Sec	3	MWF	11-12	Gym	5	Sec	6	MW	4-5:30	Gym	5

W102 Freshman Physical Training. 3 sem hr activity credit Required of all freshmen,

Second semester	FOX, HARR	IS, PROUSE, EVANS,	BOUGHNER
Sec 1 MWF 8-9	Gym 5	Sec 4 MWF	2-3 Gym 10
Sec 2 MWF 9-10	Gym 10	Sec 5 MWF	4-5 Gym 5
Sec 3 MWF 1-2	Gym 2		

W104 Rural School Games. 2 sem hr activity credit Required on the State Limited Curriculum, Each semester EVANS

First Semester TuTh 1-2 Gym 10 Second Semester TuTh 9-10 Gym 10 W107 Rhuthmic Plays and Games. 3 sem hr activity credit Required on the Early and the Later Elementary Curriculum. Each semester HARRIS

First Semester

MWF 9-10 Gym 10

Second Semester MWF 9-10 Gym 2

W109 Teachers' Course, 2 sem hr activity credit A course designated to give some practice in teaching for elementary grades. Required of Early Elementary and Later Ele-mentary students. Prerequisite: W107 Rhythmic Plays and Games. Each semester CLARK

First Semester

TuTh 8-9 Gym 5

Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 8-9 Gym 5 Sec 2 TuTh 1-2 Gym 5

W110 Elementary Rhythm. 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester HARRIS MWF 2-3 Gym 5

W111 Elementary Folk Dancing. 2 sem hr activity credit Each semester VOSSLER, PROUSE First Semester Second Semester

TuTh 2-3 Gym 5

TuTh 3-4 Gym 5

W112 Elementary Swimming. 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester BOUGHNER, FOX

First Semester Sec 1 MWF 2-3 Gym Pool Sec 2 MWF 3-4 Gym Pool

Second Semester MWF 11-12 Gym Pool

W114 Basketball, Volleyball and Badminton. 2 sem hr activity credit

First semester VOSSLER, FOX, EVANS

 Sec 1 TuTh 8-9
 Gym 10
 Sec 3 TuTh 1-2
 Gym 5

 Sec 2 TuTh 9-10
 Gym 2
 Sec 4
 TuTh 2-3
 Gym 10

W115 Elementary Tennis. 2 sem hr activity credit Second semester VOSSLER, EVANS

 Sec 1 MTh 10-11 Gym 10
 Sec 3 TuTh 1-2 Gym 2

 Sec 2 TuTh 11-12 Gym 5
 Sec 4 TuTh 2-3 Gym 2

W119 Elementary Dance. 2 or 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester VOSSLER Second Semester First Semester TuTh 8-9 Gym 5 MWF 2-3 Gym 5

W120 Advanced Dance. 2 sem hr activity credit Prerequisite: W119 Elementary Dance or its equivalent. Second semester VOSSLER TuTh 2-3 Gym 5

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

W122 Restricted Activities. 2 sem hr activity credit Not elective. Students found by the physical examination to be in need of this course are assigned to it by the college physician.

Each semester PROUSE, CLARK

First Semester TuTh 2-3 Gym 6 Second Semester Sec 1 TuTh 11-12 Gym 6 Sec 2 TuTh 4-5 Gym 6

W123 Restricted Activities. 3 sem hr activity credit Not elective. Students found by the physical examination to be in need of this course are assigned to it by the college physician. Each semester OLARK MWF 11-12 Gym 6

W210 Advanced Rhythm. 2 sem hr activity credit Prerequisite: W110 Elementary Rhythm or equivalent. Second semester HARRIS TUTH 8-9 Gym 2

W212 Intermediate Swimming. 3 sem hr activity credit Not open to non-swimmers. Second semester FOX MWF 10-11 Gym Pool

W214 Recreational Activity. 3 sem hr activity credit Includes first semester—Horseback Riding, Badminton and Table-Tennis; second semester—Horseback Riding, Bowling, Quoits and Golf.

Each semester Fox, vossLER Sec 1 MW 4-5:30 Gym 5 Sec 2 MW 4-5:30 Gym 5

W215 Archery and Bowling. 3 sem hr activity credit First semester vossLer MW 3-4:30 Gym 10

W312 Advanced Swimming and Life Saving. 2 sem hr activity credit Prerequisite: Ability to swim in deep water. Second semester BOUGHNER TuTh 3-4 Gym Pool

W314 Advanced Basketball, Volleyball and Baseball. 2 sem hr activity credit Second semester on sufficient demand Fox WF 10-11 Gym 10

W315 Advanced Tennis. 2 sem hr activity credit Prerequisite: W115 Elementary Tennis or equivalent. Second semester Fox TuTh 9-10 Gym 10 W316 Hockey and Gymnastics. 3 sem hr activity credit First semester PROUSE MWF 11-12 Room 2

Ws317 Community Recreation. 3 sem hr activity credit This course is open to both specializing and non-specializing students. See Ws courses for description.

Athletics for Women

In addition to regular activity classes in various sports, the department sponsors, through its Athletic Association, a widely varied program of both team sports and leisure-time activities designed to interest every woman student in the College. Independent, sorority, and class groups compete in basketball, volleyball, swimming, badminton, and baseball. Non-competitive activities such as golf, archery, horseback riding, bowling, and weekend camping trips are also offered.

ACTIVITY COURSES FOR GENERAL STUDENTS-MEN

On the four year curriculum, 15 semester hours of physical activity are required of all men students. One course is to be taken each semester during the freshman year.

A student judged physically unable to carry activity courses may, in lieu thereof, present without credit five semester hours of physiology and hygiene of a grade not less than C. Such arrangement must be approved in advance by the Committee on Graduation.

Freshmen not reporting for the freshman teams are required to enroll in M101 and M102.

Students using the gymnasium will pay a deposit of one dollar for a locker, and fifty cents for a towel. Deposits should be paid at the time the student pays his tuition.

M101 Freshman Physical Training. 3 sem hr activity credit Seasonal activities.

First semester MCCULLOCH, STITES, MARSHALL

Sec	1	MWF	10-11	Gym	10	Sec 3 MWF 2-3 Gym 10	
Sec	2	MWF	1-2	Gym	10	Sec 4 MWF 3-4 Gym 5	i.

M102 Freshman Physical Training. 3 sem hr activity credit Volleyball, basket ball, swimming, and softball Second semester MCCULLOCH, RYNEARSON, STITES Sec 1 MWF 8-9 Gym 2 Sec 4 MWF 1-2 Gym 10 Sec 2 MWF 10-11 Gym 10 Sec 5 MWF 3-4 Gym 2

Sec 3 MWF 11-12 Gym 10

M103 Swimming. 3 sem hr activity credit Each semester MCCULLOCH, STITES, SAMSON Sec 1 MWF 9-10 Gym Pool Sec 2 MWF 4-5 Gym Pool

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

M104 Varsity Tennis. 3 sem hr activity credit Second semester SAMSON MTuWThF 4-5 Gym 10

M110 Recreational Activities. 2 sem hr activity credit This course includes handball, volleyball, hiking, tobogganing, skating, and other seasonal sports. Each semester SAMSON, EXNEARSON Sec 1 TuTh 3-4 Gym 2 Sec 2 TuTh 4-5 Gym 2

M112 Golf. 2 sem hr activity credit Students desiring to take golf for credit may arrange to do so through the department office. They must pay their own greens fees and provide their own equipment. To receive credit, the student must put in fifty-four hours of play. Second semester olds MTuWThF 4-5 Briggs

M122 Restricted Activities. 3 sem hr activity credit Not elective, Students found by the physical examination to be in need of this course are assigned to it by the college physician. First semester SAMSON MWF 4-5 Gym 6

M131 General Track and Field Sports. 3 sem hr activity credit This class is for students who wish to participate in track and field for exercise and to learn something of the technique in coaching the various events. Second semester MARSHALL MWF 2-3 Briggs

M132 Freshman Basketball, 2 sem hr activity credit 1st Semester :

1 sem hr activity credit 2nd Semester

Each semester STITES MTuWThF 3-5 Gym 10

M133 Freshman Football. 3 sem hr activity credit First semester STITES MTuWThF 3-5 Briggs

M135 General Cross Country. 2 sem hr activity credit This class is for students who want to do distance running for credit and to learn something of the technique of coaching. First semester OLDS Sec 1 MTuWThF 3-4 Briggs Sec 2 MTuWThF 4-5 Briggs

M202 Tennis-Volleyball. 2 sem hr activity credit Each semester MCCULLOCH First Semester Second Semester TuTh 2-3 Gym 2 TuTh 2-3 Gym 10

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

M212 Varsity Golf. 3 sem hr activity credit Second semester OLDS MTuWThF 2-3 Briggs

M213 Tennis. 3 sem hr activity credit -First semester MARSHALL MWF 1-2 Gym 2

M230 Competitive Track and Field Sports. 2 sem hr activity credit First semester OLDS Sec 1 MTuWThF 3-4 Briggs Sec 2 MTuWThF 4-5 Briggs

M231 Competitive Track and Field Sports. 3 sem hr activity credit Second semester OLDS, MARSHALL Sec 1 MTuWThF 3-4 Briggs Sec 2 MTuWThF 4-5 Briggs

M232 Varsity Basketball. 2 sem hr activity credit 1st Semester; 1 sem hr activity credit 2nd Semester

Each semester rynearson MTuWThF 3-5 Gym 10

M233 Varsity Football. 2 sem hr activity credit. First semester RYNEARSON MTuWThF 3-5 Briggs

M234 Varsity Baseball. 3 sem hr activity credit. Second semester STITES MTuWThF 3-5 Briggs

M235 Competitive Cross Country. 2 sem hr activity credit First semester OLDS Sec 1 MTuWThF 3-4 Briggs Sec 2 MTuWThF 4-5 Briggs

M236 Band. 2 sem hr activity credit This course is open to all men students in college. It is required of all men on the Orchestra and Band Curriculum. Students are required to complete thirty-six hours in marching, drill tactics, and in participating in athletic and other campus activities. Not more than eight semester hours activity credit may be received over a four-year period. Each semester BYAN M 6:45-8:15, Th 4-5:30

Ms103 Elementary Rhythm, Teaching and Practice, Ms207 Gymnastics, and Ms317 Community Recreation are open to both specializing and non-specializing students. For description see Ms courses.

218

Athletic Sports for Men

The department of physical education conducts athletic sports for students along three lines: Intercollegiate, intramural and recreational.

(1) All men students whose physical and scholastic records are satisfactory may become candidates for the following athletic teams: football, basketball, baseball, track, tennis.

(2) An extensive program of intramural athletics is offered by the department to men not competing in intercollegiate sports. Inter-class and inter-fraternity competition is organized in all the major and minor sports.

(3) Recreational activities include hiking, the circus, informal swimming, tennis, horseshoe, archery, tobogganing, skating, volleyball, pageantry, golf.

GRADUATE DIVISION

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

ALEXANDER G. RUTHVEN, PhD., Sc.D., LL.D., President of the University of Michigan

JOHN M. MUNSON, Ph.B., M.Ed., LL.D., President of the Michigan State Normal College

CLARENCE S. YOAKUM, Ph.D., Vice-President and Dean of the Horace H. Rackham School of Graduate Studies

PETER O. OKKELBERG, Ph.D., Assistant Dean of the Horace H. Rackham School of Graduate Studies

GERALD D. SANDERS, Ph.D., Chairman of the Graduate Advisory Council at the Michigan State Normal College.

CLIFFORD WOODY, Ph.D., Graduate Adviser to the Teachers Colleges.

GENERAL STATEMENT

By an arrangement between the State Board of Education and the Board of Regents of the University, a Graduate Division has been established at the Michigan State Normal College. Under this arrangement a student who is enrolled as a graduate student in the Horace H. Rackham School of Graduate Studies of the University of Michigan may take work at the Michigan State Normal College and have it applied toward a higher degree at the University. To take advantage of this arrangement a student must pay the same fees as are charged for graduate instruction at the University. He may then take such graduate courses as are offered at the Michigan State Normal College, provided these are allowed on his Schedule of Studies. The instructors in the courses will hold appointments as Lecturers in the University.

In the summer of 1942 several graduate courses are being offered. During the academic year 1942-1943 other courses will be available, both for students in residence and for those who wish weekend work. *

ADMISSION

Students who wish to avail themselves of work in the Graduate Division of the Michigan State Normal College must meet the requirements for admission to the Graduate School of the University of Michigan. Admission is open to students holding the bachelor's degree or equivalent from schools of recognized standing and who otherwise meet the entrance requirements of the Graduate School.

Those who plan to enroll as graduate students in the courses offered at the Michigan State Normal College should submit transcripts of their previous work to the Dean of the Horace H.

GRADUATE DIVISION

Rackham School of Graduate Studies, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, for consideration as to their fitness for graduate study. The transcripts and other credentials should, if possible, be submitted several weeks in advance of enrollment and should include a complete official record of the student's undergraduate and graduate work, and the grades and degrees obtained, and the basis of grading. The applicant should also indicate his proposed field of specialization. If admission is granted, the student will enroll in the same manner as regular students in the Graduate School except that the place of enrollment will be at the Michigan State Normal College.

FEES

A student enrolling in the Graduate Division at the Michigan State Normal College will pay the same fees as are charged for graduate instruction in the University of Michigan. These fees, payable at the beginning of the first semester in September and at the beginning of the second semester in February, are as follows:

	Michigan students	Non-resident students
Fees for each semester	\$60.00	\$100.00
Partial-work fee (each semester)		
Two hours credit	\$16.00	\$26.00
Three or four hours credit	\$32.00	\$42.00
Five or six hours credit	\$45.00	\$60.00

In case of voluntary withdrawals after the beginning of any semester, refunds are made as follows:

100%—up to two weeks

50%-more than two weeks and less than four weeks

40%-more than four weeks and not later than eight weeks

Health fees and contingent fees are included in the full-time fees, but not under the part-time fees.

GRADUATE COURSES

The following graduate courses are offered as residence courses at the Michigan State Normal College in the Summer Session of 1942 and during the regular year 1942-43 at the time indicated:

Education

B105a-MS, B105b-MS Curriculum Construction in Elementary Schools. 2 or 4 sem hr

This is a seminar course to acquaint the student with the current theories, techniques, and improved practices in developing curricular materials; and to give him practical experience in applying them in building curricular units. Provision will be made for individual students to work on curricular problems bearing on their present school work or specialized interests. Each semester GARRISON

Sat 10:00-11:30 Pierce 6

B151-MS Administration and Supervision of Elementary Schools. 2 sem hr

This course deals with the general managerial problems of the elementary school. It is open to students of maturity and experience who wish to fit themselves for principalships and supervisorships in grades one to eight.

Second semester KELDER Sat 11:30-1:00 Pierce 6

B189-MS Current Studies Relating to the Instructional Problems of Rural Schools. 2 sem hr

This course is designed for graduate students and others of maturity and adequate teaching experience who desire to study current problems in rural education. In particular, the course should appeal to county commissioners of schools, principals of consolidated rural schools, and experienced teachers concerned with the improvement of instruction in rural schools.

Summer session

B251-MS Supervising Instruction in Elementary Schools. 2 sem hr

This course will deal with the practical work of modern supervision in the evaluation and improvement of teaching in the elementary schools. Attention will be given to such important means of supervision as curricular work, research and experimentation, classroom visitation, professional study, and teachers' meetings. In addition, it will offer experienced teachers, supervising principals, and supervisors guidance in developing programs of supervision and in planning for their co-operative administration.

Summer session

C107a-MS Psychology of the Elementary School Subjects. 2 sem hr This is an advanced course in principles of teaching, dealing with current and improved practices in the teaching of reading, language, writing, and spelling. It will involve a study of the basic principles of learning and teaching, a survey of experimental studies, and their implications in the teaching of these subjects. Lectures, reports, problems, and class discussion. Summer session GARBISON

C115-MS <u>Educational Tests and Measurements.</u> 2 sem hr The main emphasis in this course is upon the study of current techniques in the evaluation of pupil growth in the elementary school. The several techniques will be critically examined as to

222

GRADUATE DIVISION

their uses and limitations. Attention is given to methods of recording and reporting pupil growth. Second semester LORD Th 4-6 Rackham 102

C175-MS Psychology of Child Development. 2 sem hr

The growth and development of the child from birth to maturity will be covered in this course. It will stress the factors credited with influencing mental growth, and the problems of integrating the physical growth and development with mental and social development. Growth curves will be studied with a direct attempt being made to indicate limitations in interpreting the same. First semester E. MARSHALL Sat 11:30-1:00 Pierce 36

C177-MS Childhood Education. 2 sem hr

Emphasis here will be placed upon the problems of the teacher of pre-school and primary-school children. This will involve a critical study of present practices and trends in developing children through their responses to environmental influences, and of how these environmental factors may be adapted to the educational needs of individual pupils. Suitable work will be observed in the laboratory schools.

Summer session E. MARSHALL

C225a-MS, C225b-MS Seminar in Elementary Education. 2 sem hr In this course each student will make an intensive study of some significant problem in elementary education. The unifying content will be the processes and principles underlying pupil learning and normal development and the adaptation of the educational program to such developmental factors in relation to pupil needs. Work on the master's thesis may be prosecuted in this course. First semester LORD

Sat 8:30-10:00 Rackham 102

Special Education

C234-MS Advanced Course in Psychology of Special Education. 2 sem hr

This course is designed for teachers of exceptional children and experienced teachers of regular grades. Attention is given to experimental studies dealing with exceptional children and the application of the findings to problems of education.

First semester LORD

MW 2-3 Rackham 102

C237-MS Orthopedics for Teachers of Orippled Children. 2 sem hr This course is intended to give teachers and other workers in the field a comprehensive view of the medical and surgical aspects of orthopedic conditions common among children. It will include lectures by specialists on anatomy, physiology, bacteriology, orthopedic and neurological lesions, malnutrition, cardiology, preventive and reconstructive measures. Material in physical therapy for appreciation but not for professional use will be presented. Clinical observation and field trips to institutions where this type of work is carried on will give the student an insight into its practical application.

Summer session BADGLEY AND ASSOCIATES, RINGMAN

C240a-MS, C240b-MS Seminar in Special Education. 2 sem hr A course designed for the intensive study of a particular phase of special education or development, on the basis of a psychological analysis of some form of atypy, of a piece of research pertaining to the student's particular interest. Master's thesis may be started in this course. A student not planning to begin a thesis would be expected to carry to completion a shorter problem of research. Each semester LORD

Sat 8:30-10:00 Rackham 102

C260-MS Measurement and Diagnosis in Special Education. 2 sem hr

This course is designed for teachers and supervisors in the field of special education. Emphasis throughout the course will be on the nature and use of tests and instruments of diagnosis employed with children presenting abnormalities in mental capacity. hearing, vision, speech and emotional and social adjustment. The course will involve lectures, reading, reports, practice in the administration of various instruments of measurement and diagnosis and visitation of classes and clinics in the immediate vicinity devoted to the study of various types of disability among children. Prerequisite: C1 Special Education.

First semester LORD

MW 11-12 Rackham 102

C330a-MS, C330b-MS Specialized Techniques and Practice in Their Application to the Teaching of Exceptional Children. 2 or 4 sem hr

This course is designed to give prospective teachers and supervisors in the field of special education instruction and practice in the teaching of children with various types of handicaps. A program of study will be arranged for each student according to his needs for effectively teaching a specific type of handicapped child. Prerequisites: Teacher's Certificate, C1 and C130 Special Education or equivalent.

Each semester LORD

Hours to be arranged. Rackham 101

Natural Science

D157-MS Teaching Elementary School Science. 2 sem hr This course is designed to analyze and evaluate in terms of modern elementary science practices such topics as the elementary science philosophy, underlying principles and natural laws, lesson plans and units, field trips and excursions, visual aids, equipment GRADUATE DIVISION

and supplies, history and literature, criteria for selection of books. Cognate with such analyses and evaluations will be the direct application of the best procedures with regard to these topics through actual practice and demonstration.

Second semester CURTIS

Sat (Hours to be arranged) Sci A

History

287-MS Studies in the Social Sciences in the United States and Great Britain. 2 sem hr

This course investigates the aims and practices employed by the educational institutions of the English-speaking peoples to acquaint children of elementary and secondary school age with their cultural, economic, political, and social environment and to fit them for citizenship. It is restricted to the nineteenth and twentieth centuries.

First semester ISBELL

Sat (Hours to be arranged)

FOR GRADUATES AND SENIORS

(In courses marked with two asterisks, graduate students must do additional work in order to receive full graduate credit.)

English

**404-MS English Literature, 1798-1832. 3 sem hr A study of the chief writers of the English romantic movement: Wordsworth, Coleridge, Lamb, De Quincey, Hazlitt, Byron, Shelley, Keats. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. First semester HARBOLD MWF 3-4 Welch 106

**405-MS Victorian Poetry. 3 sem hr A study of Tennyson, Browning, the Pre-Raphaelites, and the minor poets of the Victorian period. Prerequisites: four courses in literature. First semester SANDERS MWF 10-11 Welch 104

**407-MS Victorian Prose. 3 sem hr A study of the chief prose writers of the Victorian period: Macauley, Carlyle, Newman, Ruskin, Arnold, Pater, Huxley, Stevenson, Prerequisites: four courses in literature. Second semester HARROLD MWF 10-11 Welch 106

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

History

**457-MS The Constitution of the United States. 2 sem hr A seminar in the drafting, the ratification, and the establishment of the Constitution. One important aim is to give a few students some training in the use of source materials in history. The data used are in the main original sources. The topics for special study are: The Constitutional Convention; the struggle over ratification; the debate over Hamilton's financial policy; the disputs over Jay's treaty. Open to seniors or graduate students who have had three or more courses in United States History. Second semester FAGERSTROM MW 10-11 Pierce 47

Physics

**422-MS Modern Physics. 2 sem hr

In this course some of the more recent discoveries in the field of physics are discussed, especially those bearing on the nature of light and matter. Some of the most important topics considered are: The discovery of the electron; measurement of the electronic charge; radioactivity; atomic nuclei; the photoelectric effect; x-rays and their relation to crystal structure; x-ray and optical spectra. Prerequisites: 221 Mechanics, Sound and Heat, and 222 Light and Electricity. Second semester SMITH

TuTh 9-10 Sci 102

COLLEGE EXTENSION SERVICE

PROFESSOR HORACE Z. WILBER, A.M.

Director

The Michigan State Normal College extends the privileges of its classrooms and the assistance of its teaching force to teachers who find it impossible to study in residence. In order to be of service to these, courses leading to college credit are offered through extension classes or by correspondence study. The College also recognizes that there are numerous organizations, educational in character, in need of assistance in carrying on their work. To aid these, arrangements have been made for giving help through extension lectures or other similar service.

EXTENSION CLASSES

Extension classes, conducted by regular instructors of the College, will be organized at centers convenient to Ypsilanti, whenever the interest warrants. These classes may be in practically any subject and are identical in requirements and grade of instruction with corresponding classes on the campus. Credit earned in extension classes may be applied toward a certificate or a degree in accordance with the general rules of the College.

The following regulations apply to Extension Classes:

- 1. Application for the establishment of an extension class center must be made to the Director of Extension Education who will make all arrangements.
- 2. An extension class center may be established at any place where there is a sufficient number of students to justify such action. The number of students required for a class depends upon the distance from Ypsilanti and the consequent cost of maintaining the class.
- 3. All extension class work is of college grade and presupposes that those taking such work have qualifications equivalent to graduation from a four-year high school course.
- 4. Courses given in extension classes carry the same number of semester hours credit as do the corresponding courses on the campus. Each semester hour credit requires the equivalent of eighteen meetings of one class hour each.
- 5. Students taking work in extension classes are held to the same requirements concerning sequence of work and distribution of courses as are students in residence. Students are advised to consult the outlines of curricula as published herein, and make their selection of work accordingly.
- 6. A maximum of one-fourth of the work required for any certificate or degree may be taken in extension classes or by correspondence study. In no case can work taken in extension classes or by correspondence study reduce the requirements for residence work.

227

- 7. The number of hours of extension work for credit which one may carry while engaged full time in other work such as teaching, shall not exceed six hours per semester.
- 8. No student, having once enrolled at Michigan State Normal College, may receive credit here for work done elsewhere, subsequently, in extension or by correspondence, unless he shall have been given written permission by this institution in advance to take such work.
- 9. No student carrying work elsewhere while enrolled in extension or correspondence study at Michigan State Normal College may receive credit here for any work carried thus simultaneously, unless he shall have been given written permission in advance by the Normal College to pursue such a program. Failure to observe this rule may forfeit the credit for work done in violation of this regulation.
- The fee for work taken in extension classes is \$5.00 per semester hour of credit.

CORRESPONDENCE STUDY

Students whose needs cannot be met through extension classes are offered opportunity to do work through correspondence study. The College offers a considerable range of courses which may be taken in this manner. Work taken through correspondence study carries the same credit as work taken in class, either extension class or residence class. It does not, however, give residence credit. The following regulations apply to work taken through correspondence study:

- Persons desiring to do work through correspondence study must make application to the Director of Extension Education on blanks provided by the Department.
- No one may take more than six semester hours through extension at one time, either by correspondence study or in extension classes, except by special permission.
- 3. The privilege of taking work through correspondence study is dependent upon evidence that the work can be done satisfactorily. Only graduates of a four-year high school course, or persons having equivalent qualifications, may enroll for work through correspondence study.
- 4. For each semester hour of credit, a correspondence study course requires six weeks for its completion; i.e., a two semester hour course requires twelve weeks and a three semester hour course requires eighteen weeks.
- 5. Students doing work through correspondence study will be held to the same requirements concerning sequence and distribution of courses as are students in residence. Students are advised to consult the outlines of curricula as published herein, and make their selection of work accordingly.

- 6. All correspondence study courses require a final written examination, under supervision, for their completion. It is expected that this examination will be taken at the Normal College. If there are valid reasons why this cannot be done, arrangements may be made for taking the examination before a local public school official (superintendent, principal or county school commissioner).
- 7. The fee for correspondence study work is \$5.00 per semester hour payable at the time of enrollment. In addition to the enrollment fee, a payment of \$1.00 per course for postage on lessons is also required.
- 8. Students doing college work in residence in any institution are not permitted to take work here through correspondence study, except by special permission of the institution in which the residence work is being done. This applies to students enrolled in the Normal College as well as elsewhere.
- 9. Fees paid for correspondence study courses are not returnable after assignments of work have been given the student. The transfer to some other course of a fee already paid will be allowed if the transfer is made before the completion of three assignments. This transfer privilege ceases, however, at the end of six months from the date of enrollment.
- 10. No student, having once enrolled at Michigan State Normal College, may receive credit here for work done elsewhere, subsequently, in extension or by correspondence, unless he shall have been given written permission by this institution in advance to take such work.
- 11. Not all correspondence study courses are available during the summer. Work not completed by the close of the college year must frequently be deferred until the opening of the fall semester. Students desiring to pursue correspondence study work during the summer must make special arrangements to do so. The months of July and August are not counted as a part of the year within which a course must be completed.
- 12. Success in correspondence study work requires as high qualifications as in class work. Students whose grades for work in residence are below a "C" average will not be permitted to take work through correspondence study.

SATURDAY CAMPUS CLASSES

In addition to Extension Classes, which are held in centers outside of Ypsilanti, the College maintains as a part of the regular campus schedule classes meeting on Saturdays only. These classes are held in the regular College classrooms and make available to the students all the facilities of the College, including the College library and laboratories. Classes are offered each semester, coinciding with the regular sessions of the College. The schedule is so arranged that those enrolling may carry two courses, one Saturday forenoons and one Saturday afternoons. Work thus taken carries residence credit. Students in Saturday Classes are entitled to all the privileges of other resident students. The fee for these classes is the same as for the regular College session: 1, 2, or 3 semester hours, \$15.00; 4, 5, or 6 semester hours, \$24.50.

EXTENSION LECTURES

Members of the Normal College faculty are available for lectures before community meetings, farmers' clubs, granges, women's clubs, parent-teacher associations, and other organizations of an educational character. The expense to the organization for such lectures is the necessary expenses of the lecturer. Faculty members are also available for educational consultation, class demontration work, and other similar service.

Further information concerning the College Extension Service, details of extension class and correspondence study work, or matters pertaining to extension lectures or advisory service may be obtained on application to the Director of Extension Education, State Normal College, Ypsilanti, Michigan.

LIST OF COURSES

The following courses are now available through correspondence study. Other courses will be added to the list from time to time as occasion permits. Inquiry is invited concerning courses desired that are not listed.

English

121-Rhetoric 3 sem hr 122-Rhetoric 3 sem hr 107-Introduction to Poetry 3 sem hr 108-Introduction to Prose 3 sem hr 201—Advanced Composition 2 sem hr 207—Literature for the Elementary Grades 3 sem hr 208-Junior High School Literature 3 sem hr 209-The Nincteenth Century Novel 2 sem hr 210-Shakespeare 3 sem hr 215-Journalism 3 sem hr 302-English Grammar 2 sem hr 305-Shakespearcan Comedy 2 sem hr 308-Senior High School Literature 3 sem hr 316-English Literature, 1500-1600 3 sem hr 317—English Literature, 1600-1660 3 sem hr 401 Modern Poetry 2 sem hr 403-Contemporary Drama 2 sem hr 404-English Literature, 1798-1832 3 sem hr 405—Victorian Poetry 3 sem hr 407—Victorian Prose 3 sem hr 416-The Modern Novel 2 sem hr

Foreign Language

French

221—Intermediate French 4 sem hr 222—Intermediate French 4 sem hr 441—French Novel 3 sem hr

German

221—Intermediate German 4 sem hr 222—Intermediate German 4 sem hr

Greek

321-Xenophon, Plato and Homer 3 sem hr

Latin

131—Beginning Latin 4 sem hr 132—Beginning Latin 4 sem hr 142—Virgil 4 sem hr 151—Livy 3 sem hr 232—Latin Comedy 3 sem hr 354—Latin Poctry 2 sem hr

Natural Sciences

Agriculture

101—General Agriculture 3 sem hr 203—Animal Husbandry 2 sem hr

Elementary Science

101-Elementary Science for Rural Schools 2 sem hr

General Biology

301—Genetics 3 sem hr 305—Organic Evolution 2 sem hr

Chemistry

220—Elementary Organic Chemistry 2 sem hr 241—Applied Chemistry 2 sem hr

Geography

101—Introductory Regional Geography 2 sem hr 205—Geography of Europe 3 sem hr 209—Geography of Commerce 3 sem hr

Physics

121—Mechanics, Sound and Heat 4 sem hr 325—Methods in Science Teaching 2 sem hr

Mathematics

103—Trigonometry 2 sem hr 104—Higher Algebra I 3 sem hr 105—Higher Algebra II 3 sem hr 208—Mathematics of Commerce 3 sem hr 220—Statistical Method in Education 2 sem hr 221—Differential Calculus 4 sem hr 222—Integral Calculus 4 sem hr 400—History of Mathematics 3 sem hr

History and Social Sciences

History

120—Medieval Europe 3 sem hr 121—American History to 1850 4 sem hr 122—American History 1850 to Present 4 sem hr 131—History of Greece and Rome 3 sem hr 249—The Far East 3 sem hr 263—History of the West 3 sem hr

Sociology

200—Principles of Sociology 3 sem hr 201—Principles of Social Organization 3 sem hr 204—Marriage and the Family Relationship 3 sem hr 205—Social Progress 2 sem hr 210—Rural Sociology 2 sem hr

Political Science

110—National Government in the United States 2 sem hr Economics

228-Rural Economics 2 sem hr

Education

301-Psychology 3 sem hr

302-Educational Psychology 3 sem hr

303-Principles of Teaching 3 sem hr

309-History of Education in the United States 2 sem hr

315—Early Elementary Curriculum 2 sem hr

321-Child Psychology 3 sem hr

322—The Psychology of the Elementary School Subjects 3 sem hr

323-History of Modern Education 2 sem hr

340-Educational Tests and Measurements 2 sem hr

390-Modern Trends in Rural Education 2 sem hr

Special Education

350—Mental Deficiency 3 sem hr 367—Education of Children With Impaired Vision 2 sem hr

Fine Arts

213—History of Painting 3 sem hr 301—Lettering 2 sem hr

Industrial Arts

127—General Mcchanical Drawing 3 sem hr 128—Architectural Drawing 3 sem hr 362—The General Shop 2 sem hr

Home Economics

351-Textiles 3 sem hr

Health Education

201-Health Education in the Elementary Grades 2 sem hr

Physical Education

414—History and Literature of Physical Education. 2 sem hr

Further information concerning details of extension classes and correspondence study work, as well as matters pertaining to extension lectures and advisory service, is contained in a bulletin, *College Extension Service*, which may be obtained on application to the Director of Extension Education, Michigan State Normal College, Ypsilanti, Michigan.

Grounds and Buildings

GROUNDS

The college is well situated on high ground overlooking the city of Ypsilanti and the Huron Valley. The college campus has been extended from the original site of six acres to one hundred seven acres. A small lake and a beautiful grove of pine trees make it attractive. Alumni field, containing a running track, a football field, a baseball field, and a number of tennis courts, adds utility to the campus.

BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT

The Administration Building

The administrative offices, the fine arts, and industrial arts departments are located in this building. The laboratories of these departments are well lighted and equipped, providing adequate studios and gallery space for exhibits.

Pierce Hall

This building bearing the name of John D. Pierce, first Superintendent of Public Instruction of the State of Michigan, accommodates the departments of ancient languages, education, extension, geography, mathematics, and social sciences.

The *educational laboratory* has the typical psychological apparatus essential to laboratory work in the advanced courses. A testing laboratory, stocked with a wide range of mental and educational tests, is provided for purposes of institutional research.

The geographical laboratory has a large collection of maps, pictures, models, meteorological instruments, projecting apparatus, and slides.

The *department of mathematics* is equipped with surveying and other instruments used in practical work.

Pease Auditorium

This building named for Frederic H. Pease, head of the Conservatory of Music for many years, contains the main auditorium seating two thousand persons, and also the Conservatory of Music. The studios and classrooms are equipped with pipe organ, pianos, and other musical instruments.

Welch Hall

This building named in honor of Adonijah S. Welch, first president of the College, houses the departments of English, Speech, and Home Economics.

The home economics laboratories are equipped with stoves, ranges, refrigerators, sewing machines, display cases and necessary equipment for the training of Smith-Hughes teachers,

Science Hall

In this building space is provided for the departments of natural science, chemistry, and physics including the science laboratories.

The agricultural laboratory contains facilities for work in soils, farm crops, and plant propagation. The science gardens and greenhouse adjacent to the science building contain much representative agricultural and botanical materials for illustrating various methods of plant propagation and plant culture.

The astronomical laboratory consists of an open-air observatory on Science Hall; a sixteen-foot Warner and Swasey dome in which is mounted the 10-inch Mellish equatorial telescope; a room for the Brandis transit; the Negus chronometer and recording chronograph. A 4-inch Clark portable equatorial is used for outdoor observation.

The biological laboratories contain collections of specimens for illustrative purposes and for systematic study, supplemented by charts and models, movie and still cameras. Compound microscopes, microtomes, tanks and aquaria, bird collections and several thousand specimens of fish, amphibians, and reptiles are provided for student use. The herbarium has approximately four thousand mounted plants from various sections of the United States and Canada. A vivarium contains livings forms used in the work of the natural science department. There is also an extensive collection of microscopic and lantern slides. The zoological collection has been enriched by a valuable skull series, the donation of the late Dr. John M. Watling, Washington, D. C.

The chemical laboratories include a preparation room, a laboratory for elementary chemistry, a laboratory for advanced chemistry, a balance room and a combined balance room and library. Proper chemical laboratory equipment, such as: weights and balances, drying ovens, an electric furnace and apparatus for determination of molecular weights, fuel testing and food analysis, is provided.

The *physical laboratories* include general laboratories, an apparatus and shop room, a laboratory for advanced experimental work, a room for work with high vacua and spectra, a large dynamo room, two dark rooms for photometry and photography, a photographic room, and a tool room. Apparatus is provided to illustrate the standard experiments, radio and allied subjects, x-ray, electronic measurements, electrical resonance, radio activity, high potential effects, diffraction, polariscopic and spectroscopic work, lantern projection, photography, theoretical and industrial photometry, and gas calorimetry.

The *physiological laboratory* contains a zoological collection, a life size manikin of French manufacture, articulated and unarticulated skeletons, models, special preparations, apparatus, charts, photographs, lantern slides, and a complete series of microscopic mounts.

The geological laboratory has a good working collection of minerals, rocks and fossils, maps, charts, models, a stereopticon, photographs, and slides. (The moraines of the Huron-Erie ice lobe and the series of beaches of the ancient glacial lakes are within easy reach of the college.)

The Library Building

The modern language department and the library are located in this building.

The library contains 105,000 volumes. There are three reading rooms with a seating capacity of four hundred, open shelves containing 491 current periodicals, and 11,369 books as follows:

 General dictionaries, cyclopedias, commentaries, atlases, miscellaneous books of quotations, library helps and compendia, year-books and almanacs;

(2) Bound files of general magazines, with Poole's index, the Readers' Guide, Education Index, and other general indexes.

In addition to the main library there are 4 departmental libraries on the campus, varying in size from one hundred to four hundred volumes. Well-equipped libraries in the campus training department are: the elementary library of 3332 volumes; the high school library of 6019 volumes; Grade Room libraries, 4364 volumes.

For students and teachers of rural education, there is a library of 19,313 volumes in the Lincoln Consolidated School Building,

The librarian meets interested students two hours a week during the first semester for such practical instruction in reference work and in the use of books and libraries as may be particularly helpful to them as teachers.

This course is a prerequisite for all students who qualify as assistants in the library. Following one semester of apprenticeship, student assistants are paid for their work.

Roosevelt Laboratory School

The campus laboratory school consists of elementary and secondary grades.

The Gymnasium Building

This building houses the departments of physical education and health education, and contains three gymnasiums, with swimming pools. It is equipped to provide for indoor sports training and a complete intramural program. Five athletic fields and fifteen tennis courts furnish adequate facilities for the training of physical education students and, also, for the recreational activities of all students.

GROUNDS AND BUILDINGS

Walter O. Briggs Field

The Walter O. Briggs Field House and Athletic Field, presented to the College by Walter O. Briggs, Sr., in 1937, furnishes excellent accommodations for athletics. The Field House provides lockers, showers, training rooms, and rooms for officials. One-half of the building will be used for indoor practice in athletics.

A concrete bleacher replaces the wooden structure formerly on the south side of the football field and track. The baseball grandstand, seating 3,000 occupies the enlarged baseball field. It is built of concrete and steel throughout.

Health Residence

The Health Residence, a new, well equipped building houses the Health Service. It serves as the college hospital and health clinic.

The Julia Anne King and Bertha Goodison Halls

These residence halls, together accommodating four hundred women, are new, fireproof, and beautiful in design. They are built in a quadrangle which insures to all rooms adequate lighting and ventilation. They are nicely located between the Science Building and Roosevelt School, and convenient to the Library, McKenny Hall, and classrooms.

The John M. Munson Residence Hall

This residence hall is similar in design to the residence halls for women, and accommodates 200 men.

Charles McKenny Hall

This building, a gift from the Alumni Association, is the student union. The social activities of the campus center in this building.

Starkweather Hall

The Hall, a gift from Mrs. Mary Starkweather, is the home of the Young Women's Christian Association. The religious activities of the campus center in this building,

Morrison Cottage

Morrison Cottage, a gift from Mrs. Effiah J. E. Morrison, affords an opportunity for six freshmen women students to live on the cooperative plan under the supervision of a house director appointed by the college authorities.

Ellen H. Richards Home Management House

The home economics department provides valuable experience in home management under supervision. Home economics seniors, with a faculty member in charge, live in the Ellen H. Richards House as a family group for one semester.

The Horace H. Rackham School of Special Education

This school is housed in a new building, a gift of the Rackham Foundation. Facilities for the training and care of handicapped children include a dormitory for non-resident children, a therapeutic pool, and specially designed rooms and equipment.

Off-Campus Laboratory Schools

The city schools, the Lincoln Consolidated School, the Spencer rural school, and the Carpenter rural school, affiliated with the college, furnish adequate facilities for teacher training.

Societies and Clubs

THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION

The Michigan State Normal College was opened in 1852. In the eighty-five years of its existence, more than 30,000 students have been graduated from its several curricula. Although graduates of the College may be found in practically every line of activity. business and professional, it is yet true that the great majority of them have at some time been engaged in teaching, either in the schools of Michigan or of other states.

For a great many years the Alumni Association of the Michigan State Normal College has occupied an important place in the life of the College. Organized originally for the purpose of cementing the friendships formed in college days, it has always served as a bond between the College and its former students. The Association has sponsored College reunions, supported an Alumni Day during Commencement week, and inaugurated the observance of Founders' Day.

Many of the members of the alumni, convinced that a closer organization was desirable, at the annual meeting of the Association in 1925 instructed the executive committee to prepare plans for reorganization. This was done and in January, 1926, the Association was reorganized and incorporated under the laws of Michigan. By the revised plan the direction of the affairs of the Association is vested in a Board of Directors consisting of ten members, nine of whom are chosen by a vote of the alumni at the annual meeting in June. The tenth member is the President of the College. The nine elected Directors serve for three years, three being elected each year.

Cooperating with the College, the Association, in 1926, inaugurated a campaign to raise funds for the erection of a Union Building on the College Campus. The building was completed in 1931 and now serves as a center for the social activities of the College. The building has been named Charles McKenny Hall.

Membership in the Alumni Association is available to graduates, former students, and members of the faculty of the college.

FACULTY CHATS

Among the unique features of our college is the series of informal talks arranged under the auspices of the Women's League. The meetings are held Monday afternoons at four o'clock during the winter months.

KAPPA DELTA PI

Kappa Delta Pi is a national honor Society in education for junior and senior men and women of high scholarship and professional promise, and for those already in the field of educational service who have achieved distinction. A minimum amount of credit must be completed in professional education courses and the scholarship rating in the upper quartile before election is considered. The objects of the Society are to develop scholarship, to encourage research, and to promote fellowship among men and women engaged in the profession of teaching.

PI GAMMA MU

Pi Gamma Mu (Students of Social Science) is a national social science honor fraternity. Its purpose is "the inculcation of the ideals of scholarship, scientific attitude and method and social service in relation to all social problems." This honor society is open to students of high scholarship in the field of social sciences. This chapter is Michigan Alpha, founded May 11, 1932.

PI KAPPA DELTA

The purpose of Pi Kappa Delta is to encourage public speaking in colleges by extending formal recognition to those students who attain unusual excellence. The students who achieve proficiency in intercollegiate debate or oratory and whose scholarship index is not less than 1.5 may become candidates for membership. The chapter carries the responsibility of conducting the college platform contests, and has become an aggressive agency in stimulating all such activities.

SIGMA DELTA PSI

Sigma Delta Psi is a national honorary athletic fraternity which has for its purpose the encouragement of the physical, mental, and moral development and training of college men. The requirements for membership consist of physical and mental achievements and moral standards; the physical requirements are tests of speed, strength, skill and endurance; the mental requirement is good scholarship in college work; the moral requirement is such that any man of questionable moral standards is not admitted to the fraternity. Any man in the college is eligible for membership provided he can pass the requirements.

THE STOIC SOCIETY

The Stoic Society is an honor society for sophomore students. Its purpose is to recognize and distinguish high standards of scholarship and conduct. Each year a list is made up of about five per cent of the sophomores having the highest standings. From this list twenty-one are chosen to Stoic membership, seven having the highest standings, seven receiving most nominations from the faculty, and seven elected by the existing Stoic membership. For information concerning Stoic scholarships, see Student Aid Corporation loan funds.

ART CLUB

The Art Club is open to all students majoring or minoring in art. The purpose of the club is to promote interest in art and to further friendship among members of the Art Department.

CHEMISTRY CLUB

It is the purpose of this organization to promote scientific study by reviewing the chemical literature of the day. Some attention is given to the chemical industries and recent discoveries in science.

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION CLUB

Students in elementary education have organized a local chapter of the National Association for Childhood Education, and membership is open to all students in either early or later elementary education. The purpose of the club is two-fold in that it fosters a better social spirit among the students in elementary education and identifies its members with a national education association designed to further their educational interests and to promote a better professional attitude.

INDUSTRIAL ARTS CLUB

The purpose of the Industrial Arts Club is to promote good fellowship and to encourage its members to keep in touch with the new phases of industrial arts. All students specializing or minoring in the department or taking industrial arts work are eligible to membership.

HOME ECONOMICS CLUB

The Home Economics Club is composed of the students majoring and minoring in Home Economics and the faculty of the department. The purpose of the club is to promote professional interest and to foster friendship between students and with the alumnae. Meetings under the direction of student committees are held monthly. The local club is a member of the state and national college club organizations.

THE PHYSICAL EDUCATION CLUB

All students majoring in physical education are expected to become members. The activities of the club are directed by a council composed of representatives from each class, and a committee of faculty members.

MUSIC CLUB

It is the purpose of the Club to stimulate a professional spirit, to broaden the student's knowledge of the various phases of music. and to foster social friendship among its members. Membership is open to all music majors.

ENGLISH CLUB

The purpose of the club is to establish finer relationships between students especially interested in English, and to foster a deeper interest in the teaching of good English. All students specializing in English are eligible for membership.

THE EUCLIDEAN SOCIETY

The purpose of this society is to broaden the knowledge of its members along historical, pedagogical, and practical lines of mathematics, and encourage good fellowship. All members of the faculty from the Department of Mathematics are honorary members of this organization.

THE NATURAL SCIENCE CLUB

The Natural Science Club is an organization composed of the students majoring and minoring in Natural Science and the faculty of the department. The purpose of the club is two-fold: to learn of the historical and recent advancements in the field of natural science and to promote friendship among the members. Meetings are held bi-monthly.

HISTORY AND SOCIAL SCIENCE CLUB

The purpose of the History Club is to foster intelligent interest in history. All specializing students in history are eligible for membership.

SODALITAS LATINA

The purposes of the Latin Club are to stimulate interest in classical studies and to develop good fellowship among the students specializing in Latin and Greek. All students interested in Latin and classical languages are eligible for membership.

COLLEGIATE COUNTRY LIFE CLUB

The Collegiate Country Life Club is composed of all students specializing in Rural Education. Its purpose is to develop group spirit, social ease and enjoyment, ability to speak in public, skill in conducting public meetings of an educational, recreational, or cultural nature, and such other powers as will prove helpful to teachers in rural service.

SPECIAL EDUCATION CLUB

The purpose of the Special Education Club is to stimulate an interest in the education of the handicapped children. The club is sponsored by majors and is open to all interested students.

OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY CLUB

The Occupational Therapy Club is an organization composed of students majoring in Occupational Therapy. Its purpose is three-fold: to acquaint its members and the public with this field of service, to identify its members with active associations within the profession, and to promote companionship among the members.

YOUNG WOMEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION

Starkweather Hall is the home of the college Y. W. C. A. Any woman student who is in sympathy with the purpose and program of the Y. W. C. A. is eligible for membership. Whether or not a student is a member she is invited to make use of our homelike rooms.

Opportunity is given to take part in services of worship, in interesting discussions, in parties and informal teas, and in various types of committee work.

RHO SIGMA KAPPA

Rho Sigma Kappa, sponsored by the Y. W. C. A., is a social club for mature students.

WOMEN'S LEAGUE

The women of the institution become automatically upon registration members of the Women's League. The object of the League is: to offer an interesting social program, to quicken a sense of responsibilities that arise in the relationships among individuals and, in these relationships, to offer to every League member practice in the techniques of friendliness, leadership, cooperation, and democracy, and to work with the faculty in maintaining proper standards in college life.

VIVENTES

Viventes, sponsored by the Women's League, is open to all freshmen women.

GOLD FEATHER

Gold Feather, sponsored by the Women's League, is open to all sophomore women.

EUTHALIA

Euthalia, sponsored by the Women's League, is open to all Junior women.

BOOK-A-MONTH

Book-a-Month Club, sponsored by the Women's League, is open to all senior women.

MEN'S UNION

The men of the institution have organized a group known as the Men's Union. The object of the union is to further the social life of the men, and to stimulate co-operative interest in matters of student welfare.

STUDENT SPEECH ACTIVITIES

Interpretative Reading and Dramatics—During the year four interpretative reading events are held, two with subdivisions for upper-class students and two for freshmen. From the final contests of the former, both men and women students are chosen to represent the college in the competitions of the Michigan Intercollegiate Speech League.

In dramatics one-act plays and a full-length all-college play are presented in connection with the courses in Play Production.

Platform Speaking—Growing out of the work of the debating societies, seasonal schedules of intercollegiate debate and group discussion are followed, which give informal practice to a large number of men and women.

In the field of general oratory men and women compete separately, progressing from the college contests to the divisional and the state contests. The college is also represented in state peace oratory and in extemporaneous speaking events.

Freshman public speaking contests for both men and women are held during the second semester.

Pi Kappa Delta-Information given under the heading, Societies and Clubs.

REGULATIONS GOVERNING ELIGIBILITY OF OFFICERS IN STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS AND ACTIVITIES

- A. Eligibility:—Students in the Michigan State Normal College shall be eligible for election or appointment to offices or activities in school organizations subject to the following regulations:
 - No student whose scholarship index is less than 1 shall be eligible for election or appointment to office or continuance in office in any school organization.
 - No student who has taken courses representing more than 120 semester hours of work shall be eligible for election or appointment to office in any school organization.
 - No student who for any reason has a probationary status in the College shall be eligible to election or appointment to office in any school organization.
 - Each office shall be represented by the point-equivalent indicated in the table given in part B.
 - No student shall be eligible to hold offices to such a number that the resulting aggregate of points shall exceed ten.

- 6. Any student who accepts offices to such a number that the resulting aggregate of points exceeds ten, shall within two weeks resign and withdraw from offices until such number shall conform to the provisions of paragraph 5. In case the student shall fail to act as here stated, the offices held by such student shall become vacant in the reverse order in which they were accepted until the number thus held shall conform to paragraph 5.
- B. *Point-Equivalents:*—The point equivalents of offices in the several Student Organizations and Activities at the Michigan State Normal College shall be as follows:

Offices	Class Organization	League-Union	Literary Society	Social Organization	Department Club	Aurora	College News	Honorary Organization	Religious Organization	Intramural and Athletics
President	6	6	4	.4	3			4	4	
Vice-President	1	1	1	1	1			1	1	
Secretary	2	2	2	2	2			2	2	
Treasurer	2	2	2	2	2			2	2	
Permanent Chairman	2	2	2	2	2			2	2	
Editor						6	6			
Assistant Editor						4	4			
Business Manager						4	4			-
Department Editor						2	2			
Manager										

- C. Organization of New Societies:—The following procedure shall govern the organization of new societies:
 - 1. Requests for the organization of new societies shall be submitted in writing to the President of the Michigan State Normal College, stating the name and aim of the proposed organization and the names of faculty members desired as advisers. The request shall be signed by at least twelve students desiring to become charter members of the society.
 - 2. The President shall, at his discretion, submit the request to the Committee on Organizations and Activities for their consideration.
 - The Committee on Organizations and Activities shall submit a report of its action to the faculty for approval.

Loan, Scholarship and Endowment Funds

THE STUDENT AID CORPORATION

The Student Aid Corporation was incorporated in 1928 for the general purpose of unifying under one management the administration of various loan, scholarship, and such other funds as may from time to time be secured for use in behalf of the college, its departments, or affiliated societies. The responsibilities of the Student Aid Corporation are vested in a Board of Directors appointed, one each year for a five-year term, by the President of the Michigan State Normal College. The duties of the directors are to administer all loan, scholarship and other special funds subject to the following conditions:

(1) Loans are made to students from the various funds according to conditions established by the donors or rules made by the Board of Directors.

(2) All loans and other disbursements are made by order of the Board of Directors.

All disbursements are made over the signature of the Secretary-Treasurer, countersigned by the President of the corporation.

(3) No distinction is made among students on account of program of study, sex, race, religion or other affiliation further than those prescribed by the donors.

(4) Application for loans is made upon a blank form provided for this purpose. Blank application forms may be secured from the President of the Student Aid Corporation. Application for loans must be in the hands of the Board of Directors two weeks previous to the time the loan is desired.

(5) Except as otherwise provided in the instrument of donation, or where very special conditions warrant it, no loans are made to students until they have earned credits in the Michigan State Normal College. Loans will not be made to students whose scholastic index is below 1.00 or to students who have shown evidence of lack of responsibility in financial matters.

(6) The amount loaned any student is small and intended only to supplement other resources.

(7) Each student signs a note for the full amount of the loan. The Board of Directors may require the maker of the note to furnish security—either an endorser or acceptable collateral. In all cases sponsors are required in the applications for loans,

(8) Except as otherwise provided for in the instrument of donation, the rate of interest is 6%. In all cases there is an initial service charge of twenty-five cents for handling the account,

(9) The administration of scholarship funds and other special funds will follow the plan outlined in the instrument of donation. Where no such plan is outlined the Board of Directors will outline such a plan.

(10) Since nearly all of our loan funds have been established as memorials, the principal of most of them is invested in income earning securities, and only the interest is loaned to students. In this manner the objectives of a permanent loan fund and the desire to help worthy students are accomplished.

The Board of Directors at all times welcomes additions to existing funds as well as the establishment of new loan or scholarship funds.

The funds administered by the Student Aid Corporation as of June 30, 1941, are as follows:

Loan Funds

The Abigail Roe Memorial Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1914 by the friends of Miss Abigail Fenton Roe, a beloved and honored critic in the Training School from 1896 to 1914, by the alumni of Zeta Tau Alpha sorority, of which Miss Roe was patroness. "It is loaned to students in the Junior class of high standing in scholarship, character and social and general campus efficiency." The principal of this fund is \$911.49.

The John D. Pierce Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1921 by the Ypsilanti Board of Commerce for the "purpose of aiding worthy students with loans of small amounts." The fund was created primarily to help students in their fourth year with the expectation that the money would be returned within a year. The principal of this fund is \$686.14.

The Alpha Mu Sigma Loan Fund. This fund was established by the alumnae chapter of the Alpha Mu Sigma by a gift of \$100 in 1927. The fund is loaned to worthy students of the college with the approval of some local member of the sorority. The principal of this fund is \$370.00.

The Rachel J. Davidson Loan Fund. This fund was established by the will of Rachel J. Davidson and is one of the oldest of the loan funds. This fund is loaned to worthy students of the college. The principal of this fund is \$616.87.

The Bessic Leach Priddy Loan Fund. This fund was established by the Matrons' Association of the College in appreciation of Mrs. Priddy's work as Dean of Women from 1915 to 1923, for the purpose of aiding worthy students. The principal of this fund is \$200.00.

The Sigma Nu Phi Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1925.by the Detroit Chapter of Sigma Nu Phi. The principal of this fund is \$883.77.

LOAN FUNDS

The Women's League Loan Fund. The Women's League Fund was established in 1921 by gifts of twenty-five cents each from women students. The purpose of the fund was to give financial aid to women students. The principal of this fund is \$2000.00.

The Grace E. Roberts Loan Fund. This fund was established by the will of the late Dimon H. Roberts, Superintendent of the Training School from 1900 to 1928, in memory of his wife Grace E. Roberts. The will provides for an original amount of \$2,000.00 "all or any part to be loaned by the committee to deserving students and under such safeguards as to them may seem advisable and expedient."

The Wilbur P. Bowen Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1929 by the Physical Education Club and faculty as a memorial to Wilbur P. Bowen, Director of Physical Education of the Michigan State Normal College from 1894 to 1928. Loans are made only to Juniors and Seniors. The principal of this fund is \$1001.55.

Senior Class of 1930 Loan Fund. This fund was established by the Senior Class of 1930. Loans from this fund are to be made to deserving senior students. The principal of this fund is \$614.14.

Sarah A. George Memorial Fund. The Sarah A. George Memorial Fund was started in 1930 under the sponsorship of the Ladies Literary Club of Ypsilanti in memory of Mrs. Sarah George, long a resident of Ypsilanti, a stimulating leader in civic affairs, and the wife of a former superintendent of the city schools and of the Training School. The principal of this fund is \$900,00.

The General Student Loan Fund. This fund was derived from various sources. Small donations not intended as special bequests are credited to this fund. The principal of the fund is \$1,658.76.

D. A. R. Student Loan Fund. This fund was established by a gift of \$250 in March 1931, and additional gifts of \$80 in October, 1931, and \$170 in March, 1932, by the Daughters of the American Revolution of Michigan. Loans are made to any worthy student at the discretion of the Directors of the Student Aid Corporation. The principal of this fund is \$500.00.

Kappa Delta Pi Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1931 by a gift from the local chapter. The money is loaned to members of Kappa Delta Pi upon approval of the Directors of the Student Aid Corporation and the council of the local chapter. The principal of this fund is \$600.00.

The Letro Loan Fund. This fund was established by the Rural Leadership Students and Alumni to be loaned to deserving students of the Rural Leadership group. The fund is administered by the Student Aid Corporation with the cooperation of the Director of Rural Education. The principal of this fund is now \$134.58. English Club Loan Fund. This fund was established by the English Club in 1933. The money is to be loaned to deserving English students. The principal of this fund is \$40.

American Association of University Women's Loan Fund. This fund was established by the Ann Arbor-Ypsilanti Branch of the American Association of University Women. The money is to be loaned to deserving women students. The principal of this fund is \$205.00.

The Ypsilanti Women's Study Club Loan Fund. This loan fund was established in 1933 by the Women's Study Club of the city of Ypsilanti. The money is to be loaned to deserving students of the Michigan State Normal College. The principal of this fund is \$1000.00.

The Genevieve M. Walton Memorial Loan Fund. In 1920, the Contemporary Club, now the Faculty Women's Club, contributed the sum of \$200 to establish a loan fund for Freshmen women, in response to an urgent need. For twelve years the fund was administered by Miss Genevieve M. Walton, President of the Club in 1920, and College Librarian from 1892 to 1932. After her death, the Club assigned the accumulated fund to the Directors of the Student Aid Corporation as a memorial to Miss Walton and her many years of efficient and sympathetic service. One hundred dollars was added to this fund in 1939 as a bequest from Miss Ada Norton, devoted friend of the Normal College in which she taught for forty years. The principal of this fund now amounts to \$688.31.

The Effie Belle Deam Loan Fund. The Effie Belle Deam Loan fund was made possible through the gift of \$2,000 provided for in the will of Effie Belle Deam and became available in 1931. Miss Deam received the degree of Bachelor of Pedagogy in 1906. During the last years of her life she was a teacher in the Detroit city schools.

The Forum Club Fund. This fund was established in 1933 by the Forum Club of Ypsilanti. The money is to be loaned to deserving students. The principal of this fund is \$40.00.

The Samuel B. Laird Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1932 by a gift from Mrs. Laird and Jessie Laird, wife and daughter, to be administered by the Student Aid Corporation. The memorial fund serves to express the loyalty to the college, the affection for young people, and the devotion to teaching, of him who was a member of the college faculty from 1899 to 1932. The principal of this fund is \$1000.00.

The Marinetta Goodell Coryell Loan Fund. This fund was started as a memorial to Marinetta Goodell (Coryell) of the class of 1900. It is available temporarily as a revolving loan fund, preferably to a few selected and worthy country girls of

LOAN FUNDS

merit and good character, who are members of the senior class. The fund is controlled by trustees, but is handled through the Student Aid Corporation of the College, subject to the direction of the trustees. The trustees are William C. Coryell and the Dean of Women.

Faculty Dames of M. S. N. C. This fund was established through gifts from the wives of members of the faculty for the purpose of helping especially needy students. The fund totals \$100.00.

Theta Lambda Sigma Loan Fund. The Detroit Chapter of the Theta Lambda Sigma sorority, in 1922, started a student loan fund. The fund has grown to \$195 which is loaned to deserving students of high scholarship. Write to Miss Estabrook Rankin for information concerning this fund.

The Mildred A. Bolt Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1938 by the Detroit Sorosis as a testimonial to the service of Mildred A. Bolt as a leader in civic and women's club work. The fund totals \$100.00.

The Charles O. Hoyt Loan Fund. This fund was established by the Phi Delta Pi Fraternity. The fund is a memorial to Professor Charles O. Hoyt, a member of the College faculty from 1896 to 1928 and for several years head of the Education Department. The principal of the fund is \$130.00.

The Roosevelt High School Loan Fund. This fund was established by the Class of 1938 to aid worthy Roosevelt High School graduates, who, without such aid, could not continue their education at Michigan State Normal College. The fund is to be administered by the Directors of the Student Aid Corporation. The principal of the fund is \$50.00.

The Adella R. Jackson Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1939 as a testimonial to Miss Jackson, who was a second grade critic teacher in the Training School of Michigan State Normal College from 1896 to 1936. The fund was established by her students who recognized her as a counsellor, teacher and friend. The principal of the fund is \$758.28.

The Ella M. Wilson Memorial Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1940 by her family as a memorial to Miss Ella M. Wilson who will be remembered for her unswerving loyalty to the college, to students, friends, and the community, and for her ceaseless application to study, which made her an outstanding counselor and teacher. She was an alumna of the college and a member of its faculty from 1903 until her death November 24, 1939. The fund is to be loaned to deserving students at the discretion of the Student Aid Corporation. The principal of this fund is \$490.00.

Kappa Psi Alumnae Loan Fund. Kappa Psi, organized in 1901 as a musical sorority, suspended active campus life in 1935. A strong and loyal alumnae group established a loan fund in 1938. Sums have been added each year since until the total is now \$150.00.

The Bertha Goodison Loan Fund. This fund was established in 1938 by the members of the Fine Arts Club as a permanent testimonial of affection and respect to Miss Goodison who was a member of the college faculty from 1900 to 1937. She served as head of the Fine Arts Department from 1912 to 1937. The principal of the fund is \$332.80.

Anonymous Gift. \$500.00.

Scholarship and Endowment Funds

The Garden Project Opportunity Fund. This money is to be invested and the interest returned to the Natural Science Department to promote student projects or such other activities as in the judgment of the department will be helpful to students specializing in the department. The principal of this fund is \$1,714.24.

The Frederick B. McKay Scholarship. This fund was established in 1924 by the local chapter of Pi Kappa Delta for the purpose of encouraging worthy members in their interest in public speaking. The principal of this fund is \$1,028.01.

The 1927 Junior Class Interpretative Reading Contest Fund. This fund was established by the Junior Class of 1927. The income is devoted to prizes awarded in an annual interpretative reading contest held during the latter part of the second semester. The principal of this fund is \$466.41.

The Stoic Society Scholarships. The interest from the Stoic Society funds is returned to the Society. Annually scholarships are awarded to worthy second year students of exceptional ability to aid them in returning for their third year work. The total principal of the various Stoic funds amounts to \$9,984.98. These scholarships are derived from the following endowment funds:

(a) The E. A. Strong Scholarship endowment, which was raised by the Stoic Society and in 1913 presented to the college as a memorial to the many years of fine service given to the college by Professor Edwin A. Strong, who was head of the Physics Department from 1885 to 1920. The awarding of this scholarship carries with it the presidency of the Stoic Society. Principal, \$1000.00.

(b) The Julia Anne King Scholarship endowment was established by the Stoic Society in 1923 as a memorial to Professor King, a teacher in the college from 1881 to 1918. The fund received in 1937 additional gifts amounting to \$200.00 from the estates of Genevieve Cross and Annie J. Cross bestowed in memory of their sister Harriet C. Newington, Principal, \$1200.00. (c) The Elizabeth Simpson Scholarship endowment, presented in 1924 by the heirs of Elizabeth Simpson, who had served as an assistant in the college library from 1907 to 1923. The memorial was presented as a means of carrying out Miss Simpson's expressed desire that she might aid worthy students in acquiring an education. Principal, \$500.00.

(d) The Lucy Osband Scholarship endowment, presented in 1925 by the Honorable Fred W. Green of the class of 1893 as a tribute to a beloved teacher who taught in the natural science department of the college from 1882 to 1895, Principal, \$1000.00.

(e) The Nathan A. Harvey Scholarship endowment was raised by the Stoic Society, and by them presented to the College in 1931 as a memorial to Professor Harvey's valuable service in the Normal College from 1904 to 1926. Principal, \$1000.00.

(f) The Carl E. Pray Scholarship endowment was raised by the joint efforts of the Stoic Society and the Normal College History Club and presented to the College in 1937 as a token of the high regard in which Professor Pray is held by the students and friends who have come in contact with him during his service in the Normal College from 1913 to 1938. Principal, \$1065.50.

(g) The Benjamin Leonard D'Ooge Scholarship endowment was raised under the auspices of the Stoic Society through gifts from Professor D'Ooge's friends and former students, and presented to the College in 1938 as a tribute to his valuable service during more than half a century of teaching in the College, from 1886 to 1938. Principal, \$1000.00.

(h) The L. H. Jones Scholarship endowment was established by Mrs. Edith Jones Shaefer as a memorial to her father, Dr. L. H. Jones who was president of Michigan State Normal College during the years 1902-1912. Dr. Jones' life was devoted to the service of public education. The amount of the fund is \$1,000.00.

(i) The J. Stuart Lathers Scholarship endowment was established in 1940 by students, faculty, alumni, and other friends in recognition of Professor Lathers as founder and patron of the Stoic Society and of his fine constructive work as a teacher and leader in the community. Principal, \$1000,00.

(j) The J. Milton Hover Scholarship endowment was established in 1941 by his friends as a tribute to the memory of a distinguished alumnus, a great teacher, a loyal friend, and a man of many noble qualities. The amount of the fund is \$1219.48.

The Effah J. E. Morrison Alumni Scholarships provide educational opportunity for six freshman women students equivalent to \$150.00 a year per student. This fund is not administered by the Student Aid Corporation. Application should be made to the Assistant Dean of Women. The Mary A. Goddard Testimonial Fund was established by friends and former students of Mary A. Goddard, teacher of botany in the Natural Science Department from 1900 to 1939. Miss Goddard's work was characterized by the very large number of students whom she inspired to pursue scientific careers. The amount of this fund is \$1105.19.

The Lydia I. Jones Scholarship endowment was established in 1939 by the Women's League of Michigan State Normal College in recognition of Miss Jones' marked success in stimulating the development of the intellectual, cultural, and social interests of women on our campus. Miss Jones was Dean of Women from 1924-1939. Awards are made on the recommendation of the Dean of Women and a committee of the Women's League. The amount of this fund is \$1,000.00.

The Mark Jefferson Scholarship Fund. This fund was established by students, faculty, and friends, and was presented to the Normal College in 1939, as a token of appreciation of the work of Mark Jefferson, as Head of the Geography Department from 1901-1939. The fund now totals \$883.52.

The E. Estelle Downing Library Fund. During 1939 and 1940, the gift of nearly two hundred books to the Michigan State Normal College Library was made possible through a fund established by friends and students of Professor E. Estelle Downing. This fund is a tribute to a devoted teacher who taught forty years in the English Department of the College. The fund consists of a permanent endowment, the interest of which will be invested by Miss Downing during her life time, and a flexible temporary fund, all of which is immediately available to Miss Downing for the purchase of any stimulating books she chooses for the College Library. The permanent fund totals \$793.02.

The Fannie E. Beal Scholarship endowment was established in 1940 by the Women's League of the Michigan State Normal College. Miss Beal was Acting Dean of Women 1923-1924, Assistant Dean of Women 1924-1939, Associate Dean of Women 1939-1940. Awards are to be made on the recommendation of a committee of the Women's League and the Dean of Women. The amount of this fund is \$600.00.

The Vinora Beal Scholarship endowment was established in 1940 by Fannie E. Beal as a memorial to her sister, who for twentythree years was connected with the Roosevelt Laboratory School: as training teacher of English and assistant principal from 1914 to 1928; as librarian from 1928 to 1937. The income from this fund of \$1,000.00 is awarded to a Roosevelt graduate who has maintained a high character and scholastic record.

The Bort W. Peet Scholarship endowment for awards in chemistry was established in 1941 by the Michigan State Normal College Chemistry Club and the contributions of other friends. The

STATISTICAL INFORMATION

income from this fund is awarded to students who have made especially good records in the field of chemistry. The amount of this fund is \$997.90.

SCHOLARSHIPS

The State Board of Education has established ten scholarships, open to worthy students. The scholarships, each of which amounts to \$54.00 a year, are awarded only to persons presenting evidence of superior scholarship. Application should be made by the student directly to the President of the College.

STATISTICAL INFORMATION

Enrollment for 1941-42

Residence Enrollment July 1, 1941 to March 15, 1942 Summer term 1941 Regular year	
Deduct, counted twice	$3,037 \\ 286$
Total Residence Enrollment Extension Enrollment to March 15, 1942	$2,751 \\ 1,221$
Total number enrolled	3,972

Diplomas and Certificates Granted

1940-1941

			Provis Certif	and the second se		
	A.B.	B.S.	Elem.	Sec.	Lim.	Total
August	23	99	17	33	15	187
February	11	47	21	27	9	115
June	44	190	88	118	46	486
Data data data d	. 78	336	126	178	70	788
Deduct, counted to	wice					299
Total number pers	sons gra	duated				489

-

Appendix

SUGGESTED PROGRAMS FOR STUDENTS NOT PREPARING FOR TEACHING

Advisers: Mr. McKay, Mr. Brundage, Mr. Willoughby, Mr. Hickman

These programs are intended to include the various fields of interest of those students who do not intend to teach—law, business administration, journalism, medicine, dentistry, nursing, engineering, agriculture, forestry and others.

For those programs not outlined below, students are referred to the advisers. The Degree Requirements should be studied. Students are not required to take work in Group IV, but they should note the general requirements in physical training and handwriting.

Law.

Students preparing for law should emphasize subjects from Groups I and III; should choose their major subjects from Group III; and, they should give the following subjects attention: English, 15 hrs; Latin, 8 hrs; French, German or Spanish, 8 hrs; Mathematics or laboratory science courses, 8 hrs in one subject; 301 Psychology; 121, 122, 211, 212 History; Sociology, 8 hrs, including 200, 206; Political Science, 10 hours, including 110, 211; 220, 221, 222, 229 Economics; 102, 201 Commerce; 121, 122 Rhetoric; 121 Public Speaking; 156, 261 Speech; electives to complete curricular requirements.

Business Administration.

Students preparing for business administration should emphasize subjects from Groups II and III; should choose their major subjects from Group II; and, they should give the following subjects attention: English, 15 hrs; French, German or Spanish, 8 hrs; Mathematics, 12 hrs, including 105, 208, 211; a laboratory science, 8 hrs; 301 Psychology; 121, 122, 231, 232 History; 200 Sociology; Political Science, 5 hrs; 220, 221, 222, 224 Economics; 102, 201 Commerce; 121, 122 Rhetoric; 121 Public Speaking; 156 Speech; electives to complete curricular requirements.

Dentistry.

For students preparing for dentistry the following subjects are required in college: English composition, 6 hrs; Chemistry, 12 hrs, including Organic Chemistry; Biology, 6 hrs; Physics, 6 hrs; electives to bring the total to at least 60 hrs.

The following subjects are suggested for electives: English Literature, Foreign Language, History, Economics, Sociology, Mathematics, Political Science, Speech, Philosophy, Psychology, Astronomy, Fine Arts. Courses in hygiene, journalism, medical sciences, and physical education will not be acceptable to fulfill any part of the minimum academic total of 60 hours. The student must earn a 1.25 honor-point average per semester hour credit.

Freshmen should start their chemistry the first semester and also see that they have the necessary courses in Mathematics to take Physics the second year. Otherwise it may take more than two years to get the required courses completed.

Medicine.

Students preparing for medicine are advised to take Latin, Chemistry, Physics, Trigonometry, Biology, and either French or German in high school.

The following premedical subjects are required in college: English, 6 hrs; Chemistry, 14 hrs; Physics, 8 hrs; Biology, 8 hrs; French or German, 12 or 16 hrs (two full years in the same language); electives to bring the total to at least 90 hrs.

Although electives may be chosen from many fields the following are recommended: Economics, Greek, History, Latin, Mathematics, Psychology, Sociology and Speech. The student must make an average grade of 1.50 honor points for each semester hour of work completed. The minimum of 90 hrs must not include subjects which are taught in the Medical School, such as Anatomy. Bacteriology, Biochemistry, Hygiene, Physiology, etc.

Agriculture or Forestry.

Students preparing for agriculture or forestry are advised to elect the following subjects during the first two years: Botany. 8 hrs; Chemistry, 8 hrs; Biology, 8 hrs; Physics, 8 hrs; Economics, 5 hrs; 121, 122 Rhetoric; 121 Public Speaking; electives to complete curricular requirements.

Electives are to be chosen from mathematics, language, zoology, chemistry, geology, mechanical drawing or surveying.

The last two years of the curriculum are to be elected under the guidance of the adviser.

Engineering.

Students preparing for engineering will be classified in accordance with their specializing work to the extent that such seems advisable. In general, the freshman program will be followed as nearly as possible with the selection of such subjects as are directly related to engineering. These include mathematics, physics and chemistry. During the second semester of the second year Mechanical Drawing may be taken and additional work in mathematics and physics may be taken along with other curricular requirements.

Electives should be chosen from Language, History, Geography, Geology, Economics, and Psychology.

The following courses must be taken in college without credit toward an engineering degree if equivalent units have not been taken in High School: 100 Solid Geometry; 104 Higher Algebra I if 3rd semester Algebra was not taken; 121 and 122 Physics; 8 hrs of a foreign language if 2 yrs of a foreign language were not taken.

Group Majors and Minors

The group majors and group minors listed below are acceptable on the Early Elementary and Later Elementary curricula. The group minors are acceptable on the Special Education curricula.

Social Science Group Major

121 American History to 1850 4 sem hr

122 American History 1850 to Present 4 sem hr

- 131 History of Greece and Rome 3 sem hr
- 120 Medieval Europe 3 sem hr
- 110 National Government in the United States 2 sem hr
- or 113 State and Local Government
 - 220 Elements of Economics 3 sem hr
 - 221 Elements of Economics 3 sem hr
 - 200 Principles of Sociology 3 sem hr

Social Science Group Minor

- 121 American History to 1850 4 sem hr
- 110 National Government in the United States 2 sem hr
- or 113 State and Local Government 2 sem hr
 - 220 Elements of Economics 3 sem hr
 - 200 Principles of Sociology 3 sem hr Elective 3 sem hr

Arts Group Major

- 101 Elementary Art 3 sem hr
- 200 Art Appreciation 2 sem hr
- 104 Elements of Music 2 sem hr
- 220 Early Elementary Music Education 3 sem hr
- 253 Industrial Arts for Elementary Grades 3 sem hr
- 254 Industrial Arts for Elementary Grades 2 sem hr
 - Elective to complete major chosen from one or all of the following:

Industrial Arts, Fine Arts, and Music 9 sem hr

Arts Group Minor

- 101 Elementary Art 3 sem hr
- 200 Art Appreciation 2 sem hr
- 104 Elements of Music 2 sem hr
- 220 Early Elementary Music Education 3 sem hr
- or 221 Intermediate Music Education 3 sem hr
 - 253 Industrial Arts for Elementary Grades 3 sem hr
 - 254 Industrial Arts for Elementary Grades 2 sem hr

Index

4	
A	Page
dministrative Officers	9
dministration and Supervision Curriculum	57
dmission to the College	37
dvanced Credits	39
griculture	. 96
ppendix	256
associations :	
Alumni	3, 239
Young Women's Christian	
ssemblies	43
stronomy	121

в

Bachelor of Arts	47
Bachelor of Science	47
Board and Rooms	32
Botany	97
Buildings Occupied by the College	234
Biology	100

С

Certificates, Important Directions on Limited	50
Chemistry, Department of	109
Clubs and Societies	239
Calendar, College	6
	67
Commerce Department	199
	42
	27
	185
	228
Curricula, Objectives and General Scope of	
Curricula	52
Curricula :	- 4-2
Administration and Supervision	57
Commercial	67
Early Elementary Education	53
Fine Arts	58
Home Economics	60
Industrial Arts	59
Junior High School	55
Later Elementary Education	54
Music	61
Occupational Therapy	65

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

F	age
Pre-professional and Vocational	256
Physical Education	62
Rural Administration and Supervision	66
	68
Senior High School	56
Special Education	, 64
State Limited	

D

Dean of Men	31
Dean of Women	31
Debating	44
Degree Requirements	47
Degrees	47
Departments of Instruction	70
	31
Dormitory for Men	32
Dropping Subjects	42

E

Early Elementary Education Curriculum	53
Economies	139
Education, Department of	42
Elementary Science	102
Eligibility of Student Officers	
Employment of Men and Women	33
English, Department of	71
Entrance, Conditions of	37
Executive Council of State Teachers Colleges	5
Extension Service	227
Extra Studies	42
Expenses, Estimated	36

F

Faculty of the State Normal College	9
	34
Fine Arts Curriculum	58
Fine Arts, Department of 1	174
Foreign Languages, Department of	84
French	84
Freshman Days	30

G

Geography,	Departme	ent	of	4					 	 		1	 		 	1	 	114
Geology				- 41.9					 					 J.				99
German									 	ι.	 ۰.		 		 	į.	 	86
Grades and	Standard	l of	Se	ho	la	r	sh	ip		 	 		 					40

INDEX

1	rage
Graduate Division	220
Graduation, Application for	41
Graduation Fees	35
Graduation, Requirements for	48
Greek	87
Grounds Belonging to the College	234
Group Majors and Minors	258

н

Health Education, Department of 2	.05
Health of Students	31
History and Social Science, Department of 1	27
History of the College	29
Home Economics Curriculum	60
Home Economics, Department of 1	94
Honors Courses	
Housing Regulations	31

I

Industrial	Arts,	Curriculum .		59
Industrial	Arts,	Department	of	188
Irregular	Progra	ams		42

J

L

Laboratory Schools	169
Later Elementary Education Curriculum	54
Latin	89
Library	236
Limited Certificates, Directions to Holders of	
Living Accommodations	31
Loan and Scholarship Funds	247

м

Mathematics, Department	0	f	١.		 	 	 	 			1.			5	 122
Men's Union					 		 	 					 		 243
Music Curriculum															
Music, Department of					 	 . ,	 	 	i.		 		 		 179
Music Lessons				ŝ	 		 	 . ,		-12			 	+ -	 186

N

Natural Science,	Department of		95
------------------	---------------	--	----

261

NORMAL COLLEGE YEAR BOOK

0

	rage
Observation in the Laboratory Schools	171
Occupational Therapy Curriculum	65
Organizations for Men Students	244
Organizations for Women Students	243

Р

Physical Education Curriculum	62
Physical Education, Department of	207
Physics and Astronomy, Department of	117
Physiology and Anatomy, Human	
Placement Bureau	
Political Science	137
Pre-professional and Vocational Curricula	256
Public Speaking	
Purpose and Control of Michigan State Teachers Colleges	

R

â

Religious Activities	243
Requirements for Graduation	48
Requirements for Teachers' Certificates	48
Room and Board	32
Rural Education Curriculum	, 69
Rural Education, Department of	158

S

Scholarship and Endowment Funds	7
Scholarship and Grades	1
Scholarship Index	1
School Library Service, Department of 20	2
	8
	õ
the first one second seco	6
Social Regulations	10 C (
Societies and Clubs	
Sociology 18	100
Spanish	
Special Education Curriculum	54
Special Education, Department of 16	50
	8
Standard of Scholarship and Grades	10
Standard for Graduation	11
	0
	27
	5
State Board of Baadanon Bechoere of	50
State Limited Curriculum	39

INDEX

																		Page
State Superintendent of																		
Statistical Information			 		 			2.2			4	 4			 1			255
Student Aid Corporation		23		1		έ.	 1	i.	24	14			2.			. 4	26,	247
Student Life	 		 															30
Student Load	 		 		 -		 				4							41
Student Teaching	 		 				 				+							171
Subject Groupings																		

W

Withdrawal	by	Request	******	42
Women's Lea	gue			243

Y

Young	Women's	Christian	Association	***************	243
-------	---------	-----------	-------------	-----------------	-----

\mathbf{z}

Zoology

..... 106